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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Report”) contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements present our current expectations or forecasts of future
events. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties and
include statements regarding, among other things, our projected revenue growth and profitability, our growth strategies and opportunity, anticipated trends in our market and
our anticipated needs for working capital. They are generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plans,” “potential,” “projects,”
“continuing,” “ongoing,” “expects,” “management believes,” “we believe,” “we intend” or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or comparable
terminology.
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Forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements about our market opportunities, our business and growth strategies, our projected revenue and
expense levels, possible future consolidated results of operations, the adequacy of our available cash resources, our financing plans, our competitive position and the effects of
competition, and the projected growth of the industries in which we operate, as well as the following statements:

®  According to The International Energy Agency projects global EV sales to grow from 3 million vehicles in 2020 to about 25 million vehicles in 2030, a 24

percent CAGR growth rate over this time period;

that the EV charger industry as a whole is undercapitalized to deliver the full potential of the expected EV market growth in the near future;

that we expect to retain our leadership position with new capital;

that we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock;

that we anticipate continuing to expand our revenues by selling our next generation of EV charging equipment, expanding Blink owned and operated charging

equipment, expanding our sales channels, and implementing EV charging station occupancy fees (fees for remaining connected to the charging station beyond

an allotted grace period after charging is completed), implementing subscription plans for our Blink-owned public charging locations, and advertising fees;

and

e that we are unique in our ability to offer various business models to Property Partners (as defined herein) and leverage our technology to meet the needs of
both Property Partners and EV drivers.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results and events anticipated or implied by such forward-looking statements include, but
are not limited to:

changes in the market acceptance of our products and services;

increased levels of competition;

changes in political, economic or regulatory conditions generally and in the markets in which we operate;

the military action launched by Russian forces in Ukraine, the actions that have been and could be taken by other countries, including new and stricter
sanctions and actions taken in response to such sanctions, and the effect of these developments on our business and results of operations;

our relationships with our key customers;

adverse conditions in the industries in which our customers operate;

continuing impact on us and our customers and suppliers caused by the Covid-19 pandemic;

our ability to retain and attract senior management and other key employees;

our ability to quickly and effectively respond to new technological developments;

our ability to protect our trade secrets or other proprietary rights, operate without infringing upon the proprietary rights of others and prevent others from
infringing on our proprietary rights; and

e other risks, including those described in the “Risk Factors” section of this Annual Report.

We operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks emerge from time to time. It is not possible for us to predict all of those risks, nor can
we assess the impact of all of those risks on our business or the extent to which any factor may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-
looking statement. The forward-looking statements in this Annual Report are based on assumptions management believes are reasonable. However, due to the uncertainties
associated with forward-looking statements, you should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Further, forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date they are made.

Certain of the market data and other statistical information contained in this Annual Report are based on information from independent industry organizations and
other third-party sources, including industry publications, surveys and forecasts. Some market data and statistical information contained in this Annual Report are also based on
management’s estimates and calculations, which are derived from our review and interpretation of the independent sources listed above, our internal research and our
knowledge of the EV industry. While we believe such information is reliable, we have not independently verified any third-party information, and our internal data has not been
verified by any independent source.




From time to time, forward-looking statements also are included in our other periodic reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K, in our press releases, in our presentations, on
our website and in other materials released to the public. Any or all of the forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report and in any other reports or public
statements made by us are not guarantees of future performance and may turn out to be inaccurate. These forward-looking statements represent our intentions, plans,
expectations, assumptions and beliefs about future events and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors. Many of those factors are outside of our control and could
cause actual results to differ materially from the results expressed or implied by those forward-looking statements. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the
events described in the forward-looking statements might not occur or might occur to a different extent or at a different time than we have described. You are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements
concerning other matters addressed in this Annual Report and attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary
statements contained or referred to in this Annual Report.

Except to the extent required by U.S. federal securities law, we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, a change in events, conditions, circumstances or assumptions underlying such statements, or otherwise.

For a discussion of factors that we believe could cause our actual results to differ materially from expected and historical results, see “Item 1A — Risk Factors” below.
In this Annual Report, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, the “Company,” “Blink,” “Blink Charging,” “we,” “us” or “our” refer to Blink
Charging Co., a Nevada corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries.

The mark “Blink” is our registered trademark in the United States and, in the name of Ecotality, Inc. (whose assets we acquired in October 2013), in Australia, China,
Hong Kong, Indonesia, Japan, South Korea, Malaysia, Mexico, New Zealand, Philippines, South Africa, Singapore, Switzerland, Taiwan, and is a trademark registered in the
European Union under the Madrid Protocol. We have registered other trademarks and also use certain trademarks, trade names and logos that have not been registered. We
claim common law rights to these unregistered trademarks, trade names and logos.

Note on Covid-19

The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted global stock markets and economies. We closely monitor the impact of the continuing presence of Covid-19 and recently
identified variants of Covid-19 which appear to be more transmissible and contagious than previous Covid-19 variants and have caused an increase in the number of Covid-19
cases globally. We have taken and continue to take precautions to ensure the safety of our employees, customers and business partners, while assuring business continuity and
reliable service and support to our customers. We continue to receive orders for our products, although some shipments of equipment have been temporarily delayed. The global
chip shortage and supply chain disruption has caused some delays in equipment orders from our contract manufacturer. As federal, state and local economies begin to return to
pre-pandemic levels, we expect demand for charging station usage to increase, however, we are unable to predict the extent of such recovery due to the uncertainty of Covid-19.
As a result, we are unable to predict the ultimate impact of equipment order delays, chip shortage and continuous presence of Covid-19 will have on our business, future results
of operations, financial position, or cash flows. We intend to continue to monitor the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on our business closely. For a further discussion of the
risks, uncertainties and actions taken in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, refer to Item 1A “Risk Factors”.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Overview

Blink Charging Co., through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, is a leading owner, operator, and provider of electric vehicle (“EV”) charging equipment and networked
EV charging services in the rapidly growing U.S. and international markets for EVs. Blink offers residential and commercial EV charging equipment and services, enabling EV
drivers to recharge at various location types. Blink’s principal line of products and services includes its nationwide Blink EV charging network (the “Blink Network™) and Blink
EV charging equipment, also known as electric vehicle supply equipment (“EVSE”), and other EV-related services. The Blink Network is a proprietary, cloud-based system
that operates, maintains, and manages Blink charging stations and handles the associated charging data, back-end operations, and payment processing. The Blink Network
provides property owners, managers, parking companies, and state and municipal entities (“Property Partners”), among other types of commercial customers, with cloud-based
services that enable the remote monitoring and management of EV charging stations. The Blink Network also provides EV drivers with vital station information, including
station location, availability, and fees (if applicable).

In order to capture more revenues derived from providing EV charging equipment to commercial customers and to help differentiate Blink in the EV infrastructure
market, Blink offers Property Partners a comprehensive range of solutions for EV charging equipment and services that generally fall into one of the business models below,
differentiated by who bears the costs of installation, equipment, maintenance, and the percentage of revenue shared.

o In our Blink-owned turnkey business model, Blink incurs the costs of the charging equipment and installation. We own and operate the EV charging station and provide
connectivity of the charging station to the Blink Network. In this model, which favors recurring revenues, Blink incurs most costs associated with the EV charging
stations; thus, Blink retains substantially all EV charging revenues after deducting network connectivity and processing fees.

e In our Blink-owned hybrid business model, Blink incurs the costs of the charging equipment while the Property Partner incurs the costs of installation. We own and
operate the EV charging station and provide connectivity of the charging station to the Blink Network. In this model, the Property Partner incurs the installation costs
associated with the EV station; thus, Blink shares a more generous portion of the EV charging revenues with the Property Partner after deducting network connectivity
and processing fees.

e In our host-owned business model, the Property Partner purchases, owns and operates the Blink EV charging station and incurs the installation costs. Blink works with
the Property Partner, providing site recommendations, connectivity to the Blink Network, payment processing, and optional maintenance services. In this model, the
Property Partner retains and keeps all the EV charging revenues after deducting network connectivity and processing fees.

e In our Blink-as-a-Service model, Blink owns and operates the EV charging station, while the Property Partner incurs the installation costs. The Property Partner pays to
Blink a fixed monthly fee and keeps all the EV charging revenues after deducting network connectivity and processing fees

Blink also operates a ride-sharing program through the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, BlueLA Rideshare, LLC (“BlueLA”) and the City of Los Angeles which
allows customers the ability to rent electric vehicles through a subscription service.

As part of Blink’s mission to facilitate the adoption of EVs through the deployment and operation of EV charging infrastructure globally, we are dedicated to slowing
climate change by reducing greenhouse gas emissions caused by road vehicles. With the goal of leading the build out of EV charging infrastructure and of maximizing Blink’s
share of the EV charging market, we have established strategic commercial, municipal and retail partnerships across industry verticals and encompassing numerous
transit/destination locations, including airports, auto dealers, healthcare/medical, hotels, mixed-use, municipal sites, multifamily residential and condos, parks and recreation
areas, parking lots, religious institutions, restaurants, retailers, schools and universities, stadiums, supermarkets, transportation hubs, and workplace locations.

During 2021, Blink was awarded several new prominent customers including General Motors, Ford, Jaguar-Land Rover, Hyundai, Kia, Subaru, AutoNation,
Berkshire-Hathaway Automotive, Bridgestone, the City of San Antonio, the Related Group, and others. During 2020, Blink awarded several new prominent customers,
including Cushman & Wakefield, Reef Technology, Lehigh Valley Health, St. Luke’s University Health Network, Lion Electric, and several others that expand Blink’s potential
for unit sales and deployments. Commensurate with these new business relationships, we also forged critical strategic relationships with organizations that directly or indirectly
influence EV charging stations purchase decisions. Examples include Sustainable Westchester in New York and Clean Cities Organizations in Virginia, Vermont and Ohio.
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In 2021, Blink opened a new office in Noida, India, adjacent to New Delhi. The new office adds to the Company’s expanding U.S. capacity to develop and innovate
new software capabilities to better meet the needs of an evolving EV charging landscape, while also serving as a key hub for operations serving the Asia Pacific and Middle
East regions. The new office in India is the first within the country for Blink and is part of the Company’s strategic goal to grow the global engineering team and develop an
operational hub to facilitate expansion into new international regions.

As of December 31, 2021, since our inception and excluding Blue Corner, we sold, deployed or acquired through acquisitions 20,684 chargers, of which, 7,366 were
connected to the Blink Network (4,611 Level 2 publicly accessible commercial chargers, 1,536 Level 2 private commercial chargers, 91 DC Fast Charging EV publicly
accessible chargers, 34 DC Fast Charging EV private chargers, and 1,095 residential Level 2 Blink EV chargers), 920 Level 2 chargers and 45 DC Fast Chargers are pending to
be commissioned to the Blink Network, and the remaining 12,353 were non-networked, on other networks or international sales or deployments (159 Level 2 commercial
chargers, 6 DC Fast Charging chargers, 10,099 residential Level 2 Blink EV chargers, 1,034 sold to other US networks, 990 sold internationally and 64 deployed
internationally).

In addition, as of February 3, 2022, since its inception, our recently acquired subsidiary, Blue Corner, sold or deployed 11,677 independent charge points, all of which
were on Blue Corner’s network, which was comprised of 4,566 Level 2 publicly accessible commercial independent charge points, 19 DC Fast Charging publicly assessable
commercial independent charge points and 7,092 private L2, private DC Fast Charging and private residential independent charge points. The charger units reported herein are
net of swap-out or replacement units.

Industry Overview

The market for plug-in electric vehicles experienced significant growth in recent years. In response to consumer demands, electric cars now feature extended ranges
and improved performance. Notable events in 2020 further propelled the EV industry. Stay-at-home orders and the resulting reductions in global carbon dioxide emissions
showcased the potential of cleaner, lower-emission air quality worldwide. Battery technology advances have allowed EVs to achieve approximate cost parity with internal
combustion engine vehicles and have extended driving range and consumer confidence. Finally, the new United States administration’s focus on climate initiatives and its large-
scale commitment to expanding EV charging infrastructure has spurred widespread interest and promotion of the EV industry.

Electric vehicle demand has also been spurred by federal, state, and local incentives and rebates for both vehicles and their required charging infrastructure. For
example, California, Oregon, New York, Maryland, Massachusetts, and other states have created mandates for EVs to achieve more than 6.8 million EVs on the road by 2030.
Further, a shift towards EV car-sharing has boosted the transition to EV fleets, leading to increased EV charging station demand. In response to consumer demand and
governmental regulations, major automakers and OEMs have accelerated the development and production of a robust portfolio of electric vehicles. More than 70 EV models
are currently available from automakers such as Tesla, Nissan, Kia, GM, Ford, Fiat, BMW, Mercedes-Benz, Audi, Volkswagen, Toyota, Mitsubishi, Land Rover, and Porsche
and an estimated 62 more are scheduled to become available in 2022. The International Energy Agency projects global EV sales to grow from 3 million vehicles in 2020 to
about 25 million vehicles in 2030, a 24 percent compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) over this time period.

These market demands well position Blink for rapid growth in its EV charging network, the number of its members, and its site host property partners’ expansion.
Blink has been preparing for this high-growth environment through its planning initiatives, including securing large national and international strategic partnerships and
agreements, and further developing the Company’s technology. These strategic actions will help ensure the Company is well positioned to meet the growing infrastructure
demand both in the United States and globally. In addition to meeting the required demand for EV charging infrastructure, Blink’s unique, owner-operator focused business
models help the Company significantly benefit from increased utilization as the industry expands through revenue share at Blink-owned charging stations.

Our EV Charging Solutions
We offer a variety of EV charging products and services to Property Partners and EV drivers.
EV Charging Solutions

o Level 2. We offer Level 2 (AC) EV charging equipment, which is ideal for commercial and residential use, that has the standard J1772 connector, which
is compatible with all major auto manufacturer electric vehicle models. Our commercial Level 2 chargers consist of the IQ 200 family which is available
in pedestal wall mount and pole mount configurations. The 1Q 200 family provides an optional cable management system with the ability to connect to
our Blink Network. Our non-networked residential product, Blink HQ 150, is available in a wall-mount configuration and offers a delay start feature that
allows users to optimize charging when utility rates are lowest. Level 2 charging stations typically provide a full charge in two to eight hours. Level 2
chargers are ideally suited for low-cost installations and frequently used parking locations, such as workplace, multifamily residential, retail and mixed-
use, parking garages, municipalities, colleges/schools, hospitals and airports.
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In January 2022, we announced the next generation of Level 2 chargers to enhance our offering for the residential and the Fleet multifamily residential
markets. The HQ 200 Basic is a non-networked residential product and the HQ 200 Smart is a networked residential product. The MQ 200 product is an
ideal product for the Fleet and multifamily residential markets.

Mobile Charger. Blink offers the IQ 200-M Level 2 charger for the mobile/emergency charging market which requires a portable charger to be used for
roadside or other use cases where a connection to the electricity grid is not available.

Advertising Solution. In January 2022, Blink launched its advertising and charging solution in one product. This product, Vision IQ 200, consists of static
and dynamic advertising and Level 2 charge targeted at the retail, hospitality and high traffic locations.

DCFC. Blink offers a complete line of DC Fast Charging equipment (“DCFC”) that range from 50kW to 175kW, support the ‘CHAdeMo’ and the CCS1
connector, and typically provide an 80% charge in less than 30 minutes. Installation of DCFC stations and grid requirements are typically greater than
Level 2 charging stations and are ideally suited for transportation hubs and locations between travel destinations.

Blink’s rapid expansion into DCFC sites is supported by reseller type relationships with all the major equipment manufacturers globally. This assures
Blink access to the best-in-class equipment for each specific requirement, allowing Blink to provide the best possible charging solutions for its
customers. The third-party DCFC’s operate on the Blink Network as all of our other products. The third-party equipment currently operating on Blink’s
network include ABB, BTC, Signet, and Tritium.

International Products. Blink offers Level 2 AC and DC products for the international markets targeted at the residential, workplace, retail, parking
garages, leasing companies, hospitality and other locations requiring a Level 2 or a DC Fast charger. These products are available with the Type 2 and

CCS 2 connectors.

Blink Network. Blink Network is a cloud-based product that manages our network of EV chargers for remote monitoring, management, payment
processing, customer support and other features required for operating the Blink network of EV charging locations.

Mobile Apps. Blink offers mobile apps (i0S and Android) for EV drivers to signup, locate, charge and pay at the EV chargers.

Fleet Management. In January 2022, Blink announced the Fleet Management Portal targeted at commercial, municipal and federal fleets that are
interested in electrifying their fleets for planning, managing, and optimizing their fleets for departure and energy costs.

Competitive Advantages/Operational Strengths

Long-Term Contracts with Property Owners. We have strategic and often long-term agreements with location exclusivity with Property Partners across numerous
transit/destination locations, including airports, car dealers, healthcare/medical, hotels, mixed-use, municipal locations, multifamily residential and condo, parks and recreation
areas, parking lots, religious institutions, restaurants, retailers, schools and universities, stadiums, supermarkets, transportation hubs, and workplace locations. Property Partners
include well-recognized companies, large municipalities and local businesses. Representative examples are City of Miami Beach, City of Chula Vista, City of Phoenix, City of
Portland, University of San Diego, Ohlone College, ACE Parking, Icon Parking, SP+ Parking, iPark, LAZ Parking, Reef Parking, Federal Realty, Equity Residential, Related
Group, Johnson & Johnson, Kaiser Permanente, Blessing Healthcare, Sony Pictures Entertainment, Starbucks, JBG Associates, Kroger Company, Fred Meyer Stores, Inc.,
Fry’s Food & Drug, Inc., Raising Cane’s, McDonald’s, Carl’s Jr., Burger King, and Ralphs Grocery Company. We continue to establish new contracts with Property Partners
that previously secured our services independently or had contracts with the EV service providers that we acquired in the past.
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Differentiated but Flexible Business Models. We own, operate and supply proprietary electric vehicle charging equipment and networked EV charging services. We
believe that our ability to flexibly provide various business models, including a comprehensive turnkey solution, to Property Partners and leverage our technology to meet both
Property Partners’ and EV drivers’ needs provides us competitive advantage in addition to more compelling long-term growth opportunities than possible through equipment
sales only.

Ownership and Control of EV Charging Stations and Services. We own a large percentage of our charging stations, which is a significant differentiation between us
and some of our primary competitors. This ownership model allows us to control the settings and pricing for our EV charging services, service the equipment as necessary, and
have more effective brand management and price uniformity. As for those stations that we do not own, we are using our best efforts to encourage their owners to keep the
stations operating in good order and, in some cases, to replace faulty stations with our new charging stations equipment.

Experience with Products and Services of Other EV Charging Service Providers. From our early days and through our acquisitions, we have had the experience of
owning and operating EV charging equipment manufactured by other EV charging service providers, including General Electric, ChargePoint, and SemaConnect. This
experience has provided us with the working knowledge of other equipment manufacturers’ benefits and drawbacks and their applicable EV charging networks.

Our Growth Strategy

Our objective is to continue becoming a leading provider of EV charging solutions by deploying mass-scale EV charging infrastructure. By doing so, we aim to enable
the accelerated growth of EV adoption and the EV industry. Key elements of our growth strategy include:

®  Pursue Strategic Opportunities to Expand Blink-Owned Turnkey and Hybrid Models. We have structured our business to identify and pursue opportunities to
develop Blink’s owner and operator business model with locations with potential high utilization, where grant monies are available, and where we can realize
long-term benefit for the EV charging location and establish long-term recurring revenue relationships.

® Relentless Focus on Customer Satisfaction. We aim to increase overall customer satisfaction with new and existing Property Partners and EV drivers by
upgrading and expanding the EV charging footprint throughout high-demand, high-density geographic areas. Another objective is to improve productivity and
utilization of existing EV charging stations and enhance the valuable features of our EV charging station hardware and the Blink Network.

o  Continue to Invest in Technology Innovations. We will continue to enhance the product offerings available in our EV charging hardware, cloud-based software,
and networking capability. This includes the design and launch of our next generation of EV charging solutions, including accelerating the charge currents
currently available in EV charging hardware and new, robust Blink Network features to stay ahead of the competition. Our key service solutions allow us to
remain technology agnostic so that, if market conditions shift, we have the option to leverage pure-play hardware providers to augment our products. In 2021, we
opened a new office near New Delhi, India. The new office in India is the first within the country for Blink and is part of the Company’s strategic goal to grow the
global engineering team and develop an operational hub to facilitate expansion into new international regions.

e Strengthen and Support our Human Capital. Our experienced employees and management team are our most valuable resources. Attracting, training, and
retaining key personnel has been and will remain critical to our success. To achieve our human capital goals, we intend to stay focused on providing our personnel
with entrepreneurial opportunities to expand our business within their areas of expertise. We will also continue to provide our personnel with personal and
professional growth opportunities, including additional training, performance-based incentives such as opportunities for stock ownership, and other competitive
benefits.

o  Expand Sales and Marketing Resources. We intend to invest in sales and marketing infrastructure to capitalize on the growth in the market and expand our go-to-
market strategy. Today, we use a direct sales force, as well as resellers, and will continue expanding through the use of independent sales agents, utilities, solar
distributors, contractors, automotive manufacturers and dealers.




o Seek Strategic Acquisition Opportunities. We seek domestic and international acquisition opportunities which will allow us to expeditiously expand our footprint
of EV charging station locations, product offerings, and enhance our Blink Network.

o Leverage Our Early Mover Advantage. We continue to leverage our extensive and defendable first-mover advantage and the digital customer experience we have
created for both EV drivers and Property Partners. We believe that tens of thousands of Blink driver registrants appreciate the value of transacting charging
sessions on an established, robust network. Blink chargers are deployed across the United States, and the tendency, among users, is to stay within one consistent
network.

o Appropriately Capitalize Our Business. We continue to pursue new potential capital sources to deliver critical operational objectives and the necessary resources
to execute our overall strategy. The EV charging industry as a whole is undercapitalized to deliver the full potential of the expected EV market growth in the near
future. We expect to retain our leadership position with new growth capital as required.

o International Expansion. On May 10, 2021, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary in the Netherlands, Blink Holdings, B.V., closed on the
acquisition from the shareholders of Blue Corner NV, a Belgian company (“Blue Corner”), of all of the outstanding capital stock of Blue Corner. Headquartered in
Belgium, with sales representative offices in several other European cities, Blue Corner owns and operates an EV charging network across Europe. The
acquisition of Blue Corner was made to enter the European market and provide an opportunity to expand the Company’s footprint in this region. As a key
contributor to the expanding EV landscape, we are continuously looking for opportunities to strategically increase our global assets while also making EV
charging more accessible. International expansion is fundamental to our rapid growth and will accelerate the success we are already achieving in the region.

Sales

Blink’s sales organization builds and maintains long-term business relationships with our customers by utilizing our four core business models. These business models
provide a high degree of flexibility to match host location goals and objectives for EV charging with our industry-leading equipment acquisition solutions. Our team identifies
locations that have the potential to create long-term, recurring value for the Property Partner and Blink. Sales personnel are able to pivot to traditional equipment sales or
charging-as-a-service models when, and if, a location is not identified as a promising generator of future recurring revenues. The team strives to maintain a balance between
equipment sales that grow revenue today, and site locations that have potential to generate strong revenues in the future under our owner-operator business models.

Blink also engages with strategic reseller partners across a range of vertical markets both within the U.S. and globally. These resellers typically have unique
relationships or capabilities within their respective markets and provide Blink with additional sales opportunities. These resellers amplify Blink’s sales reach and are authorized
to sell our EV charging hardware, software services (connectivity to Blink Network), and extended warranty service plans, to strategic site hosts and in specific locations.

Blink is making further inroads into the residential charging station market where we sell Level 2 chargers through various internet channels, such as Amazon,
Walmart.com, Lowes.com, and other online retailers, to reach the single-family residential charging market in the United States.

During 2021, Blink awarded several new prominent customers including General Motors, Ford, Jaguar-Land Rover, Hyundai, Kia, Subaru, AutoNation, Berkshire-
Hathaway Automotive, Bridgestone, the City of San Antonio, the Related Group, and others. During 2020, Blink awarded several new prominent customers, including
Cushman & Wakefield, Reef Technology, Lehigh Valley Health, St. Luke’s University Health Network, Lion Electric, and several others, that expand Blink’s potential for unit
sales and deployments. Commensurate with these new business relationships, we also forged critical strategic relationships with organizations that directly or indirectly
influence EV charging station purchase decisions. Examples include Sustainable Westchester in New York, and Clean Cities Organizations in Virginia, Vermont and Ohio.

In addition to adding sales personnel within key markets, we solidified our organizational structure through hiring talented business development professionals and
establishing a new account management team to onboard customers and maintain long-term relationships.

Our in-house staff performs a variety of marketing activities. Our marketing team works to promote and sell our services to property owners and managers, parking
companies, and EV drivers. We also utilize marketing and communication channels, including press releases, email marketing, website (www.blinkcharging.com), pay-per-
click advertising, social media marketing, webinars, sponsorships and partnerships, advertising, and conferences. Our websites’ information is not, and will not be deemed, a
part of this Annual Report or incorporated into any other filings we make with the SEC.

We continue to invest in improving our company-owned stations’ service and maintenance and those stations with service and maintenance plans and expanding our
cloud-based network capabilities. We anticipate continuing to grow our revenues by (i) selling our next generation of EV charging equipment to current as well as to new
Property Partners, which includes airports, auto dealers, healthcare/medical, hotels, mixed-use, municipal locations, multifamily residential and condos, parks and recreation
areas, parking lots, religious institutions, restaurants, retailers, schools and universities, stadiums, supermarkets, transportation hubs, and workplace locations, and (ii)
expanding our sales channels to wholesale distributors, utilities, auto original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”), solar integrators, and dealers, which will include
implementing EV charging station occupancy fees (after charging is completed, fees for remaining connected to the charging station beyond an allotted grace period), and
subscription plans for EV drivers on our company-owned public charging locations.




Our Customers and Partners

We have strategic partnerships across numerous transit/destination locations, including airports, auto dealers, healthcare/medical, hotels, mixed-use and municipal
locations, multifamily residential and condos, parks and recreation areas, parking lots, religious institutions, restaurants, retailers, schools and universities, stadiums,
supermarkets, transportation hubs, and workplace locations. We have hundreds of Property Partners that include well-recognized companies, large municipalities, and local
businesses. We strive to engage all Blink-owned turnkey and hybrid property partners with exclusive EV charging contracts. This strategy further supports our owner-operator
model to generate recurring revenue for both the Property Partner and Blink. Representative examples are McDonald’s, Sony Pictures, Caltrans, Porsche Design Tower, City of
Azusa, City of Chula Vista, City of Springfield, City of Tucson, Federal Realty, Fred Meyer Stores, Inc., Fry’s Food & Drug, Inc., JBG Associates, LLC, Kroger Company and
Ralphs Grocery Company. We continue to establish new contracts with Property Partners that previously secured our services independently or had contracts with the EV
services providers that we acquired, including Ecotality, the former owner of the Blink-related assets.

Our revenues are primarily derived from fees charged to EV drivers for EV charging in public locations, EV charging hardware sales, government grants, and sales of
equipment warranties. EV charging fees to drivers are based on an hourly rate, by energy dispensed per kilowatt-hour (“kWh”), or by session. Such fees are calculated based on
various factors, including associated station costs and local electricity tariffs. EV charging hardware is sold to our Property Partners such as InterEnergy, Green Commuter,
Nashville Music Center, Wendy’s, and other Property Partners engaged with our host-owned business model. Other income sources from EV charging services are network
fees, extended warranty fees, membership fees, and payment processing fees paid by our Property Partners. Blink generates revenues from its ride-sharing program through
BlueLA and the City of Los Angeles which allows customers the ability to rent electric vehicles through a subscription service.

We teamed up with Google Maps to make locating EV charging stations straightforward and accessible. Our charging stations are displayed in Google Maps, along
with other relevant information.

We are focused on international expansion and have made significant progress in the last year at expanding our business across the globe, focusing primarily on
Europe, Israel, and Latin America. In May 2021, we purchased the Belgian EV car charging company Blue Corner NV, managed through our international holdings subsidiary,
Blink Holdings BV in Amsterdam, the Netherlands. Additionally, we utilize Blink Charging Ltd. for our expansion in Israel and Blink Hellas SA for our expansion in Greece.
We are in the process of incorporating numerous subsidiaries in Latin America as we further concentrate our international efforts. Finally, we established a new software
development team in India, managed by our subsidiary Blink Charging Software Solutions Ltd.

We expanded our efforts on diversification, public service, and focus on renewable energy. We established a new committee of the Board of Directors, the
Environmental, Social & Governance Committee (ESG), and adopted a new diversity statement. Our Human Resources Department led several successful climate initiatives
throughout the year, including a cleanup of Miami Beach. Although we are still primarily working remotely and have not required employees to return to our new offices, our
company culture is stronger than ever.

Our Competition

The EV charging equipment and service market is highly competitive, and we expect the market to become increasingly competitive as new entrants enter this growing
market. Our products and services compete on product performance and features, the total cost of ownership, sales capabilities, financial stability, brand recognition, product
reliability, and the installed base’s size. Our existing competition currently includes ChargePoint, which manufactures EV charging equipment and operates the ChargePoint
Network, and Evgo, which offers home and public charging with pay-as-you-go and subscription models. Other entrants into the connected EV charging station equipment
market include Volta, Clipper Creek, SemaConnect, and EV Connect. We believe these additional competitors struggle with gaining the necessary network traction but could
gain momentum in the future. While Tesla does offer EV charging services, the connector type currently restricts the chargers to Tesla vehicles only. Many other EV charging
companies offer non-networked or “basic” chargers with limited customer leverage but could provide a low-cost solution for basic charger needs in commercial and home
locations.

Our competitive advantage in this market includes our exclusive, long-term contracts with our Property Partners and flexible business models. We offer our EV
charging station equipment and provide access to a robust EV charging network.




Government Grants

Blink has established a full-time dedicated team to identify and process federal and state funding opportunities for EV charging infrastructure development. Blink is
committed to pursuing EV charging development grant opportunities in all 50 states. Funding sources include the United States Department of Energy, the United States
Department of Transportation, the VW mitigation settlement trust fund, and funding initiatives from utility service providers.

Government Regulation and Incentives

State, regional and local regulations for installing EV charging stations vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and may include permitting requirements, inspection
requirements, licensing of contractors, and certifications. Compliance with such regulations may cause installation delays.

Currently, we apply charging fees by the kWh for our services in states that permit this policy and hourly and by session for our services in states that do not permit per
kWh pricing. California, Colorado, District of Columbia, Florida, Hawaii, Illinois, Maryland, Massachusetts, Minnesota, New York, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Utah, Virginia, and
Washington have determined that companies that sell EV charging services to the public will not be regulated as utilities, allowing us to charge fees based on kWh usage. These
individual state determinations are not binding on any other regulator or jurisdiction. However, they demonstrate a trend in the way states view the industry. Other jurisdictions
are in the process of adopting such reforms.

We intend to continue to vigorously seek additional grants, loans, rebates, subsidies, and incentives as cost-effective means of reducing our capital investment in the
promotion, purchase and installation of charging stations where applicable. We expect these incentives, rebates, and tax credits to be critical to our future growth. Additionally,
some incentives are currently offered to encourage electric vehicle adoption at the federal, state and local levels. The Federal government provides a personal income tax credit
for qualified plug-in electric vehicles, with a minimum credit of $2,500 and a maximum of $7,500, depending on vehicle weight and battery capacity. Such credits begin to
phase out when the vehicle manufacturer reaches certain production levels. States such as California, Colorado, Delaware, Louisiana, Massachusetts, New York, and Rhode
Island offer various rebates, grants, and tax credits to incentivize EV and EVSE purchases.

CESQG

As a Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator (“CESQG”), we generate a limited quantity of hazardous waste, mainly solvent contaminated wipes, which are
transported to local solid waste facilities. Scrapped electronic boards are transported to a local recycler. A CESQG of hazardous waste is defined as a generator that:

produces no more than 100 kg (220 1bs.) of hazardous waste per month;

produces no more than 1 kg (2.2 Ibs.) of acutely hazardous waste per month;

does not accumulate more than 1,000 kg (2,204 1bs.) of hazardous waste on-site; and
a CESQG has no time limit for accumulation.

The use of our machinery and equipment must comply with the following applicable laws and regulations, including safety and environmental regulations:

o  General Safety for All Employees — Includes health hazard communication, emergency exit plans, electrical safety-related work practices, office safety, and hand-
powered tools.

o Technicians and Engineers — Only authorized persons (technicians and engineers) perform product testing and repair in the facility’s production and engineering
areas, including those engineers involved in field service work. Regulations include control of hazardous energy and personal protective equipment.

e Logisticians — Includes forklift operations performed only by certified shipping/receiving personnel and material handling and storage.

We fully comply with the general industry category’s environmental regulations applicable to us as a CESQG.

OSHA

We are subject to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as amended (“OSHA”). OSHA establishes specific employer responsibilities, including maintaining
a workplace free of recognized hazards likely to cause death or serious injury, compliance with standards promulgated by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration
and various recordkeeping, disclosure and procedural requirements. Multiple standards, including standards for notices of hazards, safety in excavation and demolition work

and the handling of asbestos, may apply to our operations. We are in full compliance with OSHA regulations.

10




NEMA

The National Electrical Manufacturers Association (“NEMA”) is the association of electrical equipment and medical imaging manufacturers. NEMA provides a forum
for developing technical standards in the industry and users’ best interests, advocating industry policies on legislative and regulatory matters, and collecting, analyzing, and
disseminating industry data. All of our US products comply with the NEMA standards that apply to such products.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright, unfair competition and trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality procedures and contractual restrictions, to
establish, maintain and protect our proprietary rights. Our success depends partly on our ability to obtain and maintain proprietary protection for our products, technology and
know-how, to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of others, and to prevent others from infringing our proprietary rights.

As of December 31, 2021, we had four active patents issued in the United States (in the name of our subsidiary Ecotality, Inc.). These patents relate to various EV
charging station designs. We intend to regularly assess opportunities for seeking patent protection for those aspects of our technology, designs and methodologies that we
believe provide a meaningful competitive advantage. If we cannot do so, our ability to protect our intellectual property or prevent others from infringing our proprietary rights
may be impaired.

Human Capital Resources

Our experienced employees and management team are some of our most valuable resources, and we are committed to attracting, motivating, and retaining top
professionals. As of December 31, 2021, we had 198 employees, including 191 full-time employees. None of our employees are represented by a union or covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. We have not experienced any work stoppages, and we consider our relationship with our employees to be good.

Our success is directly related to the satisfaction, growth, and development of our employees. We strive to offer a work environment where employee opinions are
valued and allow our employees to use and augment their professional skills. To achieve our human capital goals, we intend to remain focused on providing our personnel with
entrepreneurial opportunities to expand our business within their areas of expertise and continue to provide our personnel with personal and professional growth. Blink
emphasizes several measures and objectives in managing our human capital assets, including, among others, employee safety and wellness, talent acquisition and retention,
employee engagement, development and training, diversity and inclusion, and compensation and pay equity.

COVID-19 and Employee Safety and Wellness. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we implemented significant changes that we determined were in the best
interest of our employees as well as the communities in which we operate. These measures include allowing most employees to work from home and implementing additional
safety measures for employees continuing critical on-site work. We believe in supporting our employees’ health and well-being. Our goal is to help employees make informed
decisions about their health by providing the tools and resources necessary to achieve a healthier lifestyle. We offer our employees a wide array of benefits such as life and
health (medical, dental, and vision) insurance, paid time off and retirement benefits, as well as emotional well-being services through our health insurance program.

Diversity and Inclusion and Ethical Business Practices. We believe that a company culture focused on diversity and inclusion is a crucial driver of creativity and
innovation. We also believe that diverse and inclusive teams make better business decisions, ultimately driving better business outcomes. We are committed to recruiting,
retaining, and developing high-performing, innovative and engaged employees with diverse backgrounds and experiences. This commitment includes providing equal access to,
and participation in, equal employment opportunities, programs, and services without regard to race, religion, color, national origin, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, stereotypes, or assumptions based thereon. We welcome and celebrate our teams’ differences, experiences, and beliefs, and we are investing in a more engaged,
diverse, and inclusive workforce.

We expanded our efforts on diversification, public service, and focus on renewable energy. We established a new committee of the Board of Directors, the
Environmental, Social & Governance Committee (ESG), and adopted a new diversity statement. Our Human Resources Department led several successful climate initiatives
throughout the year, including a cleanup of Miami Beach.

Blink also fosters a strong corporate culture that promotes high standards of ethics and compliance for our business, including policies that set forth principles to guide
employee, officer, director, and vendor conduct, such as our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. We also maintain a whistleblower policy and anonymous hotline for the
confidential reporting of any suspected policy violations or unethical business conduct on the part of our businesses, employees, officers, directors, or vendors.

Available Information

We use our website www.blinkcharging.com. Our website’s information is not, and will not be deemed, a part of this Annual Report or incorporated into any other
filings we make with the SEC. Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act are made available on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material
with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Our corporate governance documents, including our code of conduct and ethics, are also available on our website. In this Annual Report on Form
10-K, we incorporate by reference as identified herein certain information from parts of our proxy statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will file
with the SEC and will be available, free of charge, on our website. Reports of our executive officers, directors and any other persons required to file securities ownership
reports under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act are also available on our website.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

In addition to other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other filings we make with the Securities and Exchange Commission, the following risk
factors should be carefully considered in evaluating our business as they may have a significant impact on our business, operating results and financial condition. If any of the
following risks occurs, our business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects could be materially and adversely affected. Because of the following factors,
as well as other variables affecting our operating results, past financial performance should not be considered as a reliable indicator of future performance and stockholders
and investors should not use historical trends to anticipate results or trends in future periods.

Relating to Our Business
We have a history of substantial net losses and expect losses to continue in the future; if we do not achieve and sustain profitability, our financial condition could suffer.

We have experienced substantial net losses, and we expect to continue to incur substantial losses for the foreseeable future. We incurred net losses of $55.1 million,
$17.8 million and $9.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, we had net working capital of $176.3 million
and an accumulated deficit of $242.5 million. We have not yet achieved profitability.

If our revenue grows slower than we anticipate, or if our operating expenses are higher than we expect, we may not be able to achieve profitability and our financial
condition could suffer. We can give no assurance that we will ever achieve profitable operations. Even if we achieve profitability in the future, we may not be able to sustain
profitability in subsequent periods. Whether we can achieve cash flow levels sufficient to support our operations cannot be accurately predicted. Unless such cash flow levels
are achieved, we may need to borrow additional funds or sell our debt or equity securities, or some combination of both, to provide funding for our operations. Such additional
funding may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.

Our revenue growth ultimately depends on consumers’ willingness to adopt electric vehicles in a market which is still in its early stages.

Our growth is highly dependent upon the adoption by consumers of EVs, and we are subject to a risk of any reduced demand for EVs. If the market for EVs does not
gain broad market acceptance or develops slower than we expect, our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results will be harmed. The market for alternative
fuel vehicles is relatively new, rapidly evolving, characterized by rapidly changing technologies, price competition, additional competitors, evolving government regulation and
industry standards, frequent new vehicle announcements, long development cycles for EV original equipment manufacturers, and changing consumer demands and behaviors.
Factors that may influence the purchase and use of alternative fuel vehicles, specifically EVs, include:

e perceptions about EV quality, safety (in particular with respect to lithium-ion battery packs), design, performance and cost, especially if adverse events or
accidents occur that are linked to the quality or safety of EVs;

the limited range over which EVs may be driven on a single battery charge and concerns about running out of power while in use;

improvements in the fuel economy of the internal combustion engine;

consumers’ desire and ability to purchase a luxury automobile or one that is perceived as exclusive;

the environmental consciousness of consumers;

volatility in the cost of oil and gasoline;

consumers’ perceptions of the dependency of the United States on oil from unstable or hostile countries and the impact of international conflicts;
government regulations and economic incentives promoting fuel efficiency and alternate forms of energy;

access to charging stations, standardization of EV charging systems and consumers’ perceptions about convenience and cost to charge an EV; and

the availability of tax and other governmental incentives to purchase and operate EVs or future regulation requiring increased use of nonpolluting vehicles.

The influence of any of the factors described above may negatively impact the widespread consumer adoption of EVs, which would materially and adversely affect our
business, operating results, financial condition and prospects.
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Changes to corporate average fuel economy standards may negatively impact the EV market and demand for our products.

As regulatory initiatives have required an increase in the consumption of renewable transportation fuels, such as ethanol and biodiesel, consumer acceptance of electric
and other alternative vehicles is increasing. To meet higher fuel efficiency and greenhouse gas emission standards for passenger vehicles, automobile manufacturers are
increasingly using technologies, such as turbocharging, direct injection and higher compression ratios, which require high octane gasoline. If fuel efficiency of vehicles
continues to rise, and affordability of vehicles using renewable transportation fuels increases, the demand for electric and high energy vehicles could diminish. If consumers no
longer purchase EVs, it would materially and adversely affect our business, operating results, financial condition and prospects.

We have global operations and face risks related to health crises that could negatively impact our financial condition.

Our business, the businesses of our customers and the businesses of our charging equipment suppliers could be materially and adversely affected by the risks, or the
public perception of the risks, related to a pandemic or other health crisis, such as the ongoing presence of the coronavirus COVID-19 and its variants. A significant component
supplier of our Blink IQ 200 charging station is located in Taiwan and it, in turn, sources assembly parts from China, which has been particularly impacted. A significant or
prolonged outbreak of contagious diseases like COVID-19 and its variants in the human population could result in a widespread health crisis that could adversely affect the
economies and financial markets of many countries, resulting in an economic downturn that could affect demand for our EV supply equipment and related networked services
and likely impact our operating results. Such events could result in the complete or partial closure of our Taiwan supplier’s manufacturing facility, the interruption of our
distribution system, temporary or long-term disruption in our supply chains from Asia and other international suppliers, disruptions, or restrictions on our employees to work or
travel, delays in the delivery of our charging stations to customers, and potential claims of exposure to diseases through contact with our charging stations. If the impact of an
outbreak continues for an extended period, it could materially adversely impact our supply chain, access to capital and the growth of our revenues.

The impact of the military action in Ukraine may affect our current and future operations in the European Union.

The current invasion of Ukraine by Russia has escalated tensions among the United States, the North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO) and Russia. The United
States and other NATO member states, as well as non-member states, have announced new sanctions against Russia and certain Russian banks, enterprises and individuals.
These and any future additional sanctions and any resulting conflict between Russia, the United States and NATO countries could have an adverse impact on our current
operations in Belgium, Greece and the United Kingdom, which are NATO members, and could restrict our ability to expand our operations and EV charger sites into other
countries in the European Union in the future. In addition, we maintain a business relationship with a supplier of certain electronic equipment located in Ukraine, which will
likely be adversely impacted. We are not currently dependent on this supplier to provide our services as there are multiple sources of supply available to us. Further, such
invasion, ongoing military conflict, resulting sanctions and related countermeasures by NATO states, the United States and other countries are likely to lead to market
disruptions, including significant volatility in commodity prices, credit and capital markets, as well as supply chain interruptions for equipment. In light of these events, we are
developing a plan designed to mitigate the impact of this conflict on our business, but it is unclear if it will successfully mitigate all disruptions, which could have an adverse
impact on our operations and financial performance.

We rely on a limited number of vendors for our EV charging equipment and related support services. A loss of any of these partners would negatively affect our business.

We rely on a limited number of vendors for design, testing and manufacturing of EV charging equipment which generally singularly sourced with respect to
components as well as aftermarket maintenance and warranty services. The reliance on a limited number of vendors increases our risks, since we do not currently have proven
reliable alternative or replacement vendors beyond these key parties. In the event of production interruptions or supply chain disruptions including but not limited to availability
of certain key components such as semiconductors, we may not be able to take advantage of increased production from other sources or develop alternate or secondary vendors
without incurring material additional costs and substantial delays. Therefore, our business would be adversely affected if one or more of our vendors is impacted by any
interruption at a particular location.

As the demand for public charging increases, the EV charging equipment vendors may not be able to dedicate sufficient supply chain, production, or sales channel
capacity to keep up with the required pace of charging infrastructure expansion. In addition, as the EV market grows, the industry may be exposed to deteriorating design
requirements, undetected faults or the erosion of testing standards by charging equipment and component suppliers, which may adversely impact the performance, reliability
and lifecycle cost of the chargers. If we or our suppliers experience a significant increase in demand, or if we need to replace an existing supplier, we may not be able to
supplement service or replace them on acceptable terms, which may impact our ability to install chargers in a timely manner. Thus, a loss of any significant vendor would have
an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We may be adversely affected by inflationary or market fluctuations, including impact of tariffs, in the cost of products consumed in providing our services or our cost of
labor.

The prices we pay for the principal items we consume in performing our services are dependent primarily on current market prices. We have consolidated certain
supply purchases with national vendors through agreements containing negotiated prospective pricing. In the event such vendors are not able to comply with their obligations
under the agreements and we are required to seek alternative suppliers, we may incur increased costs of supplies.

EV chargers are impacted by commodity pricing factors, including the impact of tariffs, which in many cases are unpredictable and outside of our control. We seek to
pass on to customers such increased costs but sometimes we are unable to do so. Even when we are able to pass on such costs to our customers, from time to time, sporadic
unanticipated increases in the costs of certain supply items due to market or economic conditions may result in a timing delay in passing on such increases to our customers.
This type of spike and unanticipated increase in EV charger costs could adversely affect our operating performance, and the adverse effect could be greater if we are delayed in
passing on such additional costs to our customers (e.g., where we may not be able to pass such increase on to our customers until the time of our next scheduled service billing
review). We seek to mitigate the impact of an unanticipated increase in such supplies’ costs through consolidation of vendors, which increases our ability to obtain more
favorable pricing.
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Our cost of labor may be influenced by factors in certain market areas. A substantial number of our employees are hourly employees whose wage rates are affected by
increases in the federal or state minimum wage rates, wage inflation or local job market adjustments. We do not have a contractual right to automatically pass through all wage
rate increases resulting from wage rate inflation or local job market adjustments, and we may be delayed in doing so. Our delay in, or inability to pass such wage increases
through to our customers could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

Climate change may have a long-term impact on our business.

While we seek to partner with organizations that mitigate their business risks associated with climate change, we recognize that there are inherent risks wherever
business is conducted. Access to clean water and reliable energy in the communities where we conduct our business, whether for our offices or for our vendors, is a priority.
Our major sites in Miami, Florida, Los Angeles, California and Tempe, Arizona are vulnerable to climate change effects. For example, in Florida, residents are facing
increasing flood risk and storm intensity. This is especially evident in Miami, due to its low-lying topography, porous limestone, dense coastal development and encroaching
seas. In California, increasing intensity of drought throughout the state and annual periods of wildfire danger increase the probability of planned power outages in the
communities where we work and live. While this danger has a low-assessed risk of disrupting normal business operations, it has the potential impact on employees’ abilities to
commute to work or to work from home and stay connected effectively. Climate-related events, including the increasing frequency of extreme weather events and their impact
on critical infrastructure throughout the United States and in other countries where we have operations, have the potential to disrupt our business, our third-party suppliers
and/or the business of our customers, and may cause us to experience higher attrition, losses and additional costs to maintain or resume our EV charging operations.

Computer malware, viruses, hacking, phishing attacks and spamming that could result in security and privacy breaches and interruption in service could harm our
business and our customers.

Computer malware, viruses, physical or electronic break-ins and similar disruptions could lead to interruption and delays in our services and operations and loss,
misuse or theft of data. Computer malware, viruses, computer hacking and phishing attacks against online networking platforms have become more prevalent and may occur on
our systems in the future. Any attempts by hackers to disrupt our website service or our internal systems, if successful, could harm our business, be expensive to remedy and
damage our reputation or brand. Our network security business disruption insurance may not be sufficient to cover significant expenses and losses related to direct attacks on
our website or internal systems. Efforts to prevent hackers from entering our computer systems are expensive to implement and may limit the functionality of our services.
Though it is difficult to determine what, if any, harm may directly result from any specific interruption or attack, any failure to maintain performance, reliability, security and
availability of our products and services and technical infrastructure may harm our reputation, brand and our ability to attract customers. Any significant disruption to our
website or internal computer systems could result in a loss of customers and could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We have previously experienced, and may in the future experience, service disruptions, outages and other performance problems due to a variety of factors, including
infrastructure changes, third-party service providers, human or software errors and capacity constraints. If our mobile application is unavailable when customers attempt to
access it or it does not load as quickly as they expect, customers may seek other services.

Our platform functions on software that is highly technical and complex and may now or in the future contain undetected errors, bugs, or vulnerabilities. Some errors
in our software code may only be discovered after the code has been deployed. Any errors, bugs or vulnerabilities discovered in our code after deployment, inability to identify
the cause or causes of performance problems within an acceptable period of time or difficultly maintaining and improving the performance of our platform, particularly during
peak usage times, could result in damage to our reputation or brand, loss of revenues, or liability for damages, any of which could adversely affect our business and financial
results.

We expect to continue to make significant investments to maintain and improve the availability of our platform and to enable rapid releases of new features and
products. To the extent that we do not effectively address capacity constraints, upgrade our systems and equipment as needed and continually develop our technology and
network architecture to accommodate actual and anticipated changes in technology, our business and operating results may be harmed. If we do not make the necessary
investments or upgrades to maintain a network capable of operating on current and future generations of broadband cellular network technology, namely the 4G and 5G
systems, our business and operating results could be adversely impacted.

We have a disaster recovery program to transition our operating platform and data to a failover location in the event of a catastrophe and have tested this capability
under controlled circumstances. However, there are several factors ranging from human error to data corruption that could materially lengthen the time our platform is partially
or fully unavailable to our user base as a result of the transition. If our platform is unavailable for a significant period of time as a result of such a transition, especially during
peak periods, we could suffer damage to our reputation or brand, or loss of revenues any of which could adversely affect our business and financial results.
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Growing our customer base depends upon the effective operation of our mobile applications with mobile operating systems, networks and standards that we do not control.

We are dependent on the interoperability of our mobile applications with popular mobile operating systems that we do not control, such as Google’s Android and iOS,
and any changes in such systems that degrade our products’ functionality or give preferential treatment to competitive products could adversely affect the usage of our
applications on mobile devices. Additionally, to deliver high quality mobile products, it is important that our products work well with a range of mobile technologies, systems,
networks and standards that we do not control. We may not be successful in developing relationships with key participants in the mobile industry or in developing products that
operate effectively with these technologies, systems, networks or standards.

If we are unable to keep up with advances in EV technology, we may suffer a decline in our competitive position. The EV industry is characterized by rapid
technological change. If we are unable to keep up with changes in EV technology, our competitive position may deteriorate which would materially and adversely affect our
business, prospects, operating results and financial condition. As technologies change, we plan to upgrade or adapt our EV charging stations and Blink Network software in
order to continue to provide EV charging services with the latest technology. However, due to our limited cash resources, our efforts to do so may be limited. For example, the
EV charging network that we acquired from Ecotality was originally funded in part by the U.S. Department of Energy, which funding is no longer available to us. As a result,
we may be unable to grow, maintain and enhance the network of charging stations that we acquired from Ecotality at the same rate and scale as Ecotality did prior to the
acquisition or at levels comparable our current competitors. Any failure of our charging stations to compete effectively with other manufacturers’ charging stations will harm
our business, operating results and prospects.

We need to manage growth in operations to realize our growth potential and achieve expected revenues; our failure to manage growth could disrupt our operations and
ultimately prevent us from generating the revenues we expect.

In order to take advantage of the growth that we anticipate in our current and potential markets, we believe that we must expand our marketing operations. This
expansion will place a significant strain on our management and our operational, accounting, and information systems. We expect that we will need to continue to improve our
financial controls, operating procedures and management information systems. We will also need to effectively train, motivate and manage our employees. Our failure to
manage our growth could disrupt our operations and ultimately prevent us from generating the revenues we expect.

In order to achieve the above-mentioned targets, the general strategies of our company are to maintain and search for hard-working employees who have innovative
initiatives, as well as to keep a close eye on expansion opportunities through merger and/or acquisition.

Our growth strategy depends in part on our acquiring businesses and expanding our operations, which we may not be able to do due to the risks inherent in acquisitions.

We may pursue strategic acquisitions in the future. Risks in acquisition transactions include difficulties in the integration of acquired businesses into our operations and
control environment, difficulties in assimilating and retaining employees and intermediaries, difficulties in retaining the existing clients of the acquired entities, assumed or
unforeseen liabilities that arise in connection with the acquired businesses, the failure of counterparties to satisfy any obligations to indemnify us against liabilities arising from
the acquired businesses, and unfavorable market conditions that could negatively impact our growth expectations for the acquired businesses. Fully integrating an acquired
company or business into our operations may take a significant amount of time. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in overcoming these risks or any other
problems encountered with acquisitions and other strategic transactions. These risks may prevent us from realizing the expected benefits from acquisitions and could result in
the failure to realize the full economic value of a strategic transaction or the impairment of goodwill and/or intangible assets recognized at the time of an acquisition. These
risks could be heightened if we complete a large acquisition or multiple acquisitions within a short period of time.

We have limited insurance coverage for various liabilities and damages, including potential injuries, and such insurance coverage may not be adequate in a catastrophic
situation.

We hold employer liability insurance generally covering death or work-related injury of employees. We hold product and general liability insurance covering certain
incidents involving third parties that occur on or in the premises of our company. We do not maintain business interruption insurance. Our insurance coverage may be
insufficient to cover any claim for product liability, damage to our fixed assets, inventory or employee injuries. Any liability or damage to, or caused by, our facilities or our
personnel beyond our insurance coverage may result in our incurring substantial costs and a diversion of resources.

Our future success is largely dependent on the performance and continued service of Michael D. Farkas, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
We presently depend to a significant extent upon the experience, abilities and continued services of Michael D. Farkas, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The
loss of Mr. Farkas’ services could prove disruptive to our daily operations, require a disproportionate amount of resources and management attention and could have a material

and adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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QOur future success also depends on our ability to attract and retain highly qualified personnel.

Our future success also depends upon our ability to attract and retain highly qualified personnel. Expansion of our business and the management and operation of our
company will require additional managers and employees with industry experience, and our success will be highly dependent on our ability to attract and retain skilled
management personnel and other employees. There can be no assurance that we will be able to attract or retain highly qualified personnel. As our industry continues to evolve,
competition for skilled personnel with the requisite experience will be significant. This competition may make it more difficult and expensive to attract, hire and retain qualified
managers and employees.

We are in a highly competitive EV charging services industry and there can be no assurance that we will be able to compete with many of our competitors which are larger
and have greater financial resources.

We face strong competition from competitors in the EV charging services industry, including competitors who could duplicate our model. Many of these competitors
may have substantially greater financial, marketing and development resources and other capabilities than us. In addition, there are very few barriers to entry into the market for
our services. There can be no assurance, therefore, that any of our current and future competitors, many of whom may have far greater resources, will not independently
develop services that are substantially equivalent or superior to our services. Therefore, an investment in our company is very risky and speculative due to the competitive
environment in which we may operate.

Our competitors may be able to provide customers with different or greater capabilities or benefits than we can provide in areas such as technical qualifications, past
contract performance, geographic presence and driver price. Further, many of our competitors may be able to utilize substantially greater resources and economies of scale to
develop competing products and technologies, divert sales away from us by winning broader contracts or hire away our employees by offering more lucrative compensation
packages. In the event that the market for EV charging stations expands, we expect that competition will intensify as additional competitors enter the market and current
competitors expand their product lines. In order to secure contracts successfully when competing with larger, well-financed companies, we may be forced to agree to
contractual terms that provide for lower aggregate payments to us over the life of the contract, which could adversely affect our margins. Our failure to compete effectively with
respect to any of these or other factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition or operating results.

We have experienced significant customer concentration in recent periods, and our revenue levels would likely decline if any significant customer failed to purchase
product from us at anticipated levels or auto manufacturers do not extend driver incentive programs.

As of December 31, 2021, accounts receivable from a significant customer were approximately 18% of total accounts receivable. During the year ended December 31,
2021, sales to a significant customer represented 12% of total revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2020, sales to a significant customer represented 25% of total
revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2020, sales to another significant customer represented 11% of total revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2019, sales to
a significant customer represented 11% of product sales.

If a third party asserts that we are infringing upon its intellectual property rights, whether successful or not, it could subject us to costly and time-consuming litigation or
expensive licenses, and our business may be harmed.

The EV and EV charging industries are characterized by the existence of many patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secrets. As we face increasing competition,
the possibility of intellectual property rights claims against us grows. Our technologies may not be able to withstand any third-party claims or rights against their use.
Additionally, although we have acquired from other companies’ proprietary technology covered by patents, we cannot be certain that any such patents will not be challenged,
invalidated or circumvented. Intellectual property infringement claims against us could harm our relationships with our customers, may deter future customers from subscribing
to our services or could expose us to litigation with respect to these claims. Even if we are not a party to any litigation involving a customer and third party, an adverse outcome
in any such litigation could make it more difficult for us to defend our intellectual property in any subsequent litigation in which we are a named party. Any of these results
could harm our brand and operating results.

Any intellectual property rights claim against us or our customers, with or without merit, could be time-consuming, expensive to litigate or settle and could divert
management resources and attention. An adverse determination also could prevent us from offering our services to our customers and may require that we procure or develop
substitute services that do not infringe.

With respect to any intellectual property rights claim against us or our customers, we may have to pay damages or stop using technology found to be in violation of a
third party’s rights. We may have to seek a license for the technology, which may not be available on reasonable terms, may significantly increase our operating expenses or
require us to restrict our business activities in one or more respects. The technology also may not be available for license to us at all. As a result, we may also be required to
develop alternative non-infringing technology, which could require significant effort and expense.
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The success of our business depends in large part on our ability to protect our proprietary information and technology and enforce our intellectual property rights against
third parties.

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, service mark, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality procedures and contractual restrictions, to
establish and protect our proprietary rights, all of which provide only limited protection. We cannot assure you that any patents will issue with respect to our currently pending
patent applications, in a manner that gives us the protection that we seek, if at all, or that any future patents issued to us will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented. Our
currently issued patents and any patents that may issue in the future with respect to pending or future patent applications may not provide sufficiently broad protection or they
may not prove to be enforceable in actions against alleged infringers. Also, we cannot assure you that any future service mark registrations will be issued with respect to
pending or future applications or that any registered service marks will be enforceable or provide adequate protection of our proprietary rights.

We endeavor to enter into agreements with our employees and contractors and agreements with parties with whom we do business to limit access to and disclosure of
our proprietary information. We cannot be certain that the steps we have taken will prevent unauthorized use of our technology or the reverse engineering of our technology.
Moreover, others may independently develop technologies that are competitive to ours or infringe our intellectual property. The enforcement of our intellectual property rights
also depends on our legal actions against these infringers being successful, but we cannot be sure these actions will be successful, even when our rights have been infringed.

Further, effective patent, trademark, service mark, copyright and trade secret protection may not be available in every country in which our services are available over
the Internet. In addition, the legal standards relating to the validity, enforceability and scope of protection of intellectual property rights in EV-related industries are uncertain
and still evolving.

Changes to existing federal, state or international laws or regulations applicable to us could cause an erosion of our current competitive strengths.

Our business is subject to a variety of federal, state and international laws and regulations, including those with respect government incentives promoting fuel
efficiency and alternate forms of energy, electric vehicles and others. These laws and regulations, and the interpretation or application of these laws and regulations, could
change. Any reduction, elimination or discriminatory application of government subsidies and economic incentives because of policy changes, fiscal tightening or other reasons
may result in diminished revenues from government sources and diminished demand for our products. In addition, new laws or regulations affecting our business could be
enacted. These laws and regulations are frequently costly to comply with and may divert a significant portion of management’s attention. If we fail to comply with these
applicable laws or regulations, we could be subject to significant liabilities which could adversely affect our business.

There are many federal, state and international laws that may affect our business, including measures to regulate EVs and charging systems. If we fail to comply with
these applicable laws or regulations, we could be subject to significant liabilities which could adversely affect our business.

There are a number of significant matters under review and discussion with respect to government regulations which may affect business and/or harm our customers,
and thereby adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could have a material adverse effect on our ability to report our financial results on a timely and
accurate basis.

We identified certain design deficiencies in our management and analytical review controls associated with the financial close, revenue and inventory processes. These
deficiencies, individually or in the aggregate, combined with inadequate compensating controls, created a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement to the consolidated
financial statements might not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. We expect to remediate these control deficiencies during 2022.

Our failure to maintain appropriate and effective internal controls over our financial reporting could result in misstatements in our financial statements and potentially
subject us to sanctions or investigations by the SEC or other regulatory authorities and could cause us to delay the filing of required reports with the SEC and our reporting of
financial results. Any of these events could result in a decline in the market price of our common stock. Although we have taken steps to maintain our internal control structure
as required, we cannot guarantee that a control deficiency will not result in a misstatement in the future.

See Item 9A — Controls and Procedures — Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting for further information on material weaknesses.
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If our estimates or judgments relating to our critical accounting policies prove to be incorrect, our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
affected.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable
under the circumstances, as discussed under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” included elsewhere in this Annual
Report and in our consolidated financial statements included herein. The results of these estimates form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets,
liabilities and equity, and the amount of revenue and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Significant assumptions and estimates used in preparing our
consolidated financial statements include those related to revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory reserves, impairment of goodwill, indefinite-lived
and long-lived assets, pension and other post-retirement benefits, product warranty, valuation allowances for deferred tax assets, valuation of common stock warrants, and
share-based compensation. Our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected if our assumptions change or if actual circumstances differ from those in
our assumptions, which could cause our results of operations to fall below the expectations of securities analysts and investors, resulting in a decline in the price of our common
stock.

Risks Associated with Our Securities
Our common stock price has fluctuated in recent years and is likely to fluctuate significantly from its current level.

The market price of shares of our common stock has fluctuated substantially in recent years and is likely to fluctuate significantly from its current level. During the 52-
week period prior to the filing of this Annual Report, for example, the market closing price of our shares has ranged from a low of $17.93 per share to a high of $49.00 per
share. Future announcements concerning the introduction of new products, services or technologies or changes in product pricing policies by us or our competitors or changes
in earnings estimates by analysts, among other factors, could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially. Also, stock markets have experienced
extreme price and volume volatility in the last year. This volatility has had a substantial effect on the market prices of securities of many public companies for reasons
frequently unrelated to the operating performance of the specific companies. These broad market fluctuations may also cause declines in the market price of our common stock.
Investors seeking short-term liquidity should be aware that we cannot assure that the stock price will continue at these or any higher levels.

A possible “short squeeze” due to a sudden increase in demand of our common stock that largely exceeds supply may lead to further price volatility in our common stock.

Investors may purchase shares of our common stock to hedge existing exposure in our common stock or to speculate on the price of our common stock. Speculation on
the price of our common stock may involve long and short exposures. To the extent aggregate short exposure exceeds the number of shares of our common stock available for
purchase in the open market, investors with short exposure may have to pay a premium to repurchase our common stock for delivery to lenders of our common stock. Those
repurchases may in turn, dramatically increase the price of our common stock until investors with short exposure are able to purchase additional shares of common stock to
cover their short position. This is often referred to as a “short squeeze.” A short squeeze could lead to volatile price movements in shares of our common stock that are not
directly correlated to the performance or prospects of our company and once investors purchase the shares necessary to cover their short position the price of our common stock
may decline. We believe that the recent volatility in our common stock may be due, in part, to short squeezes that may be temporarily increasing the price of our common stock,
which could result in a loss of some or all of your investment in our common stock.

We have a significant number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise or conversion of outstanding warrants, convertible preferred stock and stock options, and
the issuance of such shares could have a significant dilutive impact on our stockholders.

As of March 10, 2022, we had outstanding warrants to purchase 3,264,641 shares of common stock, and outstanding stock options to purchase 977,473 shares of
common stock. In addition, our Articles of Incorporation permit us to issue up to approximately 400 million additional shares of common stock. Thus, we have the ability to
issue a substantial number of additional shares of common stock in the future, which would dilute the percentage ownership held by existing stockholders.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could cause the market price of our common stock to decline. If there are more
shares of common stock offered for sale than buyers are willing to purchase, then the market price of our common stock may decline to a market price at which buyers are

willing to purchase the offered shares of common stock and sellers remain willing to sell the shares.
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Our executive officers and directors, including our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and his affiliates, possess significant voting power with respect to our
common stock, which will limit your influence on corporate matters.

As of March 10, 2022, our directors and executive officers collectively beneficially owned approximately 16% of our outstanding shares of common stock, including
the beneficial ownership of Michael D. Farkas and his affiliates of approximately 15% of our outstanding shares of common stock.

As a result, our insiders have the ability to significantly influence our management and affairs through the election and removal of our Board and all other matters
requiring stockholder approval, including any future merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets. This concentrated voting power could discourage
others from initiating any potential merger, takeover or other change-of-control transaction that may otherwise be beneficial to our stockholders. Further, this concentrated
control will limit the practical effect of your influence over our business and affairs, through any stockholder vote or otherwise. Any of these effects could depress the price of
our common stock.

Our Articles of Incorporation grant our board the power to issue additional shares of common and preferred stock and to designate additional series of preferred stock, all
without stockholder approval.

We are authorized to issue 540,000,000 shares of capital stock, of which, 40,000,000 shares are authorized as preferred stock. Our Board, without any action by our
stockholders, may designate and issue shares of preferred stock in such series as it deems appropriate and establish the rights, preferences and privileges of such shares,
including dividends, liquidation and voting rights, provided it is consistent with Nevada law.

The rights of holders of our preferred stock that may be issued could be superior to the rights of holders of our shares of common stock. The designation and issuance
of shares of capital stock having preferential rights could adversely affect other rights appurtenant to shares of our common stock. Further, any issuances of additional stock
(common or preferred) will dilute the percentage of ownership interest of then-current holders of our capital stock and may dilute our book value per share.

Certain provisions of our corporate governing documents and Nevada law could discourage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisition at a premium price.

Certain provisions of our organizational documents and Nevada law could discourage potential acquisition proposals, delay or prevent a change in control of our
company, or limit the price that investors may be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock. For example, our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws permit us
to issue, without any further vote or action by stockholders, up to 40,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and, with respect to each series, to fix the number
of shares constituting the series and the designation of the series, the voting powers (if any) of the shares of the series, and the preferences and relative, participating, optional,
and other special rights, if any, and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions of the shares of the series.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research reports about our business, our share
price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will, to some extent, depend on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business.
We do not have any control over these analysts. If one or more of the analysts who cover us from time to time should downgrade our shares or change their opinion of our
business prospects, our share price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of our company or fails to regularly publish reports on us, we could
lose visibility in the financial markets, which could cause our share price or trading volume to decline.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future, and you must rely on increases in the market price of our common stock for
returns on your investment.

For the foreseeable future, we intend to retain any earnings to finance the development and expansion of our business, and we do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends on our common stock. Accordingly, stockholders and investors must be prepared to rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation to earn an investment
return, which may never occur. Stockholders and investors seeking cash dividends should not purchase our common stock. Any determination to pay dividends in the future
will be made at the discretion of our Board and will depend on our results of operations, financial condition, contractual restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable law and
other factors the Board deems relevant.

Our business could be negatively affected as a result of actions of activist shareholders, and such activism could impact the trading value of our securities.

Shareholders may, from time to time, engage in proxy solicitations or advance shareholder proposals, or otherwise attempt to effect changes and assert influence on
our Board of Directors and management. Activist campaigns that contest or conflict with our strategic direction or seek changes in the composition of our Board of Directors
could have an adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition. A proxy contest would require us to incur significant legal and advisory fees, proxy solicitation
expenses and administrative and associated costs and require significant time and attention by our Board of Directors and management, diverting their attention from the pursuit
of our business strategy. Any perceived uncertainties as to our future direction and control, our ability to execute on our strategy, or changes to the composition of our Board of
Directors or senior management team arising from a proxy contest could lead to the perception of a change in the direction of our business or instability which may result in the
loss of potential business opportunities, make it more difficult to pursue our strategic initiatives, or limit our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel and business
partners, any of which could adversely affect our business and operating results. If individuals are ultimately elected to our Board of Directors with a specific agenda, it may
adversely affect our ability to effectively implement our business strategy and create additional value for our shareholders. We may choose to initiate, or may become subject
to, litigation as a result of a proxy contest or matters arising from a proxy contest, which would serve as a further distraction to our Board of Directors and management and
would require us to incur significant additional costs. In addition, actions such as those described above could cause significant fluctuations in our stock price based upon
temporary or speculative market perceptions or other factors that do not necessarily reflect the underlying fundamentals and prospects of our business.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We maintain our principal offices at 605 Lincoln Road, sthp loor, Miami Beach, Florida 33139.

On January 22, 2021, we closed on the purchase of approximately 10,000 square feet of office condominium space which is our principal office. This new office space
is our corporate headquarters.

In addition, we lease office space in Tempe, Arizona; Los Angeles, California; Amsterdam, the Netherlands; Antwerp, Belgium; and Israel from which we operate our
current business.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We have been party to certain legal proceedings that have arisen in the ordinary course of our business and have been incidental to our business. Certain of the claims
that have been made against us allege, among other things, breach of contract or breach of express and implied warranties with regard to our products. Although litigation is
inherently uncertain, and we believe we are insured against many such instances, based on past experience and the information currently available, management does not
believe that any currently pending and threatened litigation or claims will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, liquidity or results of operations. However,
future events or circumstances, currently unknown to management, will determine whether the resolution of pending or threatened litigation or claims will ultimately have a
material effect on our financial position, liquidity or results of operations in any future reporting periods.

On August 24, 2020, a purported securities class action lawsuit, captioned Bush v. Blink Charging Co. et al., Case No. 20-cv-23527, was filed in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of Florida against the Company, Michael Farkas (Blink’s Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer), and Michael Rama
(Blink’s Chief Financial Officer) (the “Bush Lawsuit”). On September 1, 2020, another purported securities class action lawsuit, captioned Vittoria v. Blink Charging Co. et al.,
Case No. 20-cv-23643, was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida against the same defendants and seeking to recover the same alleged
damages (the “Vittoria Lawsuit”). On October 1, 2020, the court consolidated the Vittoria Lawsuit with the Bush Lawsuit and on December 21, 2020 the court appointed
Tianyou Wu, Alexander Yu and H. Marc Joseph to serve as the Co-Lead Plaintiffs. The Co-Lead Plaintiffs filed an Amended Complaint on February 19, 2021. The Amended
Complaint alleges, among other things, that the defendants made false or misleading statements about the size and functionality of the Blink Network, and asserts claims under
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Amended Complaint does not quantify damages but seeks to recover damages on behalf of investors who
purchased or otherwise acquired Blink’s common stock between March 6, 2020 and August 19, 2020. On April 20, 2021, Blink and the other defendants filed a motion to
dismiss the Amended Complaint, which has now been fully briefed and is ready for review. The Company believes that the claim has no merit, and wholly and completely
disputes the allegations therein. The Company has retained legal counsel in order to defend the action vigorously. The Company has not recorded an accrual related to this
matter as of December 31, 2021 as was determined that any such loss contingency was either not probable or estimable.

On September 15, 2020, a shareholder derivative lawsuit, captioned Klein (derivatively on behalf of Blink Charging Co.) v. Farkas et al., Case No. 20- 19815CAO01,
was filed in Miami-Dade County Circuit Court seeking to pursue claims belonging to the Company against Blink’s Board of Directors and Michael Rama (the “Klein
Lawsuit”). Blink is named as a nominal defendant. The Klein Lawsuit asserts that the Director defendants caused Blink to make the statements that are at issue in the securities
class action and, as a result, the Company will incur costs defending against the consolidated Bush Lawsuit and other unidentified investigations. The Klein Lawsuit asserts
claims against the Director defendants for breach of fiduciary duties and corporate waste and against all of the defendants for unjust enrichment. Klein did not quantify the
alleged damages in his complaint, but he seeks damages sustained by the Company as a result of the defendants’ breaches of fiduciary duties, corporate governance changes,
restitution, and disgorgement of profits from the defendants and attorneys’ fees and other litigation expenses. The parties agreed to temporarily stay the Klein Lawsuit until
there is a ruling on the motion to dismiss filed in the consolidated Bush Lawsuit. The Company has not recorded an accrual related to this matter as of December 31, 2021 as
was determined that any such loss contingency was either not probable or estimable.
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On December 22, 2020, JMJ Financial v. Blink Charging Co. was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, seeking to pursue
claims for alleged breach of contract and conversion (the “JMJ Lawsuit”). The complaint alleges that JMJ Financial purchased warrants to acquire 147,057 shares of Blink
common stock on or about April 9, 2018, which permitted a cashless exercise, and that on November 23, 2020, JMJ Financial delivered a notice of warrant exercise to Blink
and that the Company failed to deliver the shares. The claim alleges breach of contract and conversion; the plaintiff requests damages of at least $4,200,000, attorneys’ fees,
and specific enforcement requiring delivery of the shares. In January 2021, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with JMJ under which the parties exchanged
releases and the litigation was discontinued with prejudice. The Company did not make a cash payment in the settlement, but rather delivered 66,000 shares of stock,
representing a modification of the initial warrant exercise but did not result in the recognition of any incremental expense.

On December 23, 2020, another shareholder derivative action, captioned Bhatia (derivatively on behalf of Blink Charging Co.) v. Farkas et al., Case No. 20-
27632CA01, was filed in Miami-Dade County Circuit Court against the same defendants sued in the Klein Lawsuit and asserting similar claims, as well as additional claims
relating to the Company’s nomination, appointment and hiring of minorities and women and the Company’s decision to retain its outside auditor (the “Bhatia Lawsuit”). On
February 17, 2021, the parties agreed to consolidate the Klein and Bhatia actions, which the court consolidated under the caption In re Blink Charging Company Stockholder
Derivative Litigation, Lead Case No. 2020-019815-CA-01. The parties also agreed to keep in place the temporary stay. The court subsequently vacated the consolidation order
and explained the parties should first file a motion to transfer, which the parties have done. The Company believes that the claim has no merit, and wholly and completely
disputes the allegations therein. The Company has retained legal counsel in order to defend the action vigorously. The Company has not recorded an accrual related to this
matter as of December 31, 2021 as was determined that any such loss contingency was either not probable or estimable.

On February 12, 2021, another shareholder derivative lawsuit, captioned Wolery (derivatively on behalf of Blink Charging Co.) v. Buffalino et al., Case No. A-21-
829395-C, was filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in Clark County, Nevada seeking to pursue claims belonging to the Company against Blink’s Board of Directors (the
“Wolery Lawsuit”). Blink is named as a nominal defendant. The Wolery complaint alleges that the amount of restricted stock awarded to Blink’s outside directors in December
2020 exceeded the amounts permitted by Blink’s incentive compensation plan. The complaint asks the court to rescind the excess restricted stock awards, as well as other relief.
On September 15, 2021, the parties entered into a term sheet in which they agreed to settle the claims subject to the court’s approval. On January 25, 2022 the court
preliminarily approved the settlement and subsequently scheduled a final hearing for April 12, 2022. If the court gives final approval to the settlement, the Company has agreed
to make certain changes to its compensation practices for its directors and officers, including, among other things, eliminating the practice of making cash payments to directors
to cover expected income taxes on stock grants and placing a $200,000 annual limit for two years on the combined stock and cash Awards to outside directors. The defendants
do not admit any liability or wrongdoing in the settlement and will not make any cash payment as part of the settlement, but the Company will be responsible for paying the
costs to give notice of the settlement to the Company’s sharecholders and to pay $190,000 in attorney’s fees to the plaintiff’s counsel which was accrued for as of December 31,
2021.

On February 7, 2022, another shareholder derivative lawsuit, captioned McCauley (derivatively on behalf of Blink Charging Co.) v. Farkas et al., Case No. A-22-
847894-C, was filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in Clark County, Nevada, seeking to pursue claims belonging to the Company against six of Blink’s directors and
Michael Rama (the “McCauley Lawsuit”). Blink is named as a nominal defendant. The complaint filed in the McCauley Lawsuit asserts similar allegations to the Klein Lawsuit
relating to the statements at issue in the securities class action and asserts claims for breach of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment. The McCauley Lawsuit seeks both
injunctive and monetary relief from the individual defendants, as well as an award of attorneys’ fees and costs. The Company has not recorded an accrual related to this matter
as of December 31, 2021 as was determined that any such loss contingency was either not probable or estimable.

On November 12, 2021, our Board of Directors approved a Confidential Settlement and Release Agreement with Aviv Hillo, our General Counsel. In consideration for
Mr. Hillo releasing any and all claims of harassment involving a former executive, we issued Mr. Hillo 60,000 shares of our common stock in full settlement of the matter.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.

Market Information

Our shares of common stock and warrants to purchase common stock are traded on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbols “BLNK” and “BLNKW,”
respectively.

Security Holders
As of March 10, 2022, we had approximately 293 stockholders of record of our common stock and approximately 547 beneficial owners of our common stock.
The closing price of our common stock on March 10, 2022 was $25.13 per share, as reported by The Nasdaq Capital Market.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
Dividend Policy

To date, we have not paid any dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying any such dividends in the foreseeable future. The declaration and payment
of dividends on the common stock is at the discretion of our Board and will depend on, among other things, our operating results, financial condition, contractual restrictions,
restrictions imposed by applicable law and other factors the Board may deem relevant. We currently expect to use all available funds to finance the future development and
expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

ITEM 6. [RESERVED]
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion and analysis of the results of operations and financial condition for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes to those consolidated financial statements that are included elsewhere in this Annual Report. This section
generally discusses the results of our operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. For a discussion of the year ended
December 31, 2020 compared to the year ended December 31, 2019, please refer to Part I, Item 7, “Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March
31, 2021. Our discussion includes forward-looking statements based upon current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties, such as our plans, objectives, expectations
and intentions. Actual results and the timing of events could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors. See
“Forward-Looking Statements.”

At Blink Charging, our highest priority remains the safety, health and well-being of our employees, their families and our communities and we remain committed to
serving the needs of our customers and business partners. The Covid-19 pandemic is a highly fluid situation and it is not currently possible for us to reasonably estimate the
impact it may have on our financial and operating results. We will continue to evaluate the impact of the ongoing presence of Covid-19 and multiple Covid-19 variants on our
business as we learn more and the impact of Covid-19 on our industry becomes clearer.

Any one or more of these uncertainties, risks and other influences, could materially affect our results of operations and whether forward-looking statements made by
us ultimately prove to be accurate. Our actual results, performance and achievements could differ materially from those expressed or implied in these forward-looking
statements. Except as required by federal securities laws, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether from new
information, future events or otherwise.

Dollars are reported in thousands.
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Overview

We are a leading owner, operator, and provider of electric vehicle (“EV”) charging equipment and networked EV charging services in the rapidly growing U.S. and
international markets for Evs. Blink offers residential and commercial EV charging equipment and services, enabling EV drivers to recharge at various location types. Blink’s
principal line of products and services is its nationwide Blink EV charging network (the “Blink Network™) and Blink EV charging equipment, also known as electric vehicle
supply equipment (“EVSE”) and other EV-related services. The Blink Network is a proprietary, cloud-based system that operates, maintains, and manages Blink charging
stations and handles the associated charging data, back-end operations, and payment processing. The Blink Network provides property owners, managers, parking companies,
and state and municipal entities (“Property Partners”), among other types of commercial customers, with cloud-based services that enable the remote monitoring and
management of EV charging stations. The Blink Network also provides EV drivers with vital station information, including station location, availability, and fees (if
applicable).

In order to capture more revenues derived from providing EV charging equipment to commercial customers and to help differentiate Blink in the EV infrastructure
market, Blink offers Property Partners a comprehensive range of solutions for EV charging equipment and services that generally fall into one of the business models below,
differentiated by who bears the costs of installation, equipment, maintenance, and the percentage of revenue shared.

e In our Blink-owned turnkey business model, Blink incurs the costs of the charging equipment and installation. We own and operate the EV charging station and
provide connectivity of the charging station to the Blink Network. In this model, which favors recurring revenues, Blink incurs most costs associated with the EV
charging stations; thus, Blink retains substantially all EV charging revenues after deducting network connectivity and processing fees.

o In our Blink-owned hybrid business model, Blink incurs the costs of the charging equipment while the Property Partner incurs the costs of installation. We own and
operate the EV charging station and provide connectivity of the charging station to the Blink Network. In this model, the Property Partner incurs the installation costs
associated with the EV station; thus, Blink shares a more generous portion of the EV charging revenues with the Property Partner generated from the EV charging
station after deducting network connectivity and processing fees.

e In our host-owned business model, the Property Partner purchases, owns and operates the Blink EV charging station and incurs the installation costs. Blink works with
the Property Partner, providing site recommendations, connectivity to the Blink Network, payment processing, and optional maintenance services. In this model, the
Property Partner retains and keeps all the EV charging revenues after deducting network connectivity and processing fees.

e In our Blink-as-a-Service model, Blink owns and operates the EV charging station, while the Property Partner incurs the installation costs. The Property Partner pays
to Blink a fixed monthly fee and keeps all the EV charging revenues after deducting network connectivity and processing fees.

Blink also operates a ride-sharing program through the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, BlueLA Rideshare, LLC and the City of Los Angeles which allows
customers the ability to rent electric vehicles through a subscription service.

As part of Blink’s mission to facilitate the adoption of EVs through the deployment and operation of EV charging infrastructure globally, we are dedicated to slowing
climate change by reducing greenhouse gas emissions caused by road vehicles. With the goal of leading the build out of EV charging infrastructure and of maximizing Blink’s
share of the EV charging market, we have established strategic commercial, municipal and retail partnerships across industry verticals and encompassing numerous
transit/destination locations, including airports, auto dealers, healthcare/medical, hotels, mixed-use, municipal sites, multifamily residential and condos, parks and recreation
areas, parking lots, religious institutions, restaurants, retailers, schools and universities, stadiums, supermarkets, transportation hubs, and workplace locations.

As of December 31, 2021, since our inception and excluding Blue Corner, we sold, deployed or acquired through acquisitions 20,684 chargers, of which, 7,366 were
connected to the Blink Network (4,611 Level 2 publicly accessible commercial chargers, 1,536 Level 2 private commercial chargers, 91 DC Fast Charging EV publicly
accessible chargers, 34 DC Fast Charging EV private chargers, and 1,095 residential Level 2 Blink EV chargers), 920 Level 2 chargers and 45 DC Fast Chargers are pending to
be commissioned to the Blink Network, and the remaining 12,353 were non-networked, on other networks or international sales or deployments (159 Level 2 commercial
chargers, 6 DC Fast Charging chargers, 10,099 residential Level 2 Blink EV chargers, 1,034 sold to other US networks, 990 sold internationally and 64 deployed
internationally). The charger units herein are net of swap-out or replacement units.

In addition, as of February 3, 2022, since its inception, our recently acquired subsidiary, Blue Corner, sold or deployed 11,677 independent charge points, all of which
were on Blue Corner’s network, which was comprised of 4,566 Level 2 publicly accessible commercial independent charge points, 19 DC Fast Charging publicly assessable
commercial independent charge points and 7,092 private L2, private DC Fast Charging and private residential independent charge points. The charger units reported herein are
net of swap-out or replacement units.
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As reflected in our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2021, we had a cash balance of $174,795, working capital of $176,303 and an accumulated
deficit of $242,470.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, we incurred net losses of $55,119, $17,846 and $9,649, respectively. We have not yet achieved
profitability.

Recent Developments
New Product and Service Offerings

In January 2022, we announced the next generation of Level 2 chargers to enhance our offering for the residential and the Fleet multifamily residential markets. The
HQ 200 Basic is a non-networked residential product and the HQ 200 Smart is a networked residential product. The MQ 200 product is an ideal product for the Fleet and
multifamily residential markets. Furthermore, in January 2022, Blink announced the Fleet Management Portal targeted at commercial, municipal and federal fleets that are
interested in electrifying their fleets for planning, managing, optimizing their fleets for departure and energy costs.

May 2021 Acquisition of Blue Corner

On May 10, 2021, pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement dated April 21, 2021, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary in the Netherlands, Blink
Holdings, B.V. closed on the acquisition from the shareholders of Blue Corner NV, a Belgian company (“Blue Corner”), of all of the outstanding capital stock of Blue Corner.
Headquartered in Belgium, with sales representative offices in several other European cities, Blue Corner owns and operates an EV charging network across Europe. The
acquisition of Blue Corner was made to enter the European market and provide an opportunity to expand the Company’s footprint in this region. The purchase price for the
acquisition of all of Blue Corner’s outstanding capital stock was approximately $23,775 (or €20,000), consisting of approximately $22,985 (or €19,000) in cash and
approximately $790 (€700) represented by 32,382 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Consideration Shares”). The fair value of the Consideration Shares was
calculated based on the average price of the Company’s common stock during the 30 consecutive trading days immediately preceding the closing date of the Share Purchase
Agreement, which equaled $37.66 (or €30.88) per share, reduced by a discount for illiquidity due to the 12 month lockup that exists on any sales or transfers. The Company
executed management agreements with key Blue Corner personnel, including equity incentive packages consisting of additional shares of the Company’s common stock which
is compensatory and not included in the purchase price for this acquisition. The Company entered into an escrow agreement pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, under
which the Company paid approximately $2,100 (€1,725) of the purchase price into an escrow account for a period of up to 18 months following the closing to cover any losses
or damages the Company may incur by reason of any misrepresentation or breach of warranty by Blue Corner under the Share Purchase Agreement.

January 2021 Underwritten Public Offering

In January 2021, we completed an underwritten registered public offering of 5,660,000 shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $41.00 per share. We
received approximately $232,100 in gross proceeds from the public offering, and approximately $221,400 in net proceeds after deducting the underwriting discount and
offering expenses paid by us. Our Chief Executive Officer and one other officer participated in the offering by selling a total of 550,000 shares of our common stock from the
exercise of the underwriter’s option to purchase additional shares. The public offering was made pursuant to our automatic shelf registration statement on Form S-3 filed with
the SEC on January 6, 2021 and prospectus supplement dated January 7, 2021. Barclays Capital Inc. served as the lead book-running manager of the offering.

Government Grants

Blink has established a full-time dedicated team to identify and process federal and state funding opportunities for EV charging infrastructure development. Blink is
committed to pursuing EV charging development grant opportunities in all 50 states. Sources of funding include funding from the United States Department of Energy, the
United States Department of Transportation, the VW mitigation settlement trust fund, and funding initiatives from utility service providers. During the year ended December
31, 2021, we were awarded approximately $26,000 in grants from federal and state agencies. Such awards are expected to be recognized as revenue in future periods based on
the grant contract or service life of the chargers.

Note on Covid-19

The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted global stock markets and economies. We closely monitor the impact of the continuing presence of Covid-19 and recently
identified variants of Covid-19 which appear to be more transmissible and contagious than previous Covid-19 variants and have caused an increase in the number of Covid-19
cases globally. We have taken and continue to take precautions to ensure the safety of our employees, customers and business partners, while assuring business continuity and
reliable service and support to our customers. We continue to receive orders for our products, although some shipments of equipment have been temporarily delayed. The global
chip shortage and supply chain disruption has caused some delays in equipment orders from our contract manufacturer. As federal, state and local economies begin to return to
pre-pandemic levels, we expect demand for charging station usage to increase, however, we are unable to predict the extent of such recovery due to the uncertainty of Covid-19.
As a result, we are unable to predict the ultimate impact of equipment order delays, chip shortage and continuous presence of Covid-19 will have on our business, future results
of operations, financial position, or cash flows. We intend to continue to monitor the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on our business closely. For a further discussion of the
risks, uncertainties and actions taken in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, refer to Item 1A “Risk Factors”.
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Key Factors Affecting Operating Results
We believe our performance and future success depend on several factors, including those discussed below:

Competition - The EV charging equipment and service market is highly competitive, and we expect the market to become increasingly competitive as new entrants
enter this growing market. Our products and services compete on product performance and features, the total cost of ownership, sales capabilities, financial stability, brand
recognition, product reliability, and the installed base’s size. Existing competitors may expand their product offerings and sales strategies, and new competitors may enter the
market. If our market share decreases due to increased competition, its revenue and ability to generate profits in the future may be impacted.

Growth - Our growth is highly dependent upon the adoption by consumers of EVs, and we are subject to a risk of any reduced demand for EVs. The market for
alternative fuel vehicles is relatively new, rapidly evolving, characterized by rapidly changing technologies, price competition, additional competitors, evolving government
regulation and industry standards, frequent new vehicle announcements, long development cycles for EV original equipment manufacturers, and changing consumer demands
and behaviors. Factors that may influence the purchase and use of alternative fuel vehicles, and specifically EVs, include perceptions about EV quality, safety (in particular
with respect to lithium-ion battery packs), design, performance and cost; the limited range over which EVs may be driven on a single battery charge and concerns about running
out of power while in use; improvements in the fuel economy of the internal combustion engine; consumers’ desire and ability to purchase a luxury automobile or one that is
perceived as exclusive; the environmental consciousness of consumers; volatility in the cost of oil and gasoline; consumers’ perceptions of the dependency of the United States
on oil from unstable or hostile countries and the impact of international conflicts; government regulations and economic incentives promoting fuel efficiency and alternate
forms of energy; access to charging stations, standardization of EV charging systems and consumers’ perceptions about convenience and cost to charge an EV; and the
availability of tax and other governmental incentives to purchase and operate EVs or future regulation requiring increased use of nonpolluting vehicles. If the market for EVs
does not gain broad market acceptance or develops slower than we expect, our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results may be adversely affected.

Regulations - Our business is subject to a variety of federal, state and international laws and regulations, including those with respect government incentives promoting
fuel efficiency and alternate forms of energy, electric vehicles and others. These laws and regulations, and the interpretation or application of these laws and regulations, could
change. Any reduction, elimination or discriminatory application of government subsidies and economic incentives because of policy changes, fiscal tightening or other reasons
may result in diminished revenues from government sources and diminished demand for our products. In addition, new laws or regulations affecting our business could be
enacted. These laws and regulations are frequently costly to comply with and may divert a significant portion of management’s attention. Changes to these applicable laws or
regulations could affect business and/or harm our customers, thereby adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Expansion through Acquisitions - We may pursue strategic domestic and international acquisitions to expand our operations. Risks in acquisition transactions include
difficulties in the integration of acquired businesses into our operations and control environment, difficulties in assimilating and retaining employees and intermediaries,
difficulties in retaining the existing clients of the acquired entities, assumed or unforeseen liabilities that arise in connection with the acquired businesses, the failure of
counterparties to satisfy any obligations to indemnify us against liabilities arising from the acquired businesses, and unfavorable market conditions that could negatively impact
our growth expectations for the acquired businesses. Fully integrating an acquired company or business into our operations may take a significant amount of time. If we are
unable to integrate or pursue strategic acquisitions, our financial condition and results of operations would be negatively impacted.
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2021 Compared Year Ended December 31, 2020

For The Years Ended
December 31,
2021 2020 Difference $ Difference%
Revenues:
Product sales 15,480 4,432 $ 11,048 249%
Charging service revenue - company- owned charging stations 2,978 773 2,205 285%
Network fees 667 345 322 93%
Warranty 220 129 91 71%
Grant and rebate 400 22 378 1718%
Ride-sharing services 769 168 601 358%
Other 426 362 64 18%
Total Revenues 20,940 6,231 14,709 236%
Cost of Revenues:
Cost of product sales 11,670 2,860 8,810 308%
Cost of charging services - company-owned charging stations 707 171 536 313%
Host provider fees 1,386 265 1,121 423%
Network costs 454 516 (62) -12%
Warranty and repairs and maintenance 892 331 561 169%
Ride-sharing services 1,458 226 1,232 545%
Depreciation and amortization 1,531 345 1,186 344%
Total Cost of Revenues 18,098 4,714 13,384 284%
Gross Profit 2,842 1,517 1,325 87%
Operating Expenses:
Compensation 38,389 12,718 25,671 202%
General and administrative expenses 10,516 4,047 6,469 160%
Other operating expenses 9,606 2,566 7,040 274%
Total Operating Expenses 58,511 19,331 39,180 203%
Loss From Operations (55,669) (17,814) (37,855) 213%
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income 9 16 7 -44%
Dividend and interest income 294 - 294 N/A
Loss on foreign exchange (124) - (124) N/A
Gain on forgiveness of PPP loan 856 - 856 N/A
Gain on settlement of accounts payable, net - 22 (22) -100%
Change in fair value of derivative and other accrued liabilities 69 (173) 242 -140%
Other (expense) income, net (554) 103 (657) -638%
Total Other Income (Expense) 550 (32) 582 -1819%
Net Loss (55,119) (17,846)  $ (37,273) 209%
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Revenues
Total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $20,940, compared to $6,231 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $14,709, or 236%.

Revenue from product sales was $15,480 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $4,432 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $11,048,
or 249%. This increase was attributable to increased sales of commercial chargers, DC fast chargers and residential chargers when compared to the same period in 2020 as well
as product sales of $5,285 from Blue Corner which we acquired in May 2021.

Charging service revenue for Company-owned and operated charging stations was $2,978 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $773 for the year ended
December 31, 2020, an increase of $2,205, or 285%. The increase is due to the increase in utilization of chargers, an increased number of chargers on the Blink network as well
as charging service revenues of $1,574 from Blue Corner which we acquired in May 2021.

Network fee revenue was $667 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $345 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $322, or 93%. The
increase was attributable to increases in host owned units as well as billings and invoicing to Property Partners during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2020.

Warranty revenue was $220 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $129 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $91, or 71% The increase
was primarily attributable to an increase in warranty contracts sold for year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. As of December 31,
2021, we recorded a liability of $10 which represents the estimated cost of existing backlog of known warranty cases.

Grant and rebate revenues were $400 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $22 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $378, or 1,718%.
Grant and rebates relating to equipment and the related installation are deferred and amortized in a manner consistent with the depreciation expense of the related assets over
their useful lives. The 2021 revenue was primarily related to recognition of $167 in various state grants associated with the installation of chargers during the year ended
December 31, 2021 and the amortization of previous years’ grants and grants/rebates of $218 from Blue Corner which we acquired in May 2021.

Ride-sharing services revenues were $769 during the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $168 during the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of
$601, or 358%. These revenues are derived from ride-sharing subscription services through a program with the City of Los Angeles, which was associated with the acquisition
of BlueLA in September 2020. Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2020 represents revenues from the date of acquisition in September 2020 to December 31, 2020.

Other revenue increased by $64, or 18%, to $426 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $362 for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was
primarily attributable to Low Carbon Fuel Standard (“LCFS”) revenues generated during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the same period in 2020. We generate
these revenues based on credits from the electricity utilized by our electric car charging stations as a byproduct from our charging services in the states of California and
Oregon and the market value of the credits which declined in 2021 compared to 2020.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues primarily consists of electricity reimbursements, revenue share payments to our Property Partner hosts, the cost of charging stations sold, connectivity
charges provided by Telco and other network providers, warranty, repairs and maintenance services, and depreciation of our installed charging stations. Cost of revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2021 were $18,098 as compared to $4,714 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $13,384, or 284%, of which, $6,201 was from Blue
Corner which we acquired in May 2021.

There is a degree of variability in our costs in relation to our revenues from period to period, primarily due to:

e clectricity reimbursements that are unique to those Property Partner host agreements which provide for such reimbursements;

revenue share payments are predicated on the contractual obligation under the property partner agreement and the revenue generated by the applicable
chargers;

cost of charging stations sold is predicated on the mix of types of charging stations and parts sold during the period;

network costs are fixed in nature based on the number of chargers connected to the telco network regardless of whether the charger generates revenue;
provisions for excess and obsolete inventory; and

warranty and repairs and maintenance expenses are based on both the number of service cases completed during the period.

27




Cost of product sales increased by $8,810, or 308%, to $11,670 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $2,860 for the year ended December 31, 2020.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in product sales of commercial chargers, DC fast chargers and home residential chargers during the year ended December 31,
2021 compared to the same period in 2020 as well as cost of product sales of $4,750 from Blue Corner which we acquired in May 2021. Furthermore, the year ended December
31, 2021 included a reduction in the provision for excess and obsolete inventory of $105 relating primarily to the increased sales of residential home charger units. The year
ended December 31, 2020 included a decrease in the provision for excess and obsolete inventory of $12.

Cost of charging services for company-owned charging stations (electricity reimbursements) increased by $536, or 313%, to $707 for the year ended December 31,
2021, compared to $171 for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase in 2021 was attributable to the mix of charging stations generating charging service revenues
subject to electricity reimbursement

Property Partner host fees increased by $1,121, or 423%, to $1,386 during the years ended December 31, 2021 as compared to $265 during the year ended December
31, 2020. This increase was a result of the mix of chargers generating revenue and their corresponding revenue share percentage payments to Property Partner hosts per their
agreements.

Network costs decreased by $62, or 12%, to $454 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $516 for the year ended December 31, 2020. The decrease was
primarily a result of non-capitalizable costs incurred during the 2020 period related to upgrades of our network systems.

Warranty and repairs and maintenance costs increased by $561, or 169%, to $892 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $331 for the year ended
December 31, 2020. The increase in 2021 was attributable to significant efforts expended to reduce the backlog in warranty and repairs and maintenance cases. As of December
31, 2021, we recorded a liability of $73 which represents the estimated cost of existing backlog of known warranty cases.

Cost of ride-sharing services was $1,458 during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to $226 during the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of
$1,232, or 545%. These costs are from ride-sharing subscription services through a program with the City of Los Angeles, which was associated with the acquisition of BlueLA
in September 2020. Cost of ride-sharing services for the year ended December 31, 2020 represents expenditures from the date of acquisition in September 2020 to December
31, 2020.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $1,186, or 344%, to $1,531 for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $345 for the year ended
December 31, 2020. The increase in depreciation expense was attributable to an increase in the number of EV charging stations including those from the Blue Corner
acquisition which we acquired in May 2021 and vehicles purchased in December 2020 for the acquired BlueLA operations.

Operating Expenses

Compensation expense increased by $25,671, or 202%, to $38,389 (consisting of approximately $22,000 of cash compensation and approximately $16,400 of non-
cash compensation) for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to $12,718 (consisting of approximately $11,700 of cash compensation and approximately $1,000 of non-
cash compensation) for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase in compensation expense during the year ended December 31, 2021 was primarily associated with the
investment in new personnel and compensation in executive, marketing, sales and operations departments as a result of the anticipated domestic and global growth of the
Company. In addition, compensation expense during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared the same period in 2020 increased due to additional personnel in conjunction
with the acquisitions of BlueLA and U-Go during 2020 and the acquisition of Blue Corner in May 2021. Also contributing to the increase in compensation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2021 is the new employment agreement with our CEO which included increases in cash and equity compensation as well as one-time awards and
payments in satisfaction of his 2020 bonuses of $1,280, a restricted stock grant of 19,504 shares of common stock, a grant of 23,862 stock options, and a salary catch-up since
the expiration of his prior agreement in June 2020 of $295. Included in non-cash share-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $12,570 related to the
special four-year performance stock option for the CEO of the Company which is expected to be fully expensed by January 2022.

General and administrative expenses increased by $6,469, or 160%, from $4,047 for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $10,516 for the year ended December 31,
2021. The increase was primarily attributable to increases in accounting, legal, investor relations, marketing, consulting and other professional service expenditures of $4,524.
Furthermore, general and administrative expenses increased due to increases in amortization expense and acquisition related expenses of $976 and $355, respectively, related to
the Blue Corner acquisition. Also contributing to the increase in general and administrative expenses were operating expenditures related to the 2020 acquisitions of BlueLA
and U-Go and the acquisition of Blue Corner which occurred in May 2021.

Other operating expenses increased by $7,040, or 274%, from $2,566 for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $9,606 for the year ended December 31, 2021. The
increase was primarily attributable to increases in insurance, software licensing, hardware and software development costs, rent, annual shareholder meeting and property/use
tax expenditures of $2,317. Furthermore, increases in travel and vehicle expenses of $401 and $39, respectively, contributed to the increase in other operating expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the same period in 2020. Also contributing to the increase in other operating expenses were operating expenditures related to the
2020 acquisitions of BlueLA and U-Go and the acquisition of Blue Corner which occurred in May 2021. Also contributing to the increase in operating expenses is the
settlement and payment of $1,000 by the Company to our CEO regarding the transfer of 260,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a prior institutional investor. In
addition, during 2021, we recorded a settlement loss of $2,680 related to the issuance of 60,000 shares of our common stock to our General Counsel in full settlement of any
and all potential claims of harassment involving a former executive.
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Other Expense

Other income (expense) increased by $582 from ($32) for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $550 for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase was
primarily related to a gain of $856 related to the forgiveness of our PPP Loan in 2021, dividend and interest income of $294 in 2021, partially offset by recognition of losses of
$438 related to the sale of marketable securities in 2021 which is included in other (expense) income, net.
Net Loss

Our net loss for the year ended December 31, 2021 increased by $37,273, or 209%, to $55,119 as compared to $17,846 for the year ended December 31, 2020. The
increase was primarily attributable to an increase in compensation expense and general and administrative expenses in conjunction with current and anticipated growth of the
Company.

Total Comprehensive Loss

Our total comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $56,465 whereas our total comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 was
$18,029, an increase of $38,436 for the same reasons as noted above related to the increase in our net loss.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
We measure our liquidity in a number of ways, including the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
Cash $ 174,795  $ 22,342
Working Capital $ 176,303 § 19,580
Notes Payable (Gross) $ 10 $ 871

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, we financed our activities from proceeds derived from debt and equity financings which were raised in prior
periods. A significant portion of the funds raised from the sale of capital stock has been used to cover working capital needs and personnel, office expenses and various
consulting and professional fees.

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, we used cash of $40,570 and $18,070, respectively, in operations. Our cash used for the year ended December 31,
2021 was primarily attributable to our net loss of $55,119, reduced by net non-cash expenses in the aggregate amount of $23,113, and by $8,564 of net cash used in changes in
the levels of operating assets and liabilities. Our cash used for the year ended December 31, 2020 was primarily attributable to our net loss of $17,846, reduced by net non-cash
expenses in the aggregate amount of $1,590, and by $1,814 of net cash used in changes in the levels of operating assets and liabilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, net cash used in investing activities was $30,449, of which, $6,804 was provided in connection with the sale of marketable
securities, which was offset by purchases of marketing securities of $7,209, $7,065 was used to purchase charging stations and other fixed assets, $22,742 (net of $243 cash
acquired) was used as purchase consideration in connection with the Blue Corner acquisition and $237 was used for engineering services. During the year ended December 31,
2020, cash used in investing activities was $260, of which $2,774 was provided in connection with the sale of marketable securities and $2,547 was used to purchase charging
stations and other fixed assets. In connection with the BlueLA acquisition and, in connection with the business combination, the Company acquired $3 of cash. Additionally,
the Company acquired $30 of cash in connection with the U-Go Stations, Inc acquisition.

29




During the year ended December 31, 2021, net cash provided by financing activities was $223,271, of which, $221,333 was attributable to the net proceeds from the
sale of common stock from the public offering, $1,693 was attributable to the proceeds from warrant exercises, $307 of proceeds were from option exercises, partially offset by
$62 used to pay down our financing liability in connection with internal use software. During the year ended December 31, 2020, net cash provided by financing activities was
$36,059, of which $856 was attributable to proceeds from our PPP loan, $19,175 was attributable to the net proceeds from the sale of common stock under our ATM program
and $16,265 was attributable to the net proceeds from warrant exercises, partially offset by $72 used to pay down our liability in connection with internal use software and $165
used to repay notes payable.

As of December 31, 2021, we had cash, working capital and an accumulated deficit of $174,795, $176,303 and $242,470, respectively. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, we had a net loss of $55,119.

In January 2021, we completed an underwritten registered public offering of 5,660,000 shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $41.00 per share. We
received approximately $232,100 in gross proceeds from the public offering, and approximately $221,500 in net proceeds after deducting the underwriting discount and
offering expenses paid by us. The public offering was made pursuant to our automatic shelf registration statement on Form S-3 filed with the SEC on January 6, 2021 and
prospectus supplement dated January 7, 2021. We are using the net proceeds from the public offering to supplement our operating cash flows to fund EV charging station
deployment and, when needed, to finance the costs of acquiring competitive and complementary businesses, products and technologies as a part of our growth strategy, and for
working capital and general corporate purposes.

We have not yet achieved profitability and expect to continue to incur cash outflows from operations. It is expected that our operating expenses will continue to
increase and, as a result, we will eventually need to generate significant product revenues to achieve profitability. Historically, we have been able to raise funds to support our
business operations, although there can be no assurance that we will be successful in raising significant additional funds in the future. We expect that our cash on hand will fund
our operations for at least 12 months after the issuance date of the financial statements included in this Annual Report.

Since inception, our operations have primarily been funded through proceeds received in equity and debt financings. We believe we have access to capital resources
and continue to evaluate additional financing opportunities. There is no assurance that we will be able to obtain funds on commercially acceptable terms, if at all. There is also
no assurance that the amount of funds we might raise will enable us to complete our EV development initiatives or attain profitable operations.

Our operating needs include the planned costs to operate our business, including amounts required to fund working capital and capital expenditures. Our future capital
requirements and the adequacy of our available funds will depend on many factors, including our ability to successfully commercialize our products and services, competing
technological and market developments, and the need to enter into collaborations with other companies or acquire other companies or technologies to enhance or complement
our product and service offerings.

As EV charging requirements and technologies change, driven by federal, state or local regulatory authorities or by EV manufacturers or other technology or services
providers for the charging station industry, in particular cellular connectivity technology, we may need to upgrade or adapt our charging station products or introduce new
products in order to serve new vehicles, conform to new standards, or adapt new technologies to serve existing customers or new customers at substantial research,
development, and network upgrades costs. During 2021, many cellular technology providers announced they will require the upgrade from 2G/3G connectivity to 4G LTE
during 2022 (the “Upgrade”). The Upgrade is expected to cost approximately $1,750 to upgrade certain of our owned and operated EV charging stations. As a result of the
Upgrade, during the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company deemed the Upgrade was a triggering event in accordance with ASC 360 and, accordingly, assessed the recoverability
of its long-lived assets related to its US EV charging stations by performing a recoverability test and determined the estimated undiscounted future cash flows (which included
the estimated cash outflows related to the estimated cost of the Upgrade) related to its EV chargers exceeded their carrying value and, accordingly, concluded no impairment
existed as of December 31, 2021.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

We entered into purchase commitments that include purchase orders and agreements in the normal course of business with contract manufacturers, parts
manufacturers, vendors for research and development services and outsourced services. As of December 31, 2021, we had purchase commitment of approximately $32,000 of
which approximately $13,000 is with a related party, which will become payable upon the suppliers’ delivery of the charging stations, services and other related items. The
purchase commitments were made primarily for future sales, deployments of charging stations, inventory management planning and other related items, all of which are
expected to be received during the next 12-24 months.

Furthermore, the Company has operating lease obligations over the next five years of approximately $2,100. These operating lease obligations are primarily related to
corporate office space, warehousing, and parking spaces related to our ride-sharing services.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures must be in conformity with U.S. GAAP. These accounting principles require us to make estimates and
judgments that can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenue and expense during
the periods presented. We believe that the estimates and judgments upon which it relies are reasonably based upon information available to us at the time that it makes these
estimates and judgments. To the extent that there are material differences between these estimates and actual results, our financial results will be affected. The accounting
policies that reflect our more significant estimates and judgments and which we believe are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial
results are described below.

The following is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all of our accounting policies or estimates. Our accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 —
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in our financial statements included at the end of this Annual Report.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue primarily from five different types of contracts:

Charging service revenue — company-owned charging stations - Revenue is recognized at the point when a particular charging session is completed.

Product sales — Revenue is recognized at the point where the customer obtains control of the goods and the Company satisfies its performance obligation, which
generally is at the time it ships the product to the customer.

Network fees and other — Represents a stand-ready obligation whereby the Company is obligated to perform over a period of time and, as a result, revenue is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the contract term. Network fees are billed annually.

Ride-sharing services — Primarily related to ride-sharing services agreement between the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, BlueLA Rideshare, LLC and the City
of Los Angeles which allows customers the ability to rent electric vehicles through a subscription service. The Company recognizes revenue over the contractual period of
performance of the subscription.

Other — Primarily related to charging service revenue from non-company-owned charging stations. Revenue is recognized from non-company-owned charging stations
at the point when a particular charging session is completed in accordance with a contractual relationship between the Company and the owner of the station. Other revenues
also comprise revenues generated from alternative fuel credits.

The timing of the Company’s revenue recognition may differ from the timing of payment by its customers. A receivable is recorded when revenue is recognized prior
to payment and the Company has an unconditional right to payment. Alternatively, when payment precedes the provision of the related services, the Company records deferred
revenue until the performance obligations are satisfied.

Grants, rebates and alternative fuel credits, which are not within the scope of ASC 606, pertaining to revenues and periodic expenses are recognized as income when
the related revenue and/or periodic expense are recorded. Grants and rebates related to EV charging stations and their installation are deferred and amortized in a manner
consistent with the related depreciation expense of the related asset over their useful lives over the useful life of the charging station.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure the cost of services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the fair value of the award on the date of grant. The fair value
amount of the shares expected to ultimately vest is then recognized over the period for which services are required to be provided in exchange for the award, usually the vesting
period. The estimation of stock-based awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from original estimates,
such amounts are recorded as a cumulative adjustment in the period that the estimates are revised. We account for forfeitures as they occur.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. We
assess the recoverability of our long-lived assets by monitoring current selling prices of EV charging units in the open market, the adoption rate of various auto manufacturers
in the EV market and projected EV charging utilization at various public EV charging stations throughout our network in determining fair value. An impairment loss would be

recognized when estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount.
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes pursuant to the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes pursuant to FASB ASC 740, “Income Taxes.” Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences and operating loss carry forwards. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.
Operating Leases

We determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (“ROU™) assets and operating lease liabilities in
our consolidated balance sheets.

ROU assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.
Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As most of our leases do not
provide an implicit rate, we use an incremental borrowing rate based on the estimated rate of interest for collateralized borrowing over a similar term of the lease payments at
commencement date. The operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease payments made and excludes lease incentives. Our lease terms may include options to extend or
terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of consideration paid for an acquired entity over the fair value of the amounts assigned to assets acquired, including other identifiable intangible
assets, and liabilities assumed in a business combination. To determine the amount of goodwill resulting from a business combination, the Company performs an assessment to
determine the acquisition date fair value of the acquired company’s tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities.

Goodwill is required to be evaluated for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset may be impaired. An entity
has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. These qualitative factors include: macroeconomic and industry conditions, cost factors, overall financial performance
and other relevant entity-specific events. If the entity determines that this threshold is met, then the Company may apply a one-step quantitative test and record the amount of
goodwill impairment as the excess of a reporting unit’s carrying amount over its fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to the reporting unit. The
Company determines fair value through multiple valuation techniques and weights the results accordingly. The Company is required to make certain subjective and complex
judgments in assessing whether an event of impairment of goodwill has occurred, including assumptions and estimates used to determine the fair value of its reporting units.
The Company has elected to perform its annual goodwill impairment review on November 1 of each year.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Our recently issued accounting standards are included in Note 2 - “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Foreign Currency Risk

We have foreign currency risks related to its revenue and operating expenses denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, primarily the euro, causing both its
revenue and its operating results to be impacted by fluctuations in the exchange rates. Gains or losses from the revaluation of certain cash balances, accounts receivable
balances and intercompany balances that are denominated in these currencies impact our net loss. A hypothetical decrease in all foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar of 1%
would not result in a material foreign currency loss on foreign-denominated balances, as of December 31, 2021. As our foreign operations expand, its results may be more
materially impacted by fluctuations in the exchange rates of the currencies in which it does business. At this time, we do not enter into financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency exchange risk.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
The financial statements required by this Item 8 are included in this Annual Report beginning on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-
benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Management has designed disclosure controls and procedures that reasonably enable the management including the
CEO and CFO to deliberate and take timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As required by the SEC Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b), we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2021 because of a material weakness.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control system was designed to, in
general, provide reasonable assurance to our company’s management and board regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements, but because of
its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

On May 10, 2021, pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement dated April 21, 2021, the Company through its wholly owned subsidiary in the Netherlands, Blink
Holdings, B.V. acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Blue Corner NV, a Belgian company (“Blue Corner”). Headquartered in Belgium, with sales representative
offices in several other European cities, Blue Corner owns and operates an EV charging network across Europe.

As permitted by SEC guidance for newly acquired businesses, because it was not possible to complete an effective assessment of the acquired company’s controls by
year-end, management has excluded Blue Corner from its evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting and changes therein
from the date of such acquisition through December 31, 2021. This subsidiary’s total assets and total revenues represent approximately 4% and 36%, respectively, of the related
consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021. The framework used by management in making
that assessment was the criteria set forth in the document entitled “2013 Internal Control — Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. In performing that assessment management considered the substantial improvements implemented in 2021 to the Company’s internal controls
referenced above. Management however concluded that, during the period covered by this report, such internal controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31,
2021 and that a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting existed as described below.

e The Company identified certain design deficiencies in its management and analytical review controls associated with the financial close, revenue and inventory
processes. These deficiencies, individually or in the aggregate, combined with inadequate compensating controls, created a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement to the consolidated financial statements might not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Management expects to remediate these control
deficiencies during 2022.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
During 2021, management continued to implement improvements to the Company’s internal control system. Throughout the year, from executive management on
down, a strong commitment was made to the importance of internal control and to create and maintain an infrastructure to support the Company’s SOX compliance program.
The Audit Committee was actively engaged and exercised continuous oversight throughout the process. Further, management and the Audit Committee fostered open and
regular dialogue with the Company’s external auditors. Internal control, particularly those relating to subjective judgements, were strengthened and, when possible automated
and centralized. Further, improvements included:
e All financially significant business processes and entity-level assessments were documented, evaluated, tested for their adequacy of design.

o The Company’s information technology security and general controls were likewise documented, evaluated and tested for their adequacy of design.

o The Company successfully tested for operational effectiveness its business process and entity level internal controls and information technology general and
security controls.

As a result of the internal controls initiatives referenced above, the following 2020 reported material weaknesses have been remediated and are operating effectively:
o The Company maintains effective controls over the management of logical and administrative access.
e The Company completed the operational effectiveness of some of the controls due to the timing of the remediation actions taken.

Except as described above, there were no changes in the Company’s internal control over the financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2021 that have materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Blink Charging Co.

Adverse Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited Blink Charging Co. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In our opinion, because of the effect of the
material weaknesses described in the following paragraph on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weaknesses have been
identified and included in “Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting™:

o  Certain of the Company § controls associated with the financial close and reporting, inventory and revenue processes were not designed effectively. Specifically,
the Company had deficiencies in the design of process level controls. These deficiencies, combined with inadequate compensating review controls, created a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement, individually or in the aggregate, to the consolidated financial statements might not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis and represents a material weakness in the Company § internal control over financial reporting.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the fiscal 2021 consolidated financial statements,
and this report does not affect our report dated March 16, 2022 on those financial statements.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the three years
ended December 31, 2021 of the Company and our report dated March 16, 2022 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Explanatory Paragraph — Excluded Subsidiaries

As described in “Management Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,” management has excluded its wholly-owned subsidiary, Blue Corner NV, from its
assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021 because this entity was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during
2021. We have also excluded Blue Corner NV from our audit of internal control over financial reporting. This subsidiary’s total assets and total revenues represent
approximately 3.4% and 34.2%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion

The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanying "Management Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting." Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

/s/ Marcum rLp

Marcum LLP

New York, NY

March 16, 2022
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS
Not applicable.
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PART IIT
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed within 120
days of our fiscal 2021 year-end.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed within 120
days of our fiscal 2021 year-end.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed within 120
days of our fiscal 2021 year-end.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed within 120
days of our fiscal 2021 year-end.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed within 120
days of our fiscal 2021 year-end.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a) EXHIBITS

We have filed the exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibit Index of this registration statement and below in this Item 15:

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed or Furnished
Number Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
2.1 Share Purchase Agreement, dated April 21, 2021, between the 8-K 2.1 05/13/2021
Shareholders of Blue Corner NV and Blink Holdings B.V.
3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended most recently on August 17 10-K 3.1 04/17/2018
2017
3.2 Bylaws, as amended most recently on January 29, 2018 10-K 32 04/17/2018
33 Certificate of Designations for Series D Preferred Stock 8-K 3.1 02/21/2018
4.1 Warrant Agency Agreement by and between the Company and 8-K 4.1 02/21/2018
Worldwide Stock Transfer, LLC and Form of Warrant Certificate for
Registered Offering
4.2 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated April 9, 2018 8-K 4.1 04/19/2018
43 Description of the Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the 10-K 43 04/02/2020
Securities Exchange Act of 1934
10.1* Executive Employment Agreement by and between the Company and 10-K 10.17 04/16/2013
Michael D. Farkas dated October 29, 2010
10.2* First Amendment to Executive Employment Agreement by and 8-K 10.4 12/29/2014
between the Company and Michael D. Farkas dated December 23,
2014
10.3 * Second Amendment to Executive Employment Agreement by and 10-K 10.4 07/29/2016
between the Company and Michael D. Farkas dated July 24, 2015
10.4 * Third Amendment to Executive Employment Agreement by and S-1/A 10.7 07/06/2017
between the Company_and Michael D. Farkas dated June 15, 2017
10.10 Patent License Agreement, dated March 29, 2012, by and among Car 10-K 10.21 04/16/2013
Charging Group, Inc., Balance Holdings, LLC and Michael Farkas
10.11 Patent License Agreement, dated March 11, 2016, by and among Car 10-Q 10.3 08/04/2016
Charging Group, Inc., Balance Holdings, LLC and Michael Farkas
10.12 Revenue Sharing Agreement, dated April 3, 2013, by and among Car 8-K 10.2 04/26/2013
Charging Group, Inc., EV Pass Holdings, LLC, and Synapse
Sustainability Trust, Inc.
10.13 Office Lease Agreement, dated April 20, 2018, between Euro 8-K 10.1 05/15/2018
American Group, Inc. and Car Charging Inc.
10.14* 2018 Incentive Compensation Plan Proxy - 08/14/2018
10.15 Intentionally omitted
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315221011323/ex2-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315218005373/ex3-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315218005373/ex3-2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315218002464/ex3-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315218002464/ex4-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315218005446/ex4-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315220005717/ex4-3.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000121390013001885/f10k2012ex10xvii_carcharging.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000114420414076077/v397588_ex10-4.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315216011853/ex10-4.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315217007526/ex10-7.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000121390013001885/f10k2012ex10xxi_carcharging.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315216011949/ex10-3.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000121390013002067/f8k040313ex10ii_carcharging.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315218007137/ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315218011891/def14a.htm

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed or Furnished

Number Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
10.16 Intentionally omitted
10.17* Employment Agreement, dated January 9, 2020, between Blink 8-K 10.1 01/10/2020
Charging Co. and Donald Engel
10.18* Employment Offer Letter, dated February 7, 2020, between Blink 8-K 10.1 02/11/2020
Charging Co. and Michael P. Rama
10.20* Employment Offer Letter, dated as of March 29, 2020, between Blink 8-K 10.1 04/20/2020
Charging Co. and Brendan S. Jones
10.21* Executive Chairman and CEO Employment Agreement, dated May 8-K 10.1 06/04/2021
28,2021, between Blink Charging Co. and Michael D. Farkas
10.22* Employment Agreement dated December 27, 2021, between Blink 8-K 10.1 12//29/2021
Charging Co. and Brendan Jones
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant X
23.1 Consent of Marcum LLP X
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)_Certification of Principal Executive Officer X
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)_Certification of Principal Financial Officer X
32.1%* Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer X
32.2%%* Section 1350 Certification of Principal Financial Officer X
101.INS XBRL Instance. X
101.XSD XBRL Schema. X
101.PRE XBRL Presentation. X
101.CAL XBRL Calculation. X
101.DEF XBRL Definition. X
101.LAB XBRL Label. X

*  Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
** In accordance with SEC Release 33-8238, Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 are being furnished and not deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY.

None.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315220000450/ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315220001970/ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315220006709/ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315221013660/ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1429764/000149315221032693/ex10-1.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001493152-22-007015/ex21-1.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001493152-22-007015/ex23-1.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001493152-22-007015/ex31-1.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001493152-22-007015/ex31-2.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001493152-22-007015/ex32-1.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001493152-22-007015/ex32-2.htm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BLINK CHARGING CO.

Date: March 16, 2022 By: /s/ Michael D. Farkas
Michael D. Farkas
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 16, 2022 By: /s/ Michael P. Rama

Michael P. Rama
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Michael D. Farkas Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer March 16, 2022
Michael D. Farkas (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Michael P. Rama Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) March 16, 2022

Michael P. Rama

/s/ Brendan S. Jones President, Chief Operating Officer and Director March 16, 2022
Brendan S. Jones

/s/ Louis R. Buffalino Director March 16, 2022
Louis R. Buffalino

/s/ Carmen Perez-Carlton Director March 16, 2022
Carmen Perez-Carlton

/s/ Jack Levine Director March 16, 2022
Jack Levine

/s/ Kenneth R. Marks Director March 16, 2022
Kenneth R. Marks

/s/ Ritsaart J.M. van Montfrans Director March 16, 2022
Ritsaart J.M. van Montfrans
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Blink Charging Co.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Blink Charging Co. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”), as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021,
and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB"), the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in 2013 and our report dated March 16, 2022, expressed an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting because of the existence of material weaknesses.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our
audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are
not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
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Business Combination — Blue Corner NV

Critical Audit Matter Description

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company acquired Blue Corner NV in May 2021. This acquisition was accounted for as a business
combination. We identified the evaluation of the acquisition date fair value of the intangible assets acquired as a critical audit matter.

The principal consideration for our determination that the evaluation of the acquisition date fair values of the intangible assets acquired was a critical audit matter is the high
degree of subjective auditor judgment associated with evaluating management’s determination of the fair values of the acquired intangible assets, which is primarily due to the
complexity of the valuation models used and the sensitivity of the underlying significant assumptions. The key assumptions used within the valuation models included
prospective financial information, including future revenue growth and an applied discount rate. The calculated fair values are sensitive to changes in these key assumptions.
How the Critical Audit Matter was addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the evaluation of acquisition date fair values of intangible assets acquired included the following, among others:

e  We evaluated the design effectiveness of certain controls over the acquisition-date valuation process, including controls over the development of the key assumptions
such as the revenue growth and the applied discount rate.

e  We obtained the purchase price allocation analyses from management and the third-party specialist engaged by management.

- We assessed the qualifications and competence of management and the third-party specialist; and
- We evaluated the methodologies used to determine the fair values of the intangible assets.

o  We tested the assumptions used within the discounted cash flow models to estimate the fair values of the intangible assets, which included key assumptions such as the
future revenue growth and the applied discount rate.

o  We assessed the reasonableness of management’s forecast by inquiring with management to understand how the forecast was developed and comparing the projections
to historical results and external sources including industry trends and peer companies’ historical data.

e We involved an internal valuation specialist who assisted in the evaluation and testing performed of the reasonableness of significant assumptions to the models,
including the applied discount rate.

Fair Value of Certain Performance Based Stock Option Awards

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company issued a performance based stock option award with an aggregate grant date fair value of approximately $13.5 million, approximately $12.2 million of which is
included in “Compensation” in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021. As disclosed in Note 12 and Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, the fair value of this performance based stock option award was estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation.

Auditing management’s estimate of fair value was complex and highly judgmental due to the significant measurement uncertainty in determining the fair values of the
performance based stock option award. In particular, the fair value estimates of performance based stock option awards are sensitive to changes in significant assumptions such
as discount rates and volatility. These assumptions are affected by expected future market or economic conditions.

How the Critical Audit Matter was addressed in the Audit

We obtained a copy of the Company’s estimated fair value of the performance stock option award including an independent valuation report used by management, in
accordance with ASC 718 (Compensation — Stock Compensation).

To test the estimated fair values of the stock option award, our audit procedures included:
o  We obtained the valuation report prepared by management’s third party valuation specialists. We performed the following procedures in respect to the valuation report:

- We assessed the qualifications of the third party specialists who performed the analysis and prepared the report; and
- We tested the mathematical accuracy of all the schedules used in the analysis.

e  With assistance from our valuation specialists, we evaluated the reasonableness of the valuation methodology and significant inputs and assumptions, including the
following:

- Volatility;
- Risk free rate;
- Expected dividend yield; and
- Expected term
- Sensitivity analysis using inputs provided by management; and
- Re-performed a Monte Carlo simulation model.
/s/ Marcum LLP
Marcum LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2014.

New York, NY
March 16, 2022
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Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total Current Assets
Restricted cash
Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use asset
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Current portion of deferred revenue

Total Current Liabilities
Operating lease liabilities, non-current portion
Other liabilities
Notes payable, non-current portion
Deferred revenue, non-current portion

Total Liabilities

BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands except for share amounts)

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, 10,000 shares designated, 0 shares issued and outstanding as of December

31,2021 and 2020

Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)

Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized;
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, 20,000,000 shares designated, 0 shares issued and outstanding as of

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, 250,000 shares designated, 0 shares issued and outstanding as of

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, 13,000 shares designated, 0 shares issued and outstanding as of

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 42,423,514 and 35,951,097 shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit

Total Stockholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

December 31,

2021
174,795 22,342
6,346 348
10,369 1,816
1,020 1,219
192,530 25,725
81 76
14,563 5,636
1,664 616
3,455 46
19,390 1,501
230 388
231,913 33,988
7,134 3,359
5,678 1,329
10 574

547 404
2,858 479
16,227 6,145
1,531 285
193 90

- 297

128 7
18,079 6,824
42 36
458,046 214,479
(1,784) -
(242,470) (187,351)
213,834 27,164
231,913 33,988

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands except for share and per share amounts)

For The Years Ended
December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Revenues:
Product sales $ 15,480 $ 4,432 $ 856
Charging service revenue -company-owned charging stations 2,978 773 1,359
Network fees 667 345 302
Warranty 220 129 53
Grant and rebate 400 22 22
Ride-sharing services 769 168 -
Other 426 362 167
Total Revenues 20,940 6,231 2,759
Cost of Revenues:
Cost of product sales 11,670 2,860 961
Cost of charging services - company-owned charging stations 707 171 152
Host provider fees 1,386 265 420
Network costs 454 516 255
Warranty and repairs and maintenance 892 331 451
Ride-sharing services 1,458 226 -
Depreciation and amortization 1,531 345 128
Total Cost of Revenues 18,098 4,714 2,367
Gross Profit 2,842 1,517 392
Operating Expenses:
Compensation 38,389 12,718 6,751
General and administrative expenses 10,516 4,047 1,917
Other operating expenses 9,606 2,566 2,196
Total Operating Expenses 58,511 19,331 10,864
Loss From Operations (55,669) (17,814) (10,472)
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income 9 16 73
Dividend and interest income 294 - -
Foreign transaction loss (124) - -
Gain on forgiveness of PPP loan 856 - -
Gain on settlement of debt - - 310
Gain on settlement of accounts payable, net - 22 274
Change in fair value of derivative and other accrued liabilities 69 (173) (65)
Other (expense) income, net (554) 103 231
Total Other Income (Expense) 550 (32) 823
Net Loss $ (55,119)  $ (17,846) $ (9,649)
Net Loss Per Share:
Basic $ (132) % 0.59) $ (0.37)
Diluted $ 132 $ 0.59 $ 0.37)
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding:
Basic 41,905,340 30,045,095 26,237,486
Diluted 41,905,340 30,045,095 26,237,486

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2021 2020 2019

Net Loss $ (55,119)  § (17,846) (9,649)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

Reclassification adjustments of gain on sale of marketable securities included

in net loss 438 (183) -

Cumulative translation adjustments (1,784) - -

Change in fair value of marketable securities - - 183
Total Comprehensive Loss $ (56,465) $ (18,029) (9,466)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
(in thousands except for share amounts)

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Loss Deficit Equity

Balance - January 1, 2021 35,951,097 $ 36 $ 214479 $ = $ (187,351) § 27,164
Common stock issued in public offering, net of issuance costs

[1] 5,660,000 6 221,327 - - 221,333
Common stock issued upon exercises of options and warrants 534,575 - 2,000 - - 2,000
Common stock issued upon cashless exercises of options and

warrants 104,496 - - - - -
Common stock issued as consideration for property and

equipment 13,123 - 600 - - 600
Common stock issued as purchase consideration of Blue Corner 32,382 - 790 - - 790
Stock-based compensation 127,841 - 18,850 - - 18,850
Other comprehensive loss - - - (1,784) - (1,784)
Net loss = = = s (55,119) (55,119)
Balance - December 31, 2021 42423514  $ 42 $ 458,046 $ (1,784) $ (2424700 $ 213,834

[1] Includes gross proceeds of $232,060, less issuance costs of $10,727.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(in thousands except for share amounts)

Convertible Preferred

Stock Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Series D Common Stock Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Equity

Balance - January 1, 2020 5,125 $ - 26,322,583 $ 26 $ 176,730 $ 183 $  (169,505) § 7,434
Stock-based compensation - - 130,722 - 883 - - 883
Common stock issued in public offering
[1] - - 3,597,833 4 19,172 - - 19,176
Common stock issued upon conversion
of Series D convertible preferred stock (5,125) - 1,642,628 2 2) - - -
Common stock issued upon exercise of
warrants - - 3,827,181 4 16,261 - - 16,265
Common stock issued in satisfaction of
accrued issuable equity - - 102,402 - 200 - - 200
Common stock issued as consideration
for acquisition - - 66,454 - 1,219 - - 1,219
Options issued in satisfaction of accrued
issuable equity - - - - 16 - - 16
Common stock issued upon cashless
warrant exercise - - 253,038 - - - - -
Common stock issued upon cashless
option exercise - - 8,256 - - - - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - - (183) - (183)
Net loss - - - - - - (17,846) (17,846)
Balance - December 31, 2020 - $ - 35,951,097 $ 36 $ 214,479 $ - $ (187351) § 27,164

[1] Includes gross proceeds of $20,000, less issuance costs of $819.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

(in thousands except for share amounts)

Convertible Preferred

Stock Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Series D Common Stock Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Equity

Balance - January 1, 2019 5,141 $ - 26,118,075 $ 26 $ 175,925 $ - $  (159,856) $ 16,095
Stock-based compensation - - 71,724 - 424 - - 424
Restricted stock issued in satisfaction of
accrued issuable equity - - 135,722 - 381 - - 381
Common stock issued upon conversion
of Series D convertible preferred stock (16) - 5,128 - - - - -
Return and retirement of common stock - - (8,066) - - - - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 183 - 183
Net loss - - - - - - (9,649) (9,649)
Balance - December 31, 2019 5,125 $ - 26,322,583 $ 26 $ 176,730 $ 183 $  (169,505) $ 7,434

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash lease expense
Dividend and interest income
Change in fair value of derivative and other accrued liabilities
Provision for bad debt
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Loss on impairment of intangible assets
Gain on settlement of debt
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory
Gain on forgiveness of PPP loan
Gain on settlement of accounts payable, net
Stock-based compensation:

Common stock
Options

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable and other receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities
Purchase of marketable securities
Capitalization of engineering costs
Purchase consideration of Blue Corner, net of cash acquired of $243
Cash acquired in the purchase of BlueLA Carsharing, LLC
Cash acquired in the purchase of U-Go Stations, Inc.
Purchases of property and equipment

Net Cash (Used In) Provided By Investing Activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock in public offering [1]
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Payment of financing liability in connection with internal use software
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Net Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash - End of Year
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash consisted of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

(in thousands)

For The Years Ended
December 31,
2021 2020 2019
(55,119) $ (17,846) (9,649)
2,731 680 417
1,246 o -
(62) - 105
69 (173) (65)
908 270 103
156 279 65
- - 83
- - (310)
(187) (392) 437
(856) - -
- 22) (274)
4,391 233 548
14,717 715 181
(5,212) (336) (142)
(9,227) (1,247) (2,023)
710 (581) 168
262 (226) (3)
3,723 842 (470)
103 - -
(1,021) (184) (135)
2,098 (82) 197
14,549 (224) (1,116)
(40,570) (18,070) (10,765)
6,804 2,774 -
(7,209) - -
(237) . -
(22,742) - -
- 3 -
R 30 -
(7,065) (2,547) (553)
(30,449) 260 (553)
221,333 19,175 -
2,000 16,265 -
- 856 -
- (165) -
(62) (72) (52)
223,271 36,059 (52)
206 - -
152,458 18,249 (11,370)
22,418 4,169 15,539
174,876 $ 22,418 4,169
174,795 $ 22,342 4,169
81 76 -
174,876 $ 22,418 4,169

[1] For the year ended December 31, 2021, includes gross proceeds of $232,060, less issuance costs of $10,727 deducted directly from the offering proceeds. For the year
ended December 31, 2020, includes gross proceeds of $20,000, less issuance costs of $825 deducted directly from the offering proceeds.



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(in thousands)

For The Years Ended
December 31

2021 2020 2019

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ - $ - $
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Reduction of additional pain-in capital for public offering issuance costs for

public offering issuance costs that were previously paid $ = $ 39
Common stock issued as consideration for property and equipment $ 600 $ - $
Common stock issued as purchase consideration of Blue Corner $ 790 $ - $
Options issued in satisfaction of accrued issuable equity $ - $ 16 $
Net assets (excluding cash) acquired in the acquisition of BlueLA

Carsharing, LLC $ - $ 84 $
Internal use software obtained in exchange for financing liability $ 416 $ - $
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations $ 2,129 $ 598 $
Change in fair value of marketable securities $ - $ - $
Transfer of inventory to property and equipment $ (2,189) $ (1,980) §
Common stock issued as purchase consideration for the acquisition of U-

Go Stations,Inc. $ - $ 1,219 $
Net assets (excluding cash) acquired in the acquisition of U-Go Stations,

Inc. $ - $ 1,216 $
Accrued interest converted to notes payable $ 5 $ 5 $
Common stock issued in satisfaction of accrued issuable equity $ = $ 201 $
Accrual of additional stock consideration for U-Go Stations, Inc. $ 60 $ - $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
(in thousands except for share and per share amounts)

1. BUSINESS ORGANIZATION, NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Organization and Operations

Blink Charging Co., through its wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company” or “Blink™), is a leading owner, operator, and provider of electric vehicle (“EV”)
charging equipment and networked EV charging services. Blink offers residential and commercial EV charging equipment, enabling EV drivers to recharge at various location
types. Blink’s principal line of products and services is its Blink EV charging network (the “Blink Network”) and Blink EV charging equipment, also known as electric vehicle
supply equipment (“EVSE”) and other EV-related services. The Blink Network provides property owners, managers, parking companies, and state and municipal entities
(“Property Partners”) with cloud-based services that enable the remote monitoring and management of EV charging stations. The Blink Network also provides EV drivers with
vital station information, including station location, availability and fees. Blink also operates a ride-sharing program through the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, BlueLA
Rideshare, LLC and the City of Los Angeles which allows customers the ability to rent electric vehicles through a subscription service.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted global stock markets and economies. The Company closely monitors the impact of the continuing presence of Covid-19 and multiple
Covid-19 variants. The Company has taken and continues to take precautions to ensure the safety of its employees, customers and business partners, while assuring business
continuity and reliable service and support to its customers. The Company continues to receive orders for its products, although some shipments of equipment have been
temporarily delayed. The global chip shortage and supply chain disruption has caused some delays in equipment orders from its contract manufacturer. As federal, state and
local economies begin to return to pre-pandemic levels, the Company expects demand for charging station usage to increase, however, the Company is unable to predict the
extent of such recovery due to the uncertainty of Covid-19. As a result, the Company is unable to predict the ultimate impact of equipment order delays, chip shortage and
continuous presence of Covid-19 will have on its business, future results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Blink Charging Co. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation. The results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 include the results of operations of BlueLA Carsharing LLC, U-
Go Stations Inc., and Blue Corner NV. of their respective dates of acquisition.

USE OF ESTIMATES

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, together with amounts disclosed in the related notes to the
financial statements. The Company’s significant estimates used in these financial statements include, but are not limited to, stock-based compensation, accounts receivable
reserves, warranty reserves, inventory valuations ,goodwill, the valuation allowance related to the Company’s deferred tax assets, the carrying amount of intangible assets, right
of use assets and related leases payable estimates of future EV sales and the effects thereon, derivative liabilities and the recoverability and useful lives of long-lived assets.
Certain of the Company’s estimates could be affected by external conditions, including those unique to the Company and general economic conditions. It is reasonably possible
that these external factors could have an effect on the Company’s estimates and could cause actual results to differ from those estimates.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
(in thousands except for share and per share amounts)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents in the consolidated financial statements.
The Company has cash on deposits in several financial institutions which, at times, may be in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insurance limits. The
Company has not experienced losses in such accounts and periodically evaluates the creditworthiness of its financial institutions. The Company reduces its credit risk by
placing its cash and cash equivalents with major financial institutions.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivables are carried at their contractual amounts, less a provision for credit losses. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there was an allowance for credit losses of
$1,262 and $356, respectively. Management estimates the allowance for uncollectible accounts based on an ongoing review of existing economic conditions, the financial
conditions of the customers, historical trends in credit losses, and the amount and age of past due accounts.

The Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-13, “Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326)” on January 1, 2020 and the Company determined
that an adjustment was not required as a result of the implementation of the new standard.

INVENTORY

Inventory is comprised of electric charging stations and related parts, which are available for sale or for warranty requirements. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. Inventory that is sold to third parties is included within cost of sales and inventory that is installed on the
premises of participating owner/operator properties, where the Company retains ownership, is transferred to property and equipment at the carrying value of the inventory. The
Company periodically reviews for slow-moving, excess or obsolete inventories. Products that are determined to be obsolete, if any, are written down to net realizable value.
Based on the aforementioned periodic reviews, the Company recorded an inventory reserve for slow-moving or excess inventory of $162 and $217 as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s inventory was comprised solely of finished goods that are available for sale.
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BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
(in thousands except for share and per share amounts)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization which is recorded commencing at the in-service date using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Useful Lives
Asset (In Years)
Computer software and office and computer equipment 3-5
Machinery and equipment, automobiles, furniture and fixtures 3-10
Installed Level 2 electric vehicle charging stations 3-7
Installed Level 3 (DC Fast Chargers (“DCFC”)) electric vehicle charging stations 5
Building 39

When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
included in the statements of operations for the respective period. Minor additions and repairs are expensed in the period incurred. Major additions and repairs which extend the
useful life of existing assets are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over their remaining estimated useful lives.

EV charging stations represents the cost, net of accumulated depreciation, of charging devices that have been installed on the premises of participating owner/operator
properties or are earmarked to be installed. The Company had no EV charging stations that were not placed in service as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The Company’s long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable. The Company assesses the recoverability of its long-lived assets by monitoring current selling prices of car charging units in the open market, the adoption rate of
various auto manufacturers in the EV market and projected car charging utilization at various public car charging stations throughout its network in determining fair value. An
impairment loss would be recognized when estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount.

As electric vehicle charging requirements and technologies change, driven by federal, state or local regulatory authorities or by electric vehicle manufacturers or other
technology or services providers for the charging station industry, in particular cellular connectivity technology, the Company may need to upgrade or adapt its charging station
products or introduce new products in order to serve new vehicles, conform to new standards, or adapt new technologies to serve existing customers or new customers at
substantial research, development, and network upgrades costs. During 2021, many cellular technology providers announced they will require the upgrade from 2G/3G
connectivity to 4G LTE during 2022 (the “Upgrade”). The Upgrade is expected to cost approximately $1,750 to upgrade certain of the Company’s owned and operated EV
charging stations. During the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company concluded the Upgrade was a triggering event in accordance with ASC 360 and, accordingly, assessed the
recoverability of its long-lived assets related to its US EV charging stations by performing a recoverability test and determined the estimated undiscounted future cash flows
(which included the estimated cash outflows related to the estimated cost of the Upgrade) related to its EV chargers exceeded their carrying value, accordingly, concluded no
impairment existed as of December 31, 2021.

See Note 5 — Property and Equipment for additional details.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED
GOODWILL

Goodwill is the excess of consideration paid for an acquired entity over the fair value of the amounts assigned to assets acquired, including other identifiable intangible assets,
and liabilities assumed in a business combination. To determine the amount of goodwill resulting from a business combination, the Company performs an assessment to
determine the acquisition date fair value of the acquired company’s tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities.

Goodwill is required to be evaluated for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset may be impaired. An entity has the
option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. These qualitative factors include: macroeconomic and industry conditions, cost factors, overall financial performance and
other relevant entity-specific events. If the entity determines that this threshold is met, then the Company may apply a one-step quantitative test and record the amount of
goodwill impairment as the excess of a reporting unit’s carrying amount over its fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to the reporting unit. The
Company determines fair value through multiple valuation techniques and weights the results accordingly. The Company is required to make certain subjective and complex
judgments in assessing whether an event of impairment of goodwill has occurred, including assumptions and estimates used to determine the fair value of its reporting units.
The Company has elected to perform its annual goodwill impairment review on November 1 of each year utilizing a qualitative assessment to determine if it was more likely
than not that the fair value of each of its reporting units was less than their respective carrying values and concluded that no impairment existed.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, no impairment charge relating to goodwill was recognized. See Note 7, Goodwill, for further information on
goodwill.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Identifiable intangible assets primarily include trade name, customer relationships, favorable leases, internally developed technology, capitalized engineering costs and non-
compete agreements. Amortizable intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the assets may be impaired. If an indicator of impairment exists, the Company will compare the estimated future cash flows of the asset,
on an undiscounted basis, to the carrying value of the asset. If the undiscounted cash flows exceed the carrying value, no impairment is indicated. If the undiscounted cash
flows do not exceed the carrying value, then impairment, if any, is measured as the difference between fair value and carrying value, with fair value typically based on a
discounted cash flow model. There were no indicators, events or changes in circumstances that would indicate intangible assets were impaired during the year ended December
31.2021.

SEGMENTS

The Company operates a single segment business. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, who is the chief operating decision maker, views the
Company’s operating performance on a consolidated basis as Blink’s only business is the sale and distribution of electric vehicle charging equipment and its associated
revenues earned from customers and/or Property Partners who use equipment connected to its network.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANST ATION

The Company’s reporting currency is the United States dollar. The functional currency of certain subsidiaries is the Euro. Assets and liabilities are translated based on the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date (1.1325 as of December 31, 2021), while expense accounts are translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the period of
1.1722 for the year ended December 31, 2021. Equity accounts are translated at historical exchange rates. The resulting translation adjustments are recognized in stockholders’
equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity of an entity from all sources other than
investments by owners or distributions to owners and includes foreign currency translation adjustments as described above. Transaction gains and losses are charged to the
statement of operations as incurred. Transaction losses attributable to foreign exchange were $124 during the year ended December 31, 2021.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes revenue pursuant to Topic 606 of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” (“ASC 606”). The core principle of ASC 606 requires that an entity recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASC 606 defines a five-step process
to achieve this core principle and, in doing so, it is possible more judgment and estimates may be required within the revenue recognition process than required under previous
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) including identifying performance obligations in the contract, estimating the amount
of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate performance obligation.

The Company recognizes revenue primarily from five different types of contracts:

Product sales — Revenue is recognized at the point where the customer obtains control of the goods and the Company satisfies its performance obligation, which generally
is at the time it ships the product to the customer.

Network fees and other — Represents a stand-ready obligation whereby the Company is obligated to perform over a period of time and, as a result, revenue is recognized on
a straight-line basis over the contract term. Network fees are billed annually.

Ride-sharing services — Primarily related to ride-sharing services agreement between the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, BlueLA Rideshare, LLC and the City of
Los Angeles which allows customers the ability to rent electric vehicles through a subscription service. The Company recognizes revenue over the contractual period of
performance of the subscription.

Other — Primarily related to charging service revenue from non-company-owned charging stations. Revenue is recognized from non-company-owned charging stations at
the point when a particular charging session is completed in accordance with a contractual relationship between the Company and the owner of the station. Other revenues
also comprise revenues generated from alternative fuel credits.

The following table summarizes our revenue recognized under ASC 606 in the consolidated statements of operations:

For The Years Ended
December 31,

2021 2020 2019
Revenues - Recognized at a Point in Time
Product sales $ 15,480 $ 4,432 $ 856
Charging service revenue - company-owned charging stations 2,978 773 1,359
Other 426 362 167
Total Revenues - Recognized at a Point in Time 18,884 5,567 2,382
Revenues - Recognized Over a Period of Time:
Ride-sharing services 769 168 -
Network and other fees 887 474 355
Total Revenues - Recognized Over a Period of Time 1,656 642 355
Total Revenue Under ASC 606 $ 20,540 $ 6,209 $ 2,737

F-16




BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
(in thousands except for share and per share amounts)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

REVENUE RECOGNITION — CONTINUED

The following table summarizes our revenue recognized under ASC 606 in the consolidated statements of operations by geographical area:

For The Years Ended
December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Revenues by Geographical Area
US.A $ 10,578 $ 3,521 $ 2,678
International 9,962 2,688 59
Total Revenue Under ASC 606 $ 20,540 $ 6,209 $ 2,737

The timing of the Company’s revenue recognition may differ from the timing of payment by its customers. A receivable is recorded when revenue is recognized prior to
payment and the Company has an unconditional right to payment. Alternatively, when payment precedes the provision of the related services, the Company records deferred
revenue until the performance obligations are satisfied.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $2,986 related to contract liabilities where performance obligations have not yet been satisfied, which has been included within
deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2021. The Company expects to satisfy $2,858 of its remaining performance obligations for network
fees, warranty revenue, product sales, and other and recognize the revenue within the next twelve months.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized $514 of revenues related to network fees and warranty contracts, which was included in deferred revenues
as of December 31, 2020. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recognized $466 of revenues related to network fees and warranty contracts, which was
included in deferred revenues as of December 31, 2019. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recognized $191 of revenues related to network fees and
warranty contracts, which was included in deferred revenues as of December 31, 2018.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, there was no revenue recognized from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods.

Grants, rebates and alternative fuel credits, which are not within the scope of ASC 606, pertaining to revenues and periodic expenses, are recognized as income when the
related revenue and/or periodic expense are recorded. Grants and rebates related to EV charging stations and their installation are deferred and amortized in a manner consistent
with the related depreciation expense of the related asset over the useful life of the charging station. During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company
recorded $400, $22 and $22, respectively, related to grant and rebate revenue. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there was $70 of deferred grant and rebate revenue to be
amortized. During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company recognized $207, $225 and $123, respectively, of revenue related to alternative fuel
credits, which is included within other revenue on the consolidated statements of operations.

ADVERTISING COSTS
The Company participates in various advertising programs. All costs related to advertising of the Company’s products and services are expensed in the period incurred.
Advertising costs charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 were $84, $15 and $8, respectively, and are included in selling and marketing

on the consolidated statements of operations.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED
CONCENTRATIONS

As of December 31, 2021, accounts receivable from a significant customer were approximately 18% of total accounts receivable. During the year ended December 31, 2021,
sales to a significant customer represented 12% of total revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2020, sales to a significant customer represented 25% of total revenue.
During the year ended December 31, 2020, sales to another significant customer represented 11% of total revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2019, sales to a
significant customer represented 11% of product sales. During the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company made purchases from a significant supplier that
represented 23% and 12% respectively, of total purchases.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company measures the cost of services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the fair value of the award. The fair value of the award is
measured on the grant date and then is recognized over the period during which services are required to be provided in exchange for the award, usually the vesting period. The
Company computes the fair value of equity-classified warrants and options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

LEASES

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and operating lease liabilities in
our consolidated balance sheets.

ROU assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.
Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As most of our leases do not
provide an implicit rate, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the estimated rate of interest for collateralized borrowing over a similar term of the lease
payments at commencement date. The operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease payments made and excludes lease incentives. Our lease terms may include options to
extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Company provides charging services at designated locations on the hosts property at which the charging station is situated. In consideration thereof, the host shares in the
monthly revenue generated by the charging station on a percentage basis. As the charging station monthly revenue generated is variable, the host’s monthly revenue derived
there from is similarly variable. In accordance with ASC 842 the hosts’ portion of revenue is variable and not predicated on an index or rate, as defined, these payments are not
within the scope ASC 842.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

INCOME TAXES

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of items that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in
effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent management concludes it is more
likely than not that the assets will not be realized. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the statements of operations in the
period that includes the enactment date. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company maintained a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets, since it is more
likely than not that the future tax benefit on such temporary differences will not be realized.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain income tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the
taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the
largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement by examining taxing authorities. The Company has open tax years going back
to 2014 (or the tax year ended December 31, 2011 if the Company were to utilize its NOLs) which will be subject to audit by federal and state authorities upon filing. The
Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on uncertain income tax positions in interest expense in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company had no liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The Company does not expect the unrecognized tax benefits to change
significantly over the next 12 months.

On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”). The CARES Act, among other things, includes
provisions relating to refundable payroll tax credits, deferment of employer side social security payments, net operating loss carryback periods, alternative minimum tax credit
refunds, modifications to the net interest deduction limitations and technical corrections to tax depreciation methods for qualified improvement property. Under ASC 740, the
effects of new legislation are recognized upon enactment. Such provisions did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted net loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding, plus the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the common share equivalents had been issued (computed using the treasury
stock or if converted method), if dilutive.

The following common share equivalents are excluded from the calculation of weighted average common shares outstanding because their inclusion would have been anti-
dilutive:

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Convertible preferred stock - - 1,643
Warrants 3,274,800 3,897 6,840
Options 983,505 573 266
Unvested restricted common stock 50,831 - -
Total potentially dilutive shares 4,309,136 4,470 8,748

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties and other sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of the assessment can be reasonably estimated.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified in order to conform to current year presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported results of
operations or loss per share.

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes,” (“ASU 2019-12”) which is intended to
simplify various aspects related to accounting for income taxes. ASU 2019-12 removes certain exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740 and clarifies and amends
existing guidance to improve consistent application. ASU 2019-12 is effective for the Company beginning in fiscal 2021. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material
impact on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures

In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-01 “Reference Rate Reform — Scope,” which clarified the scope of ASC 848 relating to contract modifications. The
Company determined that this ASU did not have a material effect on the Company’s business operations and consolidated financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - CONTINUED

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments” (“ASU 2016-
13”). In April 2020, the FASB issued clarification to ASU 2016-13 within ASU 2020-04, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses, Topic
815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial Instruments. This guidance is effective for public business entities that meet the definition of a Securities and Exchange
Commission filer, excluding eligible smaller reporting companies, for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company adopted ASU 2016-13 effective January
1, 2020 and its adoption did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements or disclosures.

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-06, “Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity” (“ASU 2020-06") which simplifies the
accounting for convertible instruments by eliminating certain accounting models when the conversion features are not required to be accounted for as derivatives under Topic
815, Derivatives and Hedging, or that do not result in substantial premiums accounted for as paid-in-capital. Under this ASU, certain debt instruments with embedded
conversion features will be accounted for as a single liability measured at its amortized cost. Additionally, this ASU eliminates the treasury stock method to calculate diluted
earnings per share for convertible instruments. The new guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those
fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted ASU 2020-06 effective January 1, 2022 which eliminates the need to assess whether a beneficial conversion
feature needed to be recognized upon either (a) the issuance of new convertible instruments; or (b) the resolution of any contingent beneficial conversion features.

In May 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-04, “Earnings Per Share (Topic 260), Debt—Modifications and Extinguishments (Subtopic 470-50), Compensation—Stock
Compensation (Topic 718), and Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Issuer’s Accounting for Certain Modifications or Exchanges of
Freestanding Equity-Classified Written Call Options” (“ASU 2021-04”). This new standard provides clarification and reduces diversity in an issuer’s accounting for
modifications or exchanges of freestanding equity-classified written call options (such as warrants) that remain equity classified after modification or exchange. This standard is
effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Issuers should apply the new standard
prospectively to modifications or exchanges occurring after the effective date of the new standard. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. If an
issuer elects to early adopt the new standard in an interim period, the guidance should be applied as of the beginning of the fiscal year that includes that interim period. The
Company adopted ASU 2021-04 effective January 1, 2022 and its adoption did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-08, “Business Combinations (Topic 805)” (“ASU 2021-08"). The ASU improves the accounting for acquired revenue contracts
with customers in a business combination by addressing diversity in practice and inconsistency related to recognition of an acquired contract liability and payment terms and
their effect on subsequent revenue recognized by the acquirer. The update is effective for annual and interim periods within the fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2022,
and early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. The Company is evaluating this new standard and its impact on its consolidated financial statements
and related disclosures.
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

BLUE CORNER NV. ACQUISITION

On May 10, 2021, pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement dated April 21, 2021, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary in the Netherlands, Blink Holdings, B.V.
closed on the acquisition from the shareholders of Blue Corner NV, a Belgian company (“Blue Corner”), of all of the outstanding capital stock of Blue Corner. Headquartered in
Belgium, with sales representative offices in several other European cities, Blue Corner owns and operates an EV charging network across Europe. The acquisition of Blue
Corner was made to enter the European market and provide an opportunity to expand the Company’s footprint in this region. The purchase price for the acquisition of all of
Blue Corner’s outstanding capital stock was approximately $23,775 (or €20,000), consisting of approximately $22,985 (or €19,000) in cash and approximately $790 (€700)
represented by 32,382 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Consideration Shares”). The fair value of the Consideration Shares was calculated based on the average
price of the Company’s common stock during the 30 consecutive trading days immediately preceding the closing date of the Share Purchase Agreement, which equaled $37.66
(or €30.88) per share, reduced by a discount for illiquidity due to the 12-month lockup that exists on any sales or transfers. The Company executed management agreements
with key Blue Corner personnel, including equity incentive packages consisting of additional shares of the Company’s common stock which is compensatory and not included
in the purchase price for this acquisition. The Company entered into an escrow agreement pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, under which the Company paid
approximately $2,100 (€1,725) of the purchase price into an escrow account for a period of up to 18 months following the closing to cover any losses or damages the Company
may incur by reason of any misrepresentation or breach of warranty by Blue Corner under the Share Purchase Agreement.

In order to determine the fair values of tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed for Blue Corner, the Company engaged a third-party independent
valuation specialist to assist in the determination of fair values. The final determination of the fair value of assets and liabilities will be completed within the one-year
measurement period as required by ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”). The Blue Corner acquisition will necessitate the use of this measurement period to
adequately analyze and assess the factors used in establishing the asset and liability fair values as of the acquisition date, including intangible assets, accounts receivable, and
certain fixed assets.

F-22




BLINK CHARGING CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
(in thousands except for share and per share amounts)

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS — CONTINUED

BLUE CORNER NV. ACQUISITION-CONTINUED

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date of Blue Corner:
Purchase price allocation

Purchase Consideration:

Cash $ 22,985
Common stock 790
Total Purchase Consideration $ 23,775
Less:
Fixed assets 1,322
Trade name 343
Customer relationships 1,800
Favorable leases 292
Internally developed technology 1,233
Non-compete agreements 148
Other liabilities (144)
Other assets 283
Debt-free net working capital deficit (529)
Fair Value of Identified Net Assets 4,748
Remaining Unidentified Goodwill Value $ 19,027

Changes in the balance of identified intangible assets and goodwill reflected on the balance sheet are the result of the impact of the change in foreign currency exchange rates.
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS — CONTINUED

BLUE CORNER NV. ACQUISITION-CONTINUED

The components of debt free net working capital are as follows:

Current assets:

Cash $ 245
Accounts receivable 1,927
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 372
Inventory 1,359
Total current assets 3,903

Less current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,131

Deferred revenue 301
Total current liabilities 4,432
Debt free net working capital deficit $ (529)

Goodwill was recorded based on the amount by which the purchase price exceeded the fair value of the net assets acquired and the amount is attributable to the reputation of the
business acquired, the workforce in place and the synergies to be achieved from this acquisition. Goodwill of $19,027 from the acquisition of Blue Corner is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the results of operations from Blue Corner as of May 10, 2021 to December 31, 2021 and do not include results
of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020. The results of operations of Blue Corner from May 10, 2021 to December 31, 2021 included revenues of $7,553 and a net
loss of $2,567.

The following table presents the unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 as if the acquisition of Blue Corner had occurred
at the beginning of fiscal year 2020. The pro forma information provided below is compiled from the pre-acquisition financial information of Blue Corner and includes pro
forma adjustments for interest expense and adjustments to certain expenses. The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of (i) the results of operations that would have
occurred had the operations of this acquisition actually been acquired at the beginning of fiscal year 2020 or (ii) future results of operations:

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2021 2020
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenues $ 23,882 $ 10,771
Net loss $ (55,942) $ (20,255)

The above pro forma information includes pro forma adjustments to remove the effect of interest expense recognized in the results of operations of Blue Corner during the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 of $276 and $579, respectively.
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATION — CONTINUED

BLUELA CARSHARING, LLC ACQUISITION

On September 11, 2020 (“Closing Date”), the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Blink Mobility, LLC (the “Purchaser”), entered into an Ownership Interest Purchase
Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Blue Systems USA, Inc. (the “Seller”), and pursuant thereto acquired from the Seller all of the ownership interests of BlueLA Carsharing,
LLC (“BlueLA”).

The consideration by the Purchaser for the acquisition of BlueLA included: (a) a cash payment of $1.00, which was paid to the Seller at closing, and (b) in the event BlueLA
timely amends its carsharing services agreement with the City of Los Angeles, California, a cash payment to the Seller of $1,000, payable within three business days after such
amendment (“Contingent Consideration”). Under the Agreement, the amendment to the carsharing services agreement with the City of Los Angeles was to be obtained by
BlueLA no later than December 31, 2020, subject to an extension to March 31, 2021 if a representative of the City of Los Angeles indicates to the Purchaser by the December
31, 2020 deadline its approval of the modifications to the carsharing services agreement, as more particularly outlined in the Agreement. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
the Company did not receive an amendment nor indication to amend the carsharing service agreement thus the Company is not obligated to the Contingent Consideration.

The Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and covenants for a transaction of this type and nature. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Seller will
indemnify the Company, the Purchaser and their respective affiliates and representatives for breaches of the Seller’s representations and warranties, breaches of covenants and
losses related to pre-closing taxes of BlueLA. The Purchaser has agreed to indemnify the Seller and its affiliates and representatives for any breaches of the Purchaser’s
representations and warranties, breaches of covenants and losses related to post-closing taxes of BlueLA. The representations and warranties under the Agreement survived
until December 10, 2021.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Seller and BlueLA entered into a Transition Service Agreement pursuant to which the Seller and its affiliate, Bluecarsharing, S.A.S., provided
certain transition and support services to BlueLA and the Purchaser following the closing and until December 31, 2020. The Seller also guaranteed the payment of up to $175 in
parking fees payable by BlueLA to the City of Los Angeles, and BlueL A agreed to pay the Seller for any as-yet uncollected grants and rebates that BlueLA is entitled to obtain
under its carsharing services agreement with the City of Los Angeles. In addition, the Seller agreed that, until September 10, 2023, the Seller will not and will cause its
subsidiaries or affiliates not to directly or indirectly, (i) own, operate, acquire, or establish a business, or in any other manner engage alone or with others in carsharing and/or
electric vehicle charging operation, or activity in the State of California (whether as an operator, manager, employee, officer, director, consultant, advisor, representative or
otherwise) excluding any de minimis ownership interest in any business); or (ii) intentionally induce or attempt to induce any customer, supplier or other business relation of
BlueLA to cease or refrain from working with BlueLA, or in any way adversely interfere with the relationship between any such customer, supplier or other business relation
and BlueLA. The Company had acquired BlueL A in order to expand its presence in the State of California.

Under the terms of the City of Los Angeles Agreement, amongst other obligations, during the initial term of the City of Los Angeles Agreement (defined as approximately six
years from the effective date of the City of Los Angeles Agreement), BlueLA shall provide, manage, operate and maintain (i) usage agreements for electric vehicles in a
quantity of no less than one hundred (100) (see payment terms of Car Lease Agreement) and (ii) charging stations in a quantity of no less than two hundred (200) at
approximately forty (40) locations for an aggregate cost of approximately $20 per month. Following the initial term, the City of Los Angeles shall have the right to renew the
City of Los Angeles Agreement for renewal terms of two (2) years each, with prior notice required, for a maximum of three renewal terms.

The Company has accounted for this transaction as a business combination under ASC 805. Accordingly, the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were recorded at their
estimated fair value based on the date of acquisition. Goodwill from the acquisition principally relates to the Contingent Consideration as well as the excess value of assumed
liabilities over the fair value of identified net assets. Since this transaction was a stock acquisition, goodwill is not tax deductible.

At the date of acquisition, the purchase consideration consisted of cash, assumed liabilities and Contingent Consideration. The Contingent Consideration of $1,000 is non-
interest bearing and was recorded at its estimated fair value of $245 based on a probability-weighted valuation technique used to determine the fair value of the Contingent
Consideration on the acquisition date. See Note 11 — Fair Value Measurement for assumptions utilized in the estimate of fair value of the Contingent Consideration. During the
fourth quarter of 2020, the Company recorded a measurement period adjustment in order reduce the Contingent Consideration to $0 as of December 31, 2020 with a
corresponding decrease to goodwill.
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BLUELA CARSHARING, LLC ACQUISITION - CONTINUED

The aggregate purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as follows:

Purchase price allocation
Purchase Consideration:

Cash
Assumed liabilities

Total Purchase Consideration

Less:
Right of use assets
Debt-free net working capital deficit
Non-current portion of lease liabilities

Fair Value of Identified Net Liabilities

Remaining Unidentified Goodwill Value

88

88

598
(286)
(371)

(59

147

The components of debt free net working capital deficit are as follows:

Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Less current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Current portion of lease liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Debt free net working capital deficit

73
88

164

163
227
60

450

(286)
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATION — CONTINUED

BLUELA CARSHARING, LLC ACQUISITION — CONTINUED

The below table provides select unaudited, pro forma consolidated results of operations as if the acquisition of BlueLA had occurred on January 1, 2019. The pro forma results
are not indicative of (i) the results of operations that would have occurred had the operations of this acquisition actually occurred at the beginning of fiscal year 2019 or (ii)
future results of operations.

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2020 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenues $ 6,699 $ 3,337
Net loss $ (20,511)  $ (18,323)

The above pro forma information includes pro forma adjustments to remove the effect of the following non-recurring transactions:

1) Gain of $15,550 recognized in the Seller’s results of operations during the year ended December 31, 2020 related to the forgiveness of debt associated with liabilities
to the Seller’s parent;

2) Interest expense of $165 and $322 recognized in the Seller’s results of operations during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, associated with the
debt due to the Seller’s parent that was subsequently forgiven; and

3) Nonrecurring merger expenses of $18 recognized in the Company’s results of operations during the year ended December 31, 2020.

As of the date of the acquisition, the Company expected to collect all contractual cash flows related to receivables acquired in the acquisition. Acquisition related costs are
expensed as incurred and are recorded within general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations. Acquisition-related costs were $18 during the

year ended December 31, 2020.
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATION — CONTINUED

U-GO STATIONS, INC. ACQUISITION

On November 19, 2020 (“Closing Date”), the Company (the “Buyer”), entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “SPA Agreement”) with U-Go Stations, Inc. (the
“Target”), and pursuant thereto acquired from the Seller all of the ownership interests of U-Go Stations, Inc. (“U-Go”).

The consideration by the Buyer for the acquisition of U-Go included: (a) 66,454 shares of the Company’s common stock and (b) $60 cash payment on the later of (i) the first
anniversary of the closing date; or (ii) the date on which the final project of the Additional Projects is awarded to U-Go and paid in full, the funds shall be held in escrow by the
escrow agent until the second anniversary of the closing date. At the expiration of the escrow agreement, the balance of the $60, if any, shall be converted to the Company’s
common stock determined by a formula outlined in the agreement.

The SPA Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and covenants for a transaction of this type and nature. Pursuant to the terms of the SPA Agreement, the
Seller indemnified the Company, the Purchaser and their respective affiliates and representatives for breaches of the Seller’s representations and warranties, breaches of
covenants and losses. The Purchaser agreed to indemnify the Seller and its affiliates and representatives for any breaches of the Purchaser’s representations and warranties,
breaches of covenants and losses.

The Company has accounted for this transaction as a business combination under ASC 805. Accordingly, the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were recorded at their
estimated fair value based on the date of acquisition. Goodwill from the acquisition principally relates to the fair value of the common stock consideration as well as the excess

value of assumed liabilities over the fair value of identified net assets. Since this transaction was a stock acquisition, goodwill is not tax deductible.

At the date of acquisition, the purchase consideration consisted of the Company’s common stock. The aggregate purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed as follows:

Purchase price allocation

Purchase Consideration:

Share consideration $ 1,279
Total Purchase Consideration $ 1,279
Less:

Fixed assets 418

Notes payable (165)

Debt-free net working capital deficit (388)
Fair Value of Identified Net Assets (135)
Remaining Unidentified Goodwill Value $ 1,414
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATION — CONTINUED

U-GO STATIONS, INC. ACQUISITION — CONTINUED

The components of debt free net working capital deficit are as follows:

Current assets:

Cash $ 30
Accounts receivable 3}
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7
Total current assets $ 40

Less current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 428
Total current liabilities $ 428
Debt free net working capital deficit $ (388)

The below table provides select unaudited, pro forma consolidated results of operations as if the acquisition of U-Go had occurred on January 1, 2019. The pro forma results are
not indicative of (i) the results of operations that would have occurred had the operations of this acquisition actually occurred at the beginning of fiscal year 2019 or (ii) future
results of operations.

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2020 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenues $ 6,468 $ 2,832
Net loss $ (18,022) $ (9,734)

The above pro forma information includes pro forma adjustments to remove the effect of the following non-recurring transactions:

1) Nonrecurring merger expenses of $6 recognized in the Company’s results of operations during the year ended December 31, 2020.
As of the date of the acquisition, the Company expects to collect all contractual cash flows related to receivables acquired in the acquisition. Acquisition related costs are
expensed as incurred and are recorded within general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations. Acquisition-related costs were $6 during the

year ended December 31, 2020.
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4. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, prepaid expenses and other current assets was primarily comprised of alternative fuel credits, prepaid professional fees, prepaid
maintenance, and prepaid insurance fees.

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
EV charging stations $ 10,906 § 5,511
Building 4,000 -
Software 1,700 1,021
Automobiles 2,009 1,331
Office and computer equipment 844 305
Leasehold improvements 202 54
Machinery and equipment 139 162
Property and equipment, gross 19,800 8,384
Less: accumulated depreciation (5,237) (2,748)
Property and equipment, net $ 14563  $ 5,636

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment was $1,903, $378, and $187 for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, of
which, $1,531, $345 and $128, respectively, was recorded within cost of sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company disposed of property and equipment with a net book value of $798, $368 and $0 which resulted in a
loss on disposal of $156, $279 and $65, respectively, which was included within general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 the Company transferred charging stations of $2,189, $1,980 and $664 from inventory into property and
equipment.

On January 22, 2021, the Company completed its purchase of approximately 10,000 square feet of office condominium space which became the Company’s corporate
headquarters. The purchase price was $4,000, of which, $600 was paid in the form of the Company’s common stock (13,123 shares) and $3,400 in cash.

See Note 3 - Business Combination for additional details of the acquisition of property and equipment.
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
Internal use software $ 600 § 184
Capitalized engineering costs 237 -
Trade name 340 -
Customer relationships 1,677 -
Favorable leases 272 -
Internally developed technology 1,148 -
Non-compete agreements 138 -
Intangible assets, gross 4,413 184
Less: accumulated amortization (958) (138)
Intangible assets, net $ 3,455 $ 46

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company determined the carrying value of its trademarks and patents was not recoverable and, as a result, recorded an
impairment charge of $83 which was included within general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statement of operations.

Amortization expense during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 were $938, $61, and $89, respectively.
Changes in the balance of intangible assets and goodwill reflected on the balance sheet are the result of the impact of the change in foreign currency exchange rates.
See Note 3 - Business Combination and Note 7- Goodwill for additional details.

The estimated future amortization expense is as follows:

For the Years Ending December 31, Total

2022 $ 1,239

2023 847

2024 576

2025 400

2026 394
$ 3,455
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7. GOODWILL

Goodwill consisted of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
Goodwill
Beginning balance as of January 1 $ 1,501 $ -
Acquisition of U-Go Stations, Inc. - 1,354
Acquisition of BlueLA Carsharing, LLC - 147
Accrual of additional consideration for U-Go Stations, Inc. 60 -
Acquisition of Blue Corner 19,027 -
Effect of translation adjustments (1,198) -
Ending balance as of December 31 $ 19,390 $ 1,501
8. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
Accrued host fees $ 130 $ 120
Accrued professional fees 543 110
Accrued wages 2,678 403
Accrued commissions 144 47
Warranty payable 10 10
Accrued income, property and sales taxes payable 462 357
Accrued issuable equity 454 184
Accrued purchases 117 -
Internal use software liability 383 -
Other accrued expenses 757 98
Total accrued expenses $ 5,678 $ 1,329

WARRANTY PAYABLE

The Company provides a limited product warranty against defects in materials and workmanship for its Blink Network residential and commercial chargers, ranging in length
from one to two years. The Company accrues for estimated warranty costs at the time of revenue recognition and records the expense of such accrued liabilities as a component
of cost of sales. Estimated warranty costs are based on known warranty issues and anticipated warranty costs. Should actual cost to repair and failure rates differ significantly
from estimates, the impact of these unforeseen costs would be recorded as a change in estimate in the period identified. For the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
change in reserve was approximately $(2) and $2, respectively.

Warranty expenses for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 were $210, $120 and $187, respectively, which has been included within cost of revenues on the
consolidated statement of operations. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company recorded a warranty liability of $10 which represents the estimated cost to repair those
chargers under warranty or host owned chargers for which the host has procured a maintenance contract. The Company records maintenance and repairs expenses for chargers
it owns deployed at host locations as incurred. The Company estimates an approximate cost of $73 to repair those deployed chargers which it owns as of December 31, 2021.
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9. NOTES PAYABLE

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

On May 7, 2020, the Company received $856 in connection with a loan (the “PPP Loan”) under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP”). The PPP provides
for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts of up to 2.5 times their average monthly payroll expenses. The loan principal and accrued interest are forgivable, as long as the
borrower uses loan proceeds for eligible purposes during the covered period following disbursement, such as payroll, benefits, rent, and utilities, and maintains its payroll
levels. The amount of loan forgiveness is reduced if the borrower terminates employees or reduces salaries during the covered period, subject to certain qualifications and
exclusions. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had utilized all $856 of the proceeds of the PPP Loan.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company obtained forgiveness for its PPP Loans in the amount of $856 and recorded a gain on settlement of debt on the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021.

OTHER NOTES PAYABLE

In connection with the U-Go acquisition, the Company had also assumed $165 in notes payable, however, these notes were subsequently repaid during the year ended
December 31, 2020. See Note 3 — Business Combination — U-GO Stations, Inc. Acquisition for details.
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10. DEFERRED REVENUE

The Company is the recipient of various private and governmental grants, rebates and marketing incentives. Reimbursements of periodic expenses are recognized as income
when the related expense is incurred. Private and government grants and rebates related to EV charging stations and their installation are deferred and amortized in a manner
consistent with the recognition of the related depreciation expense of the related asset over their useful lives.

Deferred revenue consists of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
Prepaid network, charging and maintenance fees $ 2,647 § 288
AFIG-PAT 70 70
Other 269 128
Total deferred revenue 2,986 486
Deferred revenue, non-current portion (128) @)
Current portion of deferred revenue $ 2,858 $ 479
It is anticipated that deferred revenue as of December 31, 2021 will be recognized as follows:
For the Year Ending
December 31, Revenue
2022 $ 2,858
2023 118
2024 3
2025 3
2026 3
Thereafter 1
Total $ 2,986
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11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Assumptions utilized in the valuation of Level 3 liabilities are described as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Risk-free interest rate 0.07%-0.39% 0.16%-1.69% 1.47%-2.45%
Contractual term (years) 1.00 1.00-8.00 1.00-10.00
Expected volatility 90%-148% 78%-143.8% 74%-140%
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The following table sets forth a summary of the changes in the fair value of Level 3 warrant liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

December 31,

2021 2020
Warrant Liability
Beginning balance as of January 1 $ 159 $ 5
Change in fair value of warrant liability (69) 154
Ending balance as of December 31 $ 90 $ 159
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring or nonrecurring basis are as follows:
December 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Alternative fuel credits $ -3 58 $ - 8 58
Total assets $ - 3 58 $ - 3 58
Liabilities:
Common stock liability $ 364§ -3 - S 364
Warrant liability - - 90 90
Total liabilities $ 364 $ -3 90 $ 454
December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Alternative fuel credits $ - $ 31 $ - 8 31
Total assets $ - $ 31 $ -3 31
Liabilities:
Warrant liability $ - -3 159 159
Total liabilities $ - - 3 159 159
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12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

The Company is authorized to issue 500,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value, and 40,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value. The holders of the
Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote per share. The preferred stock is designated as follows: 20,000,000 shares to Series A Convertible Preferred Stock; 10,000
shares to Series B Convertible Preferred Stock; 250,000 shares to Series C Convertible Preferred Stock; 13 shares to Series D Convertible Preferred Stock; and 19,727 shares

undesignated.

OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLANS

On September 7, 2018, the Board of the Company, as well as a majority of the Company’s shareholders approved the Company’s 2018 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “2018
Plan”), which enables the Company to grant stock options, restricted stock, dividend equivalents, stock payments, deferred stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation
rights, performance share awards, and other incentive awards to associates, directors, consultants, and advisors of the Company and its affiliates, and to improve the ability of
the Company to attract, retain, and motivate individuals upon whom the Company’s sustained growth and financial success depend, by providing such persons with an
opportunity to acquire or increase their proprietary interest in the Company. Stock options granted under the 2018 Plan may be non-qualified stock options or incentive stock
options, within the meaning of Section 422(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, except that stock options granted to outside directors and any consultants or advisers
providing services to the Company or an affiliate shall in all cases be non-qualified stock options. The option price must be at least 100% of the fair market value on the date of
grant and if issued to a 10% or greater shareholder must be at least 110% of the fair market value on the date of the grant. The 2018 Plan is to be administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board, which shall have discretion over the awards and grants thereunder.

The aggregate maximum number of shares of common stock for which stock options or awards may be granted pursuant to the 2018 Plan is 5,000,000, adjusted as provided in
Section 4 of the 2018 Plan. No awards may be issued on or after September 7, 2028.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, options to purchase 983,505 and 617,071 shares of options were outstanding respectively. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 1,244,232
and 1,151,299 shares of common stock were outstanding to employees and members of the Board of Directors of the Company, respectively. As of December 31, 2021 and
2020, there were 2,772,263 and 3,231,630 securities available for future issuance under the 2018 Plan, respectively.

PUBLIC OFFERING

In January 2021, the Company completed an underwritten registered public offering of 5,660,000 shares of common stock at a public offering price of $41.00 per share. The
Company received $232,060 in gross proceeds from the public offering, and $221,406 in net proceeds after deducting the underwriting discount and offering expenses paid by
the Company. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and one other officer participated in the offering by selling a total of 550,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
from the exercise of the underwriter’s option to purchase additional shares. The public offering was made pursuant to the Company’s automatic shelf registration statement on
Form S-3 filed with the SEC on January 6, 2021 and prospectus supplement dated January 7, 2021.
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12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY — CONTINUED

AT-THE-MARKET OFFERING

On April 17, 2020, the Company entered into a sales agreement (“Sales Agreement”) with Roth Capital Partners, LLC (the “Agent”) to conduct an “at-the-market” equity
offering program (the “ATM”), pursuant to which the Company may issue and sell from time-to-time shares of its common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to
$20,000 (the “Shares”) through the Agent. Sales of the Shares under the Sales Agreement were made in transactions that were deemed to be “at-the-market offerings” as
defined in Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, including sales made by means of ordinary brokers’ transactions, including on the Nasdaq Capital Market, at
market prices or as otherwise agreed to with the Agent. A “shelf” registration statement on Form S-3 for the Shares was filed with the SEC, which became effective on
September 16, 2019, and a prospectus supplement thereto was filed with the SEC on April 17, 2020.

During 2020 and through December 31, 2020, the Company sold an aggregate of 3,597,833 shares of common stock under the ATM program for aggregate gross proceeds of
$20,000, less issuance costs of $819 which were recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital.

PREFERRED STOCK
SERIES D CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On February 22, 2019, JMJ elected to convert 16 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock into 5,128 shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price of
$3.12 per share.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, a holder elected to convert 5,125 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock into 1,642,628 shares of the Company’s common
stock at a conversion price of $3.12 per share. The Company determined that the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock did not include a beneficial conversion feature. There are

no longer any currently outstanding shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock.
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12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY — CONTINUED
COMMON STOCK

On February 19, 2019, the Company retired 8,066 shares of common stock in accordance with a settlement agreement with the former members of 350 Green LLC. See Note
16 — Commitments and Contingencies — Litigation and Disputes for additional details.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued an aggregate of 178,615 shares of common stock to independent board members and an former officer of the
Company pursuant to a certain agreement with an aggregate grant date fair value of $474,513 such amount was previously accrued for as of December 31, 2018.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued an aggregate of 28,831 shares of common stock to consultants with an aggregate issuance date fair value of
$73,728.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company issued an aggregate of 233,124 shares of common stock to employees of the Company and consultants with an
aggregate issuance date fair value of $525,769.

See Note 12 — Stockholder’s Equity - Preferred Stock for details associated with the issuance of common stock in connection with the conversion of Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued 32,382 shares as partial consideration for its acquisition of Blue Corner.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued an aggregate of 127,841 shares as compensation for services. The shares had an issuance date fair value of
$3,950.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued 13,123 shares as partial consideration for the purchase of property and equipment. See Note 5 — Property and
Equipment for additional details.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued an aggregate of 104,496 shares of common stock pursuant to cashless warrant ad options exercises.

See elsewhere within this Note, Note 3- Business Combinations and Note 14 — Related Parties for additional details.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense related to common stock, stock options and warrants for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 of
$19,108, $948, and $729, respectively, which is included within compensation expense on the consolidated statement of operations. As December 31, 2021, there was $5,370 of
unrecognized stock-based compensation expense that will be recognized over the weighted average remaining vesting period of 1.23 years, which includes $962 of
unrecognized stock-based compensation of expense relating to the special four-year performance option for the Company’s CEO which is expected to be fully recognized by

January 2022.
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12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY — CONTINUED

WARRANT AND OPTION VALUATION

The Company has computed the fair value of certain warrants and options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Option forfeitures are reduction of previous
expensed amount at the time of occurrence. The expected term used for options issued is the estimated period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The
Company utilizes the “simplified” method to develop an estimate of the expected term of “plain vanilla” employee option grants. The Company is utilizing an expected
volatility figure based on a review of the historical volatility of the Company over a period equivalent to the expected life of the instrument being valued. The risk-free interest
rate was determined from the implied yields from U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with a remaining term consistent with the expected term of the instrument being valued.

STOCK OPTIONS

In applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model to options granted, the Company used the following assumptions:

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2021 2020 2020
Risk free interest rate 0.09%-1.539% 0.33%-1.44% 1.52%-1.71%
Expected term (years) 1.00-8.00 5.00-8.00 5.00-6.00
Expected volatility 115.3%-140.7% 121.8%-139.9% 131.10%-138.40%
Expected dividends 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company issued an aggregate of 8,256 shares of the Company’s common stock pursuant to the cashless exercise of options.
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued an aggregate of 38,496 shares of the Company’s common stock pursuant to the cashless exercise of options.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued an aggregate of 136,500 shares of the Company’s common stock pursuant to a option exercise for aggregate net
proceeds of $307.

See Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies — CEO Employment Agreement for details associated with options granted to the Company’s CEO.
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12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY — CONTINUED

STOCK OPTIONS — CONTINUED

A summary of the option activity during the year ended December 31, 2021 is presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Life Intrinsic
Shares Price In Years Value
Outstanding, December 31, 2020 572,838 $ 4.38
Granted 616,312 38.15
Exercised (183,594) 4.08
Cancelled/forfeited/expired (22,051) 1.38
Outstanding, December 31, 2021 983,505 $ 2525 4.6 9,416,509
Exercisable, December 31, 2021 171,531 $ 5.59 3.6 3,720,132
The following table presents information related to stock options at December 31, 2021:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Range of Average Outstanding Average Exercisable
Exercise Exercise Number of Remaining Life Number of
Price Price Options In Years Options

$ 1.73-$9.14 2.24 351,653 34 155,191
$ 25.59-$38.45 37.47 591,320 0.2 15,640
$ 40.82-$59.22 46.50 40,532 0.0 700

983,505 3.6 171,531
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12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY — CONTINUED

STOCK WARRANTS

Note 11— Fair Value Measurement, and elsewhere within this note for additional details.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued an aggregate of 388,101 shares of the Company’s common stock pursuant to the exercise of warrants at an
exercise price of $4.25 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $1,619.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued 66,000 shares of the Company’s common stock representing a modification of the initial warrant exercise
pursuant to a legal settlement. See Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies — Litigation and Disputes for details.

The following table accounts for the Company’s warrant activity for the year ended December 31, 2021:

‘Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Life Intrinsic
Shares Price In Years Value
Outstanding, January 1, 2021 3,893,223 $ 493
Issued - -
Exercised (622,661) 4.25
Cancelled/forfeited/expired - -
Outstanding, December 31, 2021 3,270,562 $ 5.06 1.1 $ 77,877,434
Exercisable, December 31, 2021 3,270,562 $ 5.06 1.1 $ 77,877,434
The following table presents information related to stock warrants at December 31, 2021:
Warrants Outstanding Warrants Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Range of Average Outstanding Average Exercisable
Exercise Exercise Number of Remaining Life Number of
Price Price Warrants In Years Warrants

$ 4.25-$35.00 $ 4.79 3,253,903 1.1 3,253,903
$ 50.00-$150.00 $ 57.99 16,659 0.0 16,659

3,270,562 1.1 3,270,562
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13. INCOME TAXES
The Company is subject to U.S. federal and various state income taxes.

The income tax provision (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 consists of the following:

For the Year Ended December 31

2021 2020 2019

Federal:

Current $ -3 -3 -

Deferred (5,691) (4,452) 4,684
State:

Current $ - 8 - S -

Deferred (1,343) (1,060) 1,115

(7,039) (5,512) 5,799

Change in valuation allowance 7,039 5,512 (5,799)
Income tax provision (benefit) $ - $ - S -

No current tax provision has been recorded for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 because the Company had net operating losses for federal and state tax
purposes. The net operating loss carryovers may be subject to annual limitations under Internal Revenue Code Section 382, and similar state provisions, should there be a
greater than 50% ownership change as determined under the applicable income tax regulations. The amount of the limitation would be determined based on the value of the
company immediately prior to the ownership change and subsequent ownership changes could further impact the amount of the annual limitation. An ownership change
pursuant to Section 382 may have occurred in the past or could happen in the future, such that the NOLs available for utilization could be significantly limited. The Company
will perform a Section 382 analysis in the future. The related decrease in the deferred tax asset will be offset by the decrease in valuation allowance.
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13. INCOME TAXES - CONTINUED

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31
2021 2020 2019
Tax benefit at federal statutory rate (21.0)% (21.0)% (21.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 2.4)% (5.0)% (5.00%
Permanent differences:
Stock Compensation 0.2% (4.0)% 0.0%
Other 7.9% 0.0% 0.8%
Tax Credits (0.1)% 0.0% 0.2%
Income from non-includable foreign entities 1.6%
Prior year differences 1.0% (1.0)% 85.1%
Change in valuation allowance 12.8% 31.0% (60.1)%
Effective income tax rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The Company has determined that a valuation allowance for the entire net deferred tax asset is required. A valuation allowance is required if, based on the weight of evidence,
it is more likely than not that some or the entire portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative,
management has determined that a full valuation allowance is necessary to reduce the deferred tax asset to zero, the amount that will more likely not be realized.

The disaggregation of the Company’s domestic and foreign pre-tax loss for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2021 2020 2019
Us. $ (50,803) $ (17,635) $ (9,434)
Foreign (4,316) (211) (215)
$ (55,119) $ (17,846) $ (9,649)
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13. INCOME TAXES - CONTINUED

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented below:

For the Year Ended December 31

2021 2020
Deferred Tax Assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 32,351 26,066
Stock-based compensation 1,210 401
Accruals 663 128
Goodwill 728 729
Intangible assets 183 212
Inventory 10 56
Allowance for doubtful accounts 216 93
Mark to Market Investments 83 -
Capital Loss 22 22
Tax Credits 593 562
36,059 28,269
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Fixed assets (793) 31)
Deferred Revenue 4 -
Other @) (©)
(791) (39)
Net deferred tax assets 35,268 28,230
Valuation Allowance (35,268) (28,230)
Deferred tax assets,net of valuation allowance - _
Change in valuation allowance $ (7,038) 5,511

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had net operating loss carry forwards for federal and state income tax purposes of approximately $124,400, of which, $62,300 may be
used to offset future taxable income through 2037 and the remaining $62,100 of net operating loss carry forwards incurred in 2021, 2020 and 2019 do not have an expiration

date. The Company has approximately $593 in business credits expiring between 2030 and 2041.
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14. RELATED PARTIES
JOINT VENTURE

The Company and a group of three Cyprus entities entered into a shareholders’ agreement on February 11, 2019, pertaining to the parties’ respective shareholdings in a new
joint venture entity, Blink Charging Europe Ltd. (the “Entity”), that was formed under the laws of Cyprus on the same date. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company is not
required to fund operating losses. The Company owns 40% of the Entity while the other three entities own 60% of the Entity. The Entity currently owns 100% of a Greek
subsidiary, Blink Charging Hellas SA (“Hellas”), which started operations in the Greek EV market. There are currently no plans for the Company to make any capital
contributions or investments. During year ended December 31, 2021, 2020, 2019, the Company recognized sales of $811, $273 and $42, respectively, to Hellas. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 the Company had a receivable from Hellas of approximately $6 and $0, respectively. The Company determined that the Entity is a variable
interest entity, however, the Company does not have a controlling financial interest and, as a result, the Company is not required to consolidate the Entity and instead has
applied equity method accounting to its investment in the Entity. From inception through December 31,2021, the Entity has not generated net income and, as a result, pursuant
to ASC 323, the Company has not recorded a gain or loss on its equity method investment in the Entity during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019.

BLUE CORNER

As of December 31, 2021, three senior management employees in the recently acquired entity Blue Corner had an ownership interest in a major supplier of charging equipment
for Blue Corner. As of December 31, 2021, the Company owed approximately $800 to this supplier. During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Company purchased
approximately $3,604 of inventory from this supplier.

15. LEASES

OPERATING LEASES

See Note 3 — Business Combination regarding details associated with lease agreements for (i) certain parking locations in connection with the City of Los Angeles Agreement.
On March 5, 2019, the Company entered into a 26-month lease agreement for an additional 1,241 square feet of office space in its current Miami Beach office building,
beginning April 1, 2019 and ending May 31, 2021. The tenant and landlord have the option to cancel the contract after the first six months with 90 day’s written notice. The
lease does not contain an option to extend past the lease term.

On November 7, 2019 the Company entered into a 18-month lease agreement for an additional 1,600 square feet of office space in its current Miami Beach office building,
beginning December 1, 2019 and ending May 31, 2021. The tenant and landlord have the option to cancel the contract after the first six months with 90 day’s written notice.
The lease does not contain an option to extend past the lease term.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company entered into a lease agreement for approximately 27,540 square feet of space in Arizona. The lease commenced on
January 1, 2021 and will terminate on May 31, 2028. The lease includes a build-out allowance of $137. Monthly payments under the lease are $18 per month. The lease also

includes a security deposit of $22.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had no leases that were classified as a financing lease. As of December 31, 2021, the Company did not have additional operating and
financing leases that have not yet commenced.

Total operating lease expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 was $566, $220, and $409, respectively, and is recorded in other operating expenses on
the consolidated statements of operations. Operating lease expenses consist of rent expense, CAM adjustments and other expenses.
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15. LEASES - CONTINUED

OPERATING LEASES — CONTINUED

Supplemental cash flows information related to leases was as follows:

For The Year Ended
December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease

liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 1,019 207 $ 158
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:

Operating leases $ 2,129 598 $ 143
Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term

Operating leases 4.77 2.10 1.42
Weighted Average Discount Rate

Operating leases 4.7% 6.0% 6.0%
Future minimum payments under non-cancellable leases as of December 31, 2021 were as follows:

For the Years Ending December 31, Amount

2022 $ 887
2023 334
2024 247
2025 255
2026 263
Thereafter 384

Total future minimum lease payments 2,370

Less: imputed interest (292)

Total $ 2,078
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16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had purchase commitments of approximately $32,000 of which approximately $13,000 is with a related party, which will become
payable upon the suppliers’ delivery of the charging stations and other related items. The purchase commitments were made primarily for future sales, deployments of charging
stations, inventory management planning and other related items, all of which are expected to be received during the next 12-24 months.

PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENT

On March 29, 2012, the Company, as licensee (the “Licensee”) entered into an exclusive patent license agreement with the Executive Chairman of the Board and Balance
Holdings, LLC (an entity controlled by the Executive Chairman) (collectively, the “Licensor”), whereby the Company agreed to pay a royalty of 10% of the gross profits
received by the Company from commercial sales and/or use of two provisional patent applications, one relating to an inductive charging parking bumper and one relating to a
process which allows multiple EVs to plug into an EV charging station simultaneously and charge as the current becomes available.

On March 11, 2016, the Licensee and the Licensor entered into an agreement related to the March 29, 2012 patent license agreement. The parties acknowledged that the
Licensee has paid a total of $9 in registration and legal fees for the U.S. Provisional Patent Application No. 61529016 (the “Patent Application™) (related to the inductive
charging parking bumper) to date. Effective March 11, 2016, the patent license agreement, solely with respect to the Patent Application and the parties’ rights and obligations
thereto, was terminated. The Executive Chairman of the Board agreed to be solely responsible for all future costs and fees associated with the prosecution of the patent
application. In the event the Patent Application is successful, the Executive Chairman of the Board shall grant a credit to the Licensee in the amount of $9 to be applied against
any outstanding amount(s) owed to him. If the Licensee does not have any outstanding payment obligations to the Executive Chairman of the Board at the time the Patent
Application is approved, the Executive Chairman of the Board shall remit the $9 to the Licensee within twenty (20) days of the approval. The parties agreed to a mutual release
of any claims associated with the patent license agreement. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has not paid nor incurred any royalty fees related to this patent license
agreement.

LITIGATION, DISPUTES AND SETTLEMENTS

On March 26, 2020, James Christodoulou, the former President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company, filed a Complaint in the Miami-Dade County Court, State of
Florida, James Christodoulou vs. Blink Charging Co. et al. The Complaint asserts claims against the Company, as well as Michael Farkas, Aviv Hillo and Yechiel Baron. Mr.
Farkas is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Messrs. Hillo and Baron are the Company’s General Counsel and Assistant General Counsel, respectively. The
Complaint asserted claims for breach of contract in connection with Mr. Christodoulou’s termination by the Company in March 2020, as well as claims under Florida state law
for alleged retaliatory termination and slander. Among other things, Mr. Christodoulou asserted that the Company terminated his employment without cause and in retaliation
for his alleged plan to disclose that Company executives had engaged in alleged “questionable business practices.” As previously reported in the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 9, 2020, the litigation between the Company and its former President pending in Miami-Dade County Court, State of Florida, James
Christodoulou vs. Blink Charging Co. et al., has been settled for an aggregate sum of $400, of which $125 related to compensation related matters. As a result, the Company
has recorded a loss on settlement of $400 within operating expenses on its consolidated statement of operations during the year ended December 31, 2020.
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16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — CONTINUED

LITIGATION, DISPUTES AND SETTLEMENTS — CONTINUED

On August 24, 2020, a purported securities class action lawsuit, captioned Bush v. Blink Charging Co. et al., Case No. 20-cv-23527, was filed in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Florida against the Company, Michael Farkas (Blink’s Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer), and Michael Rama (Blink’s Chief
Financial Officer) (the “Bush Lawsuit”). On September 1, 2020, another purported securities class action lawsuit, captioned Vittoria v. Blink Charging Co. et al., Case No. 20-
cv-23643, was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida against the same defendants and seeking to recover the same alleged damages (the
“Vittoria Lawsuit”). On October 1, 2020, the court consolidated the Vittoria Lawsuit with the Bush Lawsuit and on December 21, 2020 the court appointed Tianyou Wu,
Alexander Yu and H. Marc Joseph to serve as the Co-Lead Plaintiffs. The Co-Lead Plaintiffs filed an Amended Complaint on February 19, 2021. The Amended Complaint
alleges, among other things, that the defendants made false or misleading statements about the size and functionality of the Blink Network, and asserts claims under Sections
10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Amended Complaint does not quantify damages but seeks to recover damages on behalf of investors who
purchased or otherwise acquired Blink’s common stock between March 6, 2020 and August 19, 2020. On April 20, 2021, Blink and the other defendants filed a motion to
dismiss the Amended Complaint, which has now been fully briefed and is ready for review. The Company wholly and completely disputes the allegations therein. The
Company has retained legal counsel in order to defend the action vigorously. The Company has not recorded an accrual related to this matter as of December 31, 2021 as it
determined that any such loss contingency was either not probable or estimable.

On September 15, 2020, a shareholder derivative lawsuit, captioned Klein (derivatively on behalf of Blink Charging Co.) v. Farkas et al., Case No. 20- 19815CAO01, was filed in
Miami-Dade County Circuit Court seeking to pursue claims belonging to the Company against Blink’s Board of Directors and Michael Rama (the “Klein Lawsuit”). Blink is
named as a nominal defendant. The Klein Lawsuit asserts that the Director defendants caused Blink to make the statements that are at issue in the securities class action and, as
a result, the Company will incur costs defending against the consolidated Bush Lawsuit and other unidentified investigations. The Klein Lawsuit asserts claims against the
Director defendants for breach of fiduciary duties and corporate waste and against all of the defendants for unjust enrichment. Klein did not quantify the alleged damages in his
complaint, but he seeks damages sustained by the Company as a result of the defendants’ breaches of fiduciary duties, corporate governance changes, restitution, and
disgorgement of profits from the defendants and attorneys’ fees and other litigation expenses. The parties agreed to temporarily stay the Klein Lawsuit until there is a ruling on
the motion to dismiss filed in the consolidated Bush Lawsuit. The Company has not recorded an accrual related to this matter as of December 31, 2021 as it determined that any
such loss contingency was either not probable or estimable.

On December 22, 2020, JMJ Financial v. Blink Charging Co. was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, seeking to pursue claims for
alleged breach of contract and conversion (the “JMJ Lawsuit”). The complaint alleges that JMJ Financial purchased warrants to acquire 147,057 shares of Blink common stock
on or about April 9, 2018, which permitted a cashless exercise, and that on November 23, 2020, JMJ Financial delivered a notice of warrant exercise to Blink and that the
Company failed to deliver the shares. The claim alleges breach of contract and conversion; the plaintiff requests damages of at least $4.2 million, attorneys’ fees, and specific
enforcement requiring delivery of the shares. In January 2021, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with JMJ under which the parties exchanged releases and the
litigation was discontinued with prejudice. The Company did not make a cash payment in the settlement, but rather delivered 66,000 shares of stock, representing a
modification of the initial terms of the warrant grant.

On December 23, 2020, another shareholder derivative action, captioned Bhatia (derivatively on behalf of Blink Charging Co.) v. Farkas et al., Case No. 20-27632CA01, was
filed in Miami-Dade County Circuit Court against the same defendants sued in the Klein Lawsuit and asserting similar claims, as well as additional claims relating to the
Company’s nomination, appointment and hiring of minorities and women and the Company’s decision to retain its outside auditor (the “Bhatia Lawsuit”). On February 17,
2021, the parties agreed to consolidate the Klein and Bhatia actions, which the court consolidated under the caption In re Blink Charging Company Stockholder Derivative
Litigation, Lead Case No. 2020-019815-CA-01. The parties also agreed to keep in place the temporary stay. The court subsequently vacated the consolidation order and
explained the parties should first file a motion to transfer, which the parties have done. The Company wholly and completely disputes the allegations therein. The Company has
retained legal counsel in order to defend the action vigorously. The Company has not recorded an accrual related to this matter as of December 31, 2021 as it determined that
any such loss contingency was either not probable or estimable.
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16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — CONTINUED

LITIGATION, DISPUTES AND SETTLEMENTS — CONTINUED

On February 12, 2021, another shareholder derivative lawsuit, captioned Wolery (derivatively on behalf of Blink Charging Co.) v. Buffalino et al., Case No. A-21-829395-C,
was filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in Clark County, Nevada seeking to pursue claims belonging to the Company against Blink’s Board of Directors (the “Wolery
Lawsuit”). Blink is named as a nominal defendant. The Wolery complaint alleges that the amount of restricted stock awarded to Blink’s outside directors in December 2020
exceeded the amounts permitted by Blink’s incentive compensation plan. The complaint asks the court to rescind the excess restricted stock awards, as well as other relief. On
September 15, 2021, the parties entered into a term sheet in which they agreed to settle the claims subject to the court’s approval. On January 25, 2022 the court preliminarily
approved the settlement and subsequently scheduled a final hearing for April 12, 2022. If the court gives final approval to the settlement, the Company has agreed to make
certain changes to its compensation practices for its directors and officers, including, among other things, eliminating the practice of making cash payments to directors to cover
expected income taxes on stock grants and placing a $200 annual limit for two years on the combined stock and cash Awards to outside directors. The defendants do not admit
any liability or wrongdoing in the settlement and will not make any cash payment as part of the settlement, but the Company will be responsible for paying the costs to give
notice of the settlement to the Company’s shareholders and to pay $190 in attorney’s fees to the plaintiff’s counsel which was accrued for as of December 31, 2021.

On February 7, 2022, another shareholder derivative lawsuit, captioned McCauley (derivatively on behalf of Blink Charging Co.) v. Farkas et al., Case No. A-22-847894-C,
was filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in Clark County, Nevada, seeking to pursue claims belonging to the Company against six of Blink’s directors and Michael Rama
(the “McCauley Lawsuit”). Blink is named as a nominal defendant. The complaint filed in the McCauley Lawsuit asserts similar allegations to the Klein Lawsuit relating to the
statements at issue in the securities class action and asserts claims for breach of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment. The McCauley Lawsuit seeks both injunctive and
monetary relief from the individual defendants, as well as an award of attorneys’ fees and costs. The Company has not recorded an accrual related to this matter as of December
31, 2021 as it determined that any such loss contingency was either not probable or estimable.

On November 12, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a Confidential Settlement and Release Agreement with Aviv Hillo, the Company’s General Counsel. In
consideration for Mr. Hillo releasing any and all claims of harassment involving a former executive, the Company issued Mr. Hillo 60,000 shares of its common stock with an
issuance date fair value of $2,680 in full settlement of the matter.

WARRANTY

The Company estimates an approximate cost of $73 to repair deployed chargers, which the Company owns as of December 31, 2021.
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16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — CONTINUED

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

MICHAEL D. FARKAS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

On May 28, 2021, the Company entered into a new employment agreement (the “Employment Agreement”) with the Company’s Executive Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEO”). The term of the Employment Agreement is January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2023 (the “Term”).

Under the Employment Agreement, the CEO will receive a base salary of $800 for 2021 and $850 and $900 for 2022 and 2023, respectively. The CEO will be eligible to
receive an annual performance bonus (payable in cash and securities), with a target bonus of 100% of the base salary, with the CEO eligible to receive up to 200% of the base
salary based on the achievement of key performance indicators established by the Board of Directors and the CEO (“KPIs”). The CEO will receive equity awards (one-half in
restricted stock and one-half in stock options) with a target aggregate value of $1,000, the CEO is eligible to receive up to 200% of the target aggregate value based on the
achievement of KPIs during each year of the Term. The CEO also received a special four-year performance option to purchase 475,285 shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $37.40 per share, which will vest if the Company’s stock price on the NASDAQ exchange reaches and remains on average for a period of 20 consecutive market days
at a closing price of $90 per share during the four-year term of the option. The performance option had a grant date fair value of approximately $13,500, which was estimated
using a third-party specialist who utilized a Monte Carlo simulation model. The assumptions used in the Monte Carlo simulation model were as follows: the closing stock price
on the valuation date of $34.00, exercise price of $37.40, the contractual term of four years, expected volatility of the Company’s stock of 143.98%, and the risk free rate of
interest of 0.54%. The Company is recognizing the fair value over the derived service period of the award, which was determined to be 0.64 years

Additionally, the CEO received one-time awards and payments in satisfaction of his 2020 bonuses, equity awards, and a salary catch-up since the expiration of his prior
agreement in September 2020. The Employment Agreement provides that, if the CEO is terminated without cause, resigns for good reason, dies or becomes disabled during the
Term, he will receive his base salary for the remainder of the Term and payment of 2.6 times his target performance bonus/equity awards and base salary. In the event of a
termination without cause or resignation for good reason within nine months prior to or 18 months following a change in control, the multiple in the previous sentence will be
3.5 times.

The Employment Agreement also contains covenants (a) restricting Mr. Farkas from engaging in any activities competitive with the Company’s business during the Term and
one year thereafter, (b) prohibiting Mr. Farkas from disclosure of confidential information regarding the Company at any time and (c) confirming that all intellectual property
developed by Mr. Farkas during the term of the employment agreement which specifically relates to the EV charging business constitutes the Company’s sole and exclusive
property. Mr. Farkas may be entitled to additional bonuses should his developments be commercialized by the Company.

The Employment Agreement provides that a commission sales agreement entered into on November 17, 2009 between an entity controlled by the CEO and a predecessor to the
Company will remain suspended and no payments will be due thereunder for as long as the CEO is a full-time employee of the Company and is paid a monthly salary of at least
$30. Finally, the Company and the CEO agreed to resolve a dispute over the CEO’s transfer of 260,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a prior institutional investor
through a settlement agreement and payment of $1,000 from the Company to the CEO. The payment of $1,000 was recognized as a part of other operating expenses in the
statements of operations during the year ended December 31, 2021.

MATERIAL AGREEMENT
In October 2021, the Company negotiated and executed an amendment and extension to its agreement with a contract manufacturer of the Company. The amendment extends
the term of the agreement for an additional five (5) years. Accordingly, the Company could potentially incur additional costs related to units ordered that were subsequently

canceled or otherwise not fulfilled.
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Name of Entity

Blink Charging Co. List of Subsidiaries

State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Exhibit 21.1

Beam Charging, LLC

Blink Charging, LTD

Blink Holdings B.V

Blink Charging Europe, LTD*

Blink Charging International, LTD
Blink Network, LLC

Blink Charging, Inc.

Blink Charging Group (CA), Inc.

Blink I Holdings, LLC

Blink/PAT LLC

Blink/Brixmor, LLC

EV Pass, LLC

eCharging Stations, LLC

Ecotality, Inc.

BlueLA Carsharing LLC

Blue Mobility LLC

U-Go Stations Inc

Blink EV LLC

Blue Corner NV

Blink Charging Mexico S de RL de CV
Blink Charging Chile SPA
BlinkCharging Software Solutions PVT LTD
Blink Hellas SA

BG Energy Solutions LLC (51% owned)
CCGI Holdings LLC

* 40% owned.

All other subsidiaries are wholly owned by Blink Charging Co.

NY
Israel
Netherlands
Cyprus
Cyprus
AZ
DE
CA
FL
PA
NY
NY
FL
NV
CA
CA
PA
TX
Belgium
Mexico
Chile
India
Greece
FL
FL




Exhibit 23.1

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM’S CONSENT

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements of Blink Charging Co. on Form S-3 (File No. 333-233580 and 333-251919) and Form S-8 (File No.
333-255137) of our report dated March 16, 2022, with respect to our audits of the consolidated financial statements of Blink Charging Co. and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2021 and 2020 and for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 and our report dated March 16, 2022 with respect to our audit of internal control over financial
reporting of Blink Charging Co. as of December 31, 2021, which reports are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Blink Charging Co. for the year ended December
31, 2021.

Our report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting expressed an adverse opinion because of the existence of material weaknesses.
/s/ Marcum rLp
Marcum LLP

New York, NY
March 16, 2022




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael D. Farkas, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Blink Charging Co.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods present in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13-a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

O]

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financing reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involved management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

By: /s/Michael D. Farkas

Michael D. Farkas

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 16, 2022




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael P. Rama, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Blink Charging Co.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods present in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13-a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

O]

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financing reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involved management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

By: /s/ Michael P. Rama

Michael P. Rama

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
March 16, 2022




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Annual Report of Blink Charging Co. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Michael D. Farkas, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Principal Executive Officer of the Company, certifies to
the best of his knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. Such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of Blink Charging Co.

By: /s/ Michael D. Farkas
Michael D. Farkas
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
March 16, 2022




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Annual Report of Blink Charging Co. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Michael P. Rama, Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial and Accounting Officer of the Company, certifies
to the best of his knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. Such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of Blink Charging Co.
By: /s/ Michael P. Rama
Michael P. Rama
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
March 16, 2022




